2023July 1, 2023-June 30, 2024

Continuing Care Retirement Community Survey Preparation Workbook



© 2023 by the Commission on Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities
All rights reserved • Published 2023 • Printed in the United States of America
Any copying, republication, or redistribution of the content by any means is expressly prohibited.
Unauthorized use of any content may violate copyright laws, trademark laws, the laws of privacy and publicity, and communications regulations and statutes. Data is provided for information purposes only and is not intended for trading purposes.

CARF International 6951 East Southpoint Road Tucson, Arizona 85756 USA Toll free (888) 281-6531

CARF International is a group of private, nonprofit companies (including CARF, CARF Canada, and CARF Europe) that accredit health and human services. For more information, please visit www.carf.org.

CONTENTS

Introduction	1
Conformance Action Plan	3
Section 1. ASPIRE to Excellence®	5
Assess the Environment	
A. Leadership	5
B. Governance	17
Set Strategy	<i>2</i> 3
C. Strategic Planning	23
Persons Served and Other Stakeholders—Obtain InputInput	29
D. Input from Persons Served and Other Stakeholders	29
Implement the Plan	33
E. Legal Requirements	
F. Financial Planning and Management	36
G. Risk Management	53
H. Health and Safety	57
I. Workforce Development and Management	76
J. Technology	88
K. Rights of Persons Served	95
L. Accessibility	101
Review Results	105
M. Performance Measurement and Management	105
Effect Change	115
N. Performance Improvement	115
Section 2. Care Process for the Persons Served	121
A. Program/Service Structure	121
B. Residential Communities	
C. Care Process for Specific Diagnostic Categories	184
D. Skin Integrity and Wound Care Standards	
E. Care Process for Personal Supports Services	199
F. Service Delivery Using Information and Communication Technologies	
Section 3. Program Specific Standards	219
A. Adult Day Services	
B. Assisted Living	
C. Person-Centered Long-Term Care Community	240

CONTENTS

D. Home and Community Services	271
E. Case Management	292
F. Independent Senior Living	
G. Personal Supports Services	
H. Continuing Care Retirement Community	
Section 4. Specialty Program Designation Standards	351
A. Dementia Care Specialty Programs	351
B. Stroke Specialty Program	

INTRODUCTION

The 2023 Continuing Care Retirement Community Survey Preparation Workbook is intended for conducting a self-evaluation of your organization in relation to the CARF standards. This document should be used in conjunction with the 2023 Continuing Care Retirement Community Standards Manual. The following guidelines are offered to give you basic perspectives that are essential to the effective use of this document.

- The workbook asks questions in relation to the standards in the standards manual to assist you in assessing your organization's level of conformance. During the survey, conformance to every standard applicable to the programs/services for which you are seeking accreditation is assessed. The standards manual provides detailed information about the applicable standards for each program, service, and specialty program; use this information to determine which questions should be completed based on the programs and services you plan to have surveyed.
- In some cases, the questions may address more than what is required by a literal interpretation of the standards. These questions are provided to suggest actions that would promote full and ongoing conformance to the intent of the standards.
- You are encouraged to use this workbook in the manner that is most valuable to your preparation for a CARF survey. If you choose to comprehensively complete the applicable sections of the workbook, you may find that a response provided earlier in the document addresses the specific questions at hand. Rather than repeating the information, you can reference the earlier response by standard number, topic, page number, or question number to reduce duplication of effort.
- Various types of documentation are needed to demonstrate conformance to the standards. During your self-assessment, you may discover that one document addresses several CARF standards. It is not necessary or desirable to provide copies of the same document for each standard covered by that document. The surveyors will review a document and note all standards that it addresses.
- At the end of each section is a list of examples of the types of documents and other evidence that are typically used to demonstrate conformance to the standards in that section. Based on your organization's practices, other documents or evidence may also be appropriate.
- The Conformance Action Plan template provides a format to identify standards with which the program is not in full conformance, activities to bring the program into full conformance, responsible parties, timelines, etc.
- The utility of this workbook can be enhanced if notations are made beside each item identifying the personnel who can speak to the organization's conformance in that area. This information should then be readily available for reference in directing the survey team to appropriate personnel.
- The completed workbook can also serve as a valuable resource during the survey. The workbook may be referred to or provided to the team for use during the survey. It is your choice whether you share the completed workbook or not. This is your document. It should be used to conduct an honest assessment of your organization's operations in relation to the CARF standards and to plan and implement any corrective actions needed prior to the survey.

Additional Resources

The *CARF Accreditation Sourcebook* guides an organization through the accreditation process and includes information about the application process, survey scheduling, sample survey preparation timetables, and answers to frequently asked questions. It is helpful to organizations seeking accreditation for the first time or to personnel who are unfamiliar with the CARF accreditation process. You can order the *CARF Accreditation Sourcebook* from the CARF online store at **www.carf.org/catalog**. We hope you find this survey preparation workbook useful, and we welcome your comments and suggestions for future editions and trainings. Please see the last page of this publication for information on how to submit your feedback.

CONFORMANCE ACTION PLAN



Conformance Action Plan

Date Progress Noted						
Progress Made						
Time Frame for Completion						
Responsible Party						
Actions to be Taken						
Opportunity for Improvement						
Standard No.						

SECTION 1

ASPIRE to Excellence®

Assess the Environment

A. Leadership

Vhere	e are the responsibilities of each level of leadership defined?
	would surveyors see a demonstration of a person-centered philosophy by: adership?
	adership?

•
icated to
ng:
olders.

Risk management.
Ongoing performance improvement.
Development of corporate responsibilities.
implementation of corporate responsibilities.
Compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.
Ongoing review of the organization's policies in accordance with organizationance decidence.
Health and safety.
Succession planning.

	-	Strategic planning.
	•	Technology planning.
1 .		escribe how leadership makes itself accessible to: Persons served.
	•	Personnel.
	•	Other stakeholders.
5.	De inc	escribe your organization's written plan on cultural competency, diversity, and clusion.
	_	
	Но	ow was the plan developed?
	_	

Cultu	ure.	
Age.		
Gend	der.	
Sexua	al orientation.	
Spirit	tual beliefs.	
Socio	peconomic status.	

•	Language.
•	Race.
•	Other factors, as relevant.
Do	oes the plan include actions to be taken?
Но	ow frequently is the plan reviewed?
W	hen was the last time the plan was updated?
De ■	escribe corporate responsibility efforts at your organization, including: Written ethical codes of conduct in the following areas: Business.

_	Ma	arketing.
_	Со	ontractual relationships.
_	Co	onflicts of interest.
_	Us	e of social media.
_	Sei	rvice delivery, including: Exchange of gifts, money, and gratuities.
	-	Personal fundraising.
	-	Personal property.
	-	Setting boundaries.

	- Witnessing of legal documents.
_	Professional responsibilities.
_	Human resources.
_	Organizational fundraising, if applicable.
_	Prohibition of waste, fraud, abuse, and other wrongdoing.
Wı	ritten procedures to deal with allegations of violations of ethical codes, including A no-reprisal approach for personnel who report these issues.
_	Timeframes that are adequate for prompt consideration.
_	Timeframes that result in timely decisions.

Other stakeholders. Ocacy efforts for the persons served. V your organization demonstrates corporate citizenship.
your organization demonstrates corporate citizenship.
organization is in the United States and receives federal funds, how can owing be demonstrated: olicy on corporate compliance that has been implemented.
lementation of written procedures that address exclusion of individuals entities from federally funded healthcare programs.
umented designation of a staff member to serve as the compliance officer

	Describe the training provided to personnel	on corporate comp	liance.
	Describe your corporate compliance auditin	g activities.	
8.	What resources and education are made availabout and implementing current program st		•
	What mechanisms are in place to share the i	nformation learned	?
Applicable Stan			
	Standard 1.A.9. applies to organizations the support in connection with any program se organizations whose fundraising is conduct separate legal entity, or in connection with	eeking accreditatio ted by a foundatio	n. It does not apply to n, third party, or other
9.	Does the organization directly solicit charita engagement of board members, volunteers, p to conduct fundraising, in connection with t	personnel, or outsid	e consultants hired
		☐ Yes	□ No
	If <i>Yes</i> , are there written procedures impleme. ■ Oversight?	nted that address: — Yes	□ No
	■ Donor:		
	Solicitation?Communication?	☐ Yes	□ No □ No
	- Communication:	— 163	J NO

- Recognition?	☐ Yes	☐ No
- Confidentiality?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Valuing of donations?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Use of donations in accordance with donor intent?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Documentation and recordkeeping?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Use of volunteers in fundraising efforts, if applicable?	☐ Yes	□ No
Where are these procedures documented?		
How do you ensure that these procedures ar	e consistently ir	mplemented?
Explain how initial training on fundraising personnel.	procedures is pr	ovided to appropriate
Explain how ongoing training on fundraisin personnel.	g procedures is	provided to appropriate

- Organizational chart
- Policy on corporate compliance, if applicable
- Documented designation of staff member to serve as the organization's corporate compliance officer
- Written ethical codes of conduct
- Mission and values statements
- A budget
- A strategic plan
- Program outcomes
- Current information on file pertaining to applicable legal and regulatory requirements
- Information related to advocacy activities
- Information related to obtaining input from the persons served
- Surveys, assessments, or reports of input gathered from the persons served, personnel, and other stakeholders
- Written procedures to deal with allegations of violations of ethical codes
- Written procedures related to organizational fundraising, if applicable
- Written procedures that address exclusion of individuals and entities from federally funded healthcare programs
- Succession planning information
- Evidence of review of organization's policies
- Cultural competency and diversity plan
- Management/leadership meeting minutes
- Minutes from governance meetings, if applicable
- Governing documents (bylaws, articles of incorporation, etc.), if applicable

B. Governance

Applicable Standards

These standards apply only to the board vested with legal authority to direct the business and affairs of the organization's corporate entity. These standards may not be applied to bodies lacking governance authority granted by state or provincial corporation laws, such as advisory and community relations boards and management committees.

These standards must be applied to all organizations seeking accreditation for a Continuing Care Retirement Community.

	Continuing Care Retirement Community.		
1.	Describe how your board's governance police. Facilitate ethical governance practices.	cies are implemented	l to:
	 Assure stakeholders that governance is: 		
	 Active in the organization. 		
	 Accountable in the organization. 		
	■ Meet the legal requirements of governance	ce.	
2.	Does your board have policies that address: The selection of the board, including:		
	 Board membership criteria? 	☐ Yes	□ No
	Selection process?	☐ Yes	□ No
	- Exit process?	☐ Yes	□ No
	■ Board member orientation?	☐ Yes	□ No
	■ Board development?	☐ Yes	□ No

•	Board education?		Yes		No
De	escribe these policies.				
	escribe your board's policies on leadership, mmittee chairs.	, inc	luding sele	ection of bo	oard and
_					
Do	o your board's policies regarding board str Board size?				
			Yes		No
	Board composition?	ч	Yes	ч	No
•	Definition of independent, unrelated board representation?		Yes		No
•	Duration of board membership?		Yes		No
•	Board performance, including: - Financial matters, if any, between the members, including:	orga	nization aı	nd individı	ıal board
	- Compensation?		Yes		No
	- Loans?		Yes		No
	- Expense reimbursement?		Yes		No
	- Stock ownership?		Yes		No
	- Other matters of financial interest?		Yes		No
	Use of external advisors or resources, iExternal auditors?		ıding, as a _l Yes	_	No
	- Executive compensation advisors?		Yes		No
	- Other advisors, as needed?		Yes		No
•	Self-assessment of the entire board at least annually?		Yes		No
•	Periodic self-assessment of individual members?		Yes		No

	■ Written conflict-of-interest declaration that is signed at least annually?		Yes	□ No	
	■ Written ethical-code-of-conduct declaration that is signed at least annually?		Yes	□ No	
	■ External interactions?		Yes	☐ No	
	Describe the board's structure and performa	ance	policies.		
3.	What authority and responsibility are delegaby the board?	ited	to the exec	cutive leadership	
	How does the board gain access to personne	:1?			
	How can you demonstrate your organization	ı's sı	apport of g	governance?	
ł.	How are your board meeting agendas planne	ed?			
	What meeting materials are typically provide	ed?			
	How are these materials distributed?				

Does your board oversee committee work		
■ Governance development?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Governance management?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Financial audits?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Executive compensation?	☐ Yes	□ No
Other pertinent activities?	☐ Yes	□ No
If <i>Yes</i> , what other activities are overseen	by committees?	
Explain how governance conducts formal		
performance, including the frequency of re		
performance, including the frequency of re		
Does this review include: A comparison of overall corporate performance to targeted performance levels?	☐ Yes	□ No
Does this review include: • A comparison of overall corporate performance to targeted performance		□ No
Does this review include: A comparison of overall corporate performance to targeted performance levels? A comparison of the executive leadership's performance to targeted	☐ Yes	
 Does this review include: A comparison of overall corporate performance to targeted performance levels? A comparison of the executive leadership's performance to targeted performance levels? 	☐ Yes	
Does this review include: A comparison of overall corporate performance to targeted performance levels? A comparison of the executive leadership's performance to targeted performance levels? Executive leadership:	☐ Yes	□ No
 Does this review include: A comparison of overall corporate performance to targeted performance levels? A comparison of the executive leadership's performance to targeted performance levels? Executive leadership: Professional development? 	☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes	□ No
 Does this review include: A comparison of overall corporate performance to targeted performance levels? A comparison of the executive leadership's performance to targeted performance levels? Executive leadership: Professional development? Professional accomplishments? 	☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes	□ No □ No □ No

	Is the succession plan reviewed at least annually for relevance and updated as needed?		Yes		No
	Describe the process used to review the succeensure that it is updated as needed.	essic	on plan at least ar	ınua	ally and
ó.	What is your total executive compensation pl	nilos	sophy?		
	Is your executive compensation reviewed by an authorized board committee of independent, unrelated board members?		Yes		No
	What does your total executive compensation	ı mi	ix include?		
	What references are used to define your total	exe	cutive compensa	tion	?
	Does your documented process outline:				
	■ Terms of compensation arrangements?		Yes		No
	■ Approval date?		Yes		No
	■ Names of approving board members?		Yes		No
	■ Data used in the compensation decision?		Yes		No
	■ Disclosures of conflict of interest?		Yes		No
	■ Review of these records at least annually?		Yes		No
	Authority of the board members to exercise such actions?		Yes		No

7.	Does your governing board review	ew its governance policies at	least annually?
		☐ Yes	☐ No

- Board organizational chart
- Ethical practices policy
- Board selection and composition policies
- Board leadership policies
- Board structure and performance policies
- Documentation of board self-assessment at least annually
- Individual board member self-assessment documentation
- Conflict-of-interest declarations signed at least annually
- Ethical code of conduct declarations signed at least annually
- Sample board meeting agendas/meeting minutes
- Sample meeting materials
- Executive leadership development and evaluation policies
- Executive compensation policies
- Executive leadership succession plan, reviewed at least annually
- Formal written review of executive leadership performance
- Evidence of review of governance policies at least annually

Set Strategy

C. Strategic Planning

	ne expectations of persons served and other stakeholders are identified information is integrated into the strategic planning process.
Identify how in	nformation on competitors is gathered and analyzed.
	nancial threats and opportunities are identified and how that integrated into the strategic planning process.
How are your o	organization's capabilities integrated into the strategic planning proces

How are social determinants of health considered and integrated into the strategic planning process?
How does your organization consider its relationships with external stakeholders in its strategic planning process?
What regulations are reviewed and why?
What legislative initiatives are currently being reviewed?
How do these regulatory and legislative issues affect your planning process?

effi	scribe how your organization considers the use of technology to support cient operations, effective service delivery, and performance improvement your strategic planning.
	e some examples of how information from your analysis of performance has ected your strategic planning.
Wh	en and by whom was your strategic plan developed?
	plain how input from persons served, personnel, and other stakeholders sed in the development of your strategic plan.
	nat is your process to ensure that the plan accurately reflects your organization's ancial position:
	At the time the plan was written?
,	
,	
•	At projected point(s) in the future?
•	

	respect to allocating resources necessary to support accomplishment plan in the following areas:
	nancial?
- Wo	orkforce?
Explain h	ow goals and priorities are set in the plan.
	itegic plan reviewed at least for relevance?
Describe	your process for reviewing and updating your strategic plan.
with who	how and with whom your strategic plan is shared. How did you determine m it would be shared and that what you share is relevant to the needs of fic group?

- Strategic plan
- Strategic planning documents
- Leadership or management meeting minutes, where strategic planning was discussed
- Financial reports
- Input received from persons served, personnel, and other stakeholders
- Meeting agendas or minutes where strategic plan has been shared with personnel

Persons Served and Other Stakeholders— Obtain Input

D. Input from Persons Served and Other Stakeholders

Describe the ways that you seek input from the persons served.
Describe the ways that you seek input from personnel.
Who are your other key stakeholders?
Describe the ways that you seek input from other stakeholders. Identify the collection method for each stakeholder if it differs.

De	escribe how the input collected has been analyzed.				
	scribe how input has been used in the following areas: Program planning.				
	rrogram planning.				
	Trogram planning.				
	Performance improvement.				
•					
•	Performance improvement.				
•	Performance improvement.				
•	Performance improvement. Strategic planning.				
•	Performance improvement. Strategic planning.				

-	Resource planning.					
•	Workforce planning.					

- Leadership and other meeting minutes, including meetings with persons served
- Written surveys and results
- Strategic planning documents
- Surveys on experience with services from persons served and other stakeholders, such as families/support systems, personnel, board members, funder and referral sources, and other community members
- Information regarding community input and input from persons served

Implement the Plan

E. Legal Requirements

cribe your pro Legal.		,	 <i>0</i>	
Regulatory.				
Confidentiality	:			
Reporting.				
Licensing.				
Contractual.				
Debt covenant	S.			

2.

•	Corporate status.		
•	Rights of the persons served.		
•	Privacy of the persons served.		
•	Employment practices.		
•	Mandatory employee testing.		
wa	mmarize your procedures to guide pers arrants, investigations, and other legal ac e documented.		
Do	you have policies and written procedu	res that address:	
•	Confidential administrative records?	☐ Yes	□ No
•	The records of the persons served?	☐ Yes	□ No
•	Security of all records?	☐ Yes	□ No
•	Confidentiality of records?	☐ Yes	□ No
•	Compliance with applicable laws concerning records?	☐ Yes	□ No

-	Timeframes for documentation in the records of the persons served?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
Н	ow do you ensure that these policies and	d procedures are	consistently implemented	d?
_				
De	escribe the safeguards used to protect a	nd secure:		
•	Confidential administrative records.			
•	The records of the persons served.			

Documentation Examples

The following are examples of the types of documents and other information you should have available to demonstrate conformance to the standards in this section. Note that for some items, evidence of conformance is not required to be in writing. See Appendix A in the standards manual for more information on standards that specifically require written documentation.

- Reports from regulatory agencies
- Reports associated with legal actions
- Reports associated with contractual relationships
- Policies and written procedures regarding administrative records and records of the persons served
- Personnel policies
- Written procedures for responding to various legal actions
- For organizations in the U.S., I-9 information, if applicable

F. Financial Planning and Management

Explain how financial planning and manage Established outcomes for the persons ser	_	a to meet.
 Organizational performance objectives. 		
Explain your budgeting process.		
Is your budget prepared prior to the start of the fiscal year?	☐ Yes	□ No
Does the budget reflect:		
■ Input from various stakeholders, as required?	☐ Yes	□ No
Comparison to historical performance?	☐ Yes	□ No
Consideration of necessary cash flow?	☐ Yes	□ No
Consideration of external environment information?	☐ Yes	□ No
Does the budget include documentation of:		
■ Reasonable projections of:		
- Revenues?	☐ Yes	☐ No
- Expenses?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Capital expenditures?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Approval by the identified authority?	☐ Yes	☐ No

rformance and report
□ No
□ No
□ No
oups?
□ No
nues and expenses.

■ I	Financial challenges?
ı I	Financial opportunities?
- - 1 1	Management information?
	v does your organization identify and review external: Financial trends?
- I	Financial challenges?
- I	Financial opportunities?
- I	industry trends?
хp	lain how your organization identifies areas needing improvement.

lo	w does your organization:
	Review financial solvency?
	Develop remediation plans, if appropriate?
•	our organization has related entities, where and how do you document:
•	our organization has related entities, where and how do you document: The types of relationships.
•	·
	·
	The types of relationships.
	The types of relationships.
	The types of relationships.

	Contractual responsibilities between the related entities and the organization
-	Other responsibilities between the related entities and the organization.
-	Any material transactions.
	scribe your fiscal policies and written procedures, including internal control ctices.
	scribe your initial and ongoing training related to fiscal policies and written ocedures for appropriate personnel.

ıt l	resentative sample of bills of persons served is conducted and documented east quarterly.
Но	w do you ensure that the bills reviewed constitute a representative sample?
Exp	plain how the review addresses:
•	Whether bills are accurate.
•	Trends.
_	Areas pooding improvement
	Areas needing improvement.
•	Actions to be taken.
•	our organization is responsible for fee structures, identify the basis of the structure.

Ex	plain your organization's:				
•	Review of fee schedules.				
-	Comparison of fee schedules.				
•	Disclosures to the persons served of all fe	es fo	or which t	they are responsible.	
Н	ow do you determine when modifications t	to th	e fee sch	edule are necessary?	
	rplain your process for obtaining an annual nancial statements by an independent accou			dit of your organiza	tion's
Ca	an you provide documentation to the surve	y te	am of:		
•	The results of annual financial statement review or audit, including any resulting recommendations?	-	Yes	□ No	
•	Management's response to recommendations, if applicable, including corrective actions taken				
	or reasons why corrective actions will not be taken?		Yes	☐ No	

	Describe the process for reviewing any recommendations that have resulted from a review or audit, if applicable.
	Describe the corrective actions taken in response to recommendations, if applicable.
10.	If your organization takes responsibility for funds of the persons served, describe in what capacity.
	Describe your procedures for: Identification of the role of the organization.
	■ How the persons served give informed consent for expenditure of funds.
	■ How the persons served have access to their funds.
	■ How funds are segregated for accounting purposes.

	How you ensure that funds are used only for designated and appropriate pur
	When interest-bearing accounts are used, how interest is credited to the account of the persons served.
	How accounts are reconciled and how this reconciliation is provided to the persons served at least monthly.
	How funds will be returned to the persons served upon transition/exit from the program.
	Communication of these procedures to the persons served.
0	ow do you ensure that these procedures are consistently implemented?
	escribe the timing of the audit and how you ensure it is completed within the neframe specified.
1	

Long-Term Financial Planning

	does the organization address:
	argin/profitability, including:
-	Revenue related to the persons served?
_	Expenses related to the persons served?
-	Earnings related to businesses not directly related to the persons served (ancillary revenue) and third-party sources of revenue?
_	Expense management.
. I i.	quidity?
■ L10	quiuny:
_	
_	
■ Ca	apital structure to ensure:
■ Ca	
_	Financial flexibility?
_	Financial flexibility?

 Use of financial ratio information 	?	
■ Bond covenant compliance?		
Describe your organization's investm	ent policy.	
Describe your organization's investm	ent policy.	
Describe your organization's investment	ent policy.	
Does this investment policy address:		
Does this investment policy address: Portfolio return?	☐ Yes	□ No
Does this investment policy address: Portfolio return? Portfolio risk?	□ Yes □ Yes	□ No
Does this investment policy address: Portfolio return?	☐ Yes ☐ Yes ☐ Yes	□ No
Does this investment policy address: Portfolio return? Portfolio risk?	□ Yes □ Yes	□ No
Does this investment policy address: Portfolio return? Portfolio risk? Restricted cash reserves?	☐ Yes ☐ Yes ☐ Yes ☐ Yes	□ No □ No □ No

How do you balance risk versus return?
Describe your organization's process for reviewing investment results at least annually.
Describe your organization's cash management strategy.
How does your organization age receivables and how long do you keep a receivable on the books before you write it off?
Describe your organization's process for managing accounts payable.

	How do you ensure that your organization's cash management strategy is reviewed at least annually for relevance and is updated as needed?
6.	How does your organization collect and evaluate key performance indicators?
	How does your organization utilize this information?
7.	Describe how the organization makes audited financial statements and footnotes available to prospective persons served.
	What systems does the organization have in place to be able to make audited financia statements and footnotes available to current persons served?
	What other stakeholders have access to the audited financial statements and footnotes

Do	oes your organization conduct a cap	ital needs a	ssessment	that addre	esses:
-	Existing capital assets?		Yes		No
•	Future capital asset needs?		Yes		No
W	here and how is the capital needs as	sessment d	ocumente	d?	
wł	escribe the review and update proce no is involved, the frequency at which at frequency.				
	ve some examples of how your orga ocess considers: The results of the capital needs ass		ong-range	financial _]	olanning
•	Debt management risks.				
•	Investment risks.				

- Personnel.			
Other stakeholder	ro		
- Other stakeholder	rs.		
•	-	ge financial pla	n that includes:
m: 1: 6 : 1	asset repair	ge financial pla	n that includes: ☐ No
Timelines for capital and replacement pro	asset repair jects?	-	
Timelines for capital and replacement produces Cash flow projection asset needs?	asset repair jects? s for capital	☐ Yes	□ No
and replacement projection asset needs? Sources of funding to	asset repair jects? s for capital	☐ Yes	□ No
Timelines for capital and replacement pro Cash flow projection asset needs? Sources of funding to	asset repair jects? s for capital support identified and replacement?	☐ Yes☐ Yes	□ No □ No
Timelines for capital and replacement produces of funding to a Fixed asset repair	asset repair jects? s for capital support identified and replacement? owth?	☐ Yes ☐ Yes needs related to ☐ Yes	□ No □ No □ No
Timelines for capital and replacement produces of funding to a Fixed asset repair - Organizational gr	asset repair jects? s for capital support identified and replacement? owth? obligations?	☐ Yes ☐ Yes needs related to ☐ Yes ☐ Yes ☐ Yes	No No No No No No
Timelines for capital and replacement produced and replacement produced asset needs? Sources of funding to a Fixed asset repair Organizational gray Management of debt Management of investigations.	asset repair jects? s for capital support identified and replacement? owth? obligations? stment risks?	☐ Yes ☐ Yes needs related to ☐ Yes ☐ Yes ☐ Yes ☐ Yes ☐ Yes ☐ Yes	No No No No No No No No
Timelines for capital and replacement produces of funding to a Fixed asset repair - Organizational grunding to Management of debt	asset repair jects? s for capital support identified and replacement? owth? obligations? stment risks?	☐ Yes ☐ Yes needs related to ☐ Yes ☐ Yes ☐ Yes ☐ Yes ☐ Yes ☐ Yes	No No No No No No No No

How will you demonstrate or verify for the survey team that the long-range financial plan is implemented?
Describe how the long-range financial plan is shared with each of the following groups, as relevant to their needs: Persons served.
■ Personnel.
■ Other stakeholders.
How do you ensure that the long-range financial plan is reviewed at least annually for relevance?

How do you ensure that the plan is updated as needed?				

Documentation Examples

The following are examples of the types of documents and other information you should have available to demonstrate conformance to the standards in this section. Note that for some items, evidence of conformance is not required to be in writing. See Appendix A in the standards manual for more information on standards that specifically require written documentation.

- Annual approved budgets
- Reviews of financial results
- Financial audits or reviews
- Written procedures for handling the funds of the persons served, if applicable
- Documented reviews of records of persons served
- Fiscal policies and written procedures
- Documentation of related entities, if applicable
- Financial remediation plans, if appropriate
- Fee schedules, if applicable
- Results of annual financial statement review or audit, including, if applicable, resulting recommendations and management's response
- Cost analysis of services provided
- Financial reports
- Cash management policies
- Documented review of accuracy of billing for the services provided, if applicable
- Investment policy
- Capital needs assessment
- Long-range financial plan

G. Risk Management

De	scribe your risk management plan.
Но	w does it address:
	Identification of loss exposures?
•	Analysis of loss exposures?
•	Identification of how to rectify identified exposures?
•	Implementation of actions to reduce risk?
•	Monitoring of actions taken to reduce risk?
•	Reporting of results of actions taken to reduce risks?

Is your risk management plan reviewed at least annually for relevance?	☐ Yes	□ No
Describe your process for reviewing the riit is updated as needed.		
Is your insurance package reviewed:		
■ For adequacy?	☐ Yes	☐ No
At least annually?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Describe how your insurance package pro	tects all assets.	
Does your insurance package include:		
Property coverage?	☐ Yes	□ No
Liability coverage?	☐ Yes	□ No
• Other coverage, as appropriate?	☐ Yes	☐ No
What other coverage is included?		

Describe the process you use to determine that least annually.	ne adequacy of	your insurance package
Where can the surveyors locate your written	ı procedures foi	communications?
Do your procedures for communications in		
■ Media relations?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Social media?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Are any of the services delivered by the proganother organization or individual?	gram provided ι	under contract with
	☐ Yes	☐ No
If <i>Yes</i> , describe how reviews of the contracte they are documented.	d services are c	onducted and where
Are reviews performed at least annually?	☐ Yes	□ No
Do the reviews include: Assessment of performance in relation to the scope and requirements of their		
contracts?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Adherence to all applicable policies and procedures of the organization?	☐ Yes	□ No
 Conformance to CARF standards applicable to the services they provide? 	☐ Yes	□ No

Documentation Examples

The following are examples of the types of documents and other information you should have available to demonstrate conformance to the standards in this section. Note that for some items, evidence of conformance is not required to be in writing. See Appendix A in the standards manual for more information on standards that specifically require written documentation.

- Risk management plan
- Reports from regulatory agencies
- Reports associated with legal actions
- Performance improvement plans
- Personnel policies manual
- Insurance policies
- Financial reports
- Risk analysis reports
- Written procedures regarding media relations and social media
- Reviews of contracted services

H. Health and Safety

1.	Beyond inspections and tests of emergency procedures, what are some ways in which you strive to provide a healthy and safe environment?					
	List any health or safety concerns that have been identified.					
	Describe the steps that will be taken to address those problems and the personnel responsible.					
	If no physical locations are used for administration or delivery of any services, describe how you address health and safety of the environment in the location of the persons served.					
•	Describe your procedures to promote the safety of persons served and personnel.					

ris.	ks?
	scribe the competency-based training provided to personnel at orientation in t
	Health and safety practices.
•	Identification of unsafe environmental factors.
•	Emergency procedures.
	Evacuation procedures, if appropriate.
•	Identification of critical incidents.
•	Reporting of critical incidents.
•	Medication management, if appropriate.

Reducing physical risks.
Workplace violence.
here is the training provided to personnel at orientation documented?
escribe the competency-based training for personnel at least annually in the lowing areas: Health and safety practices.
Identification of unsafe environmental factors.
Emergency procedures.
Evacuation procedures, if appropriate.
Identification of critical incidents.

	rting of critical incidents.
Medi	cation management, if appropriate.
Redu	cing physical risks.
Work	xplace violence.
nere i	s the training provided to personnel at least annually documented?
	e your emergency procedures in the following areas:
Fire.	e your emergency procedures in the following areas:
Bom	

	Utility failures.
•	Medical emergencies.
•	Violent or other threatening situations.
De	escribe how these procedures meet the requirements of applicable authorities.
Но	ow do you ensure that they are appropriate to your area?
	ow do your evacuation procedures address: When evacuation is appropriate?
•	Complete evacuation from your physical facility?
•	When sheltering in place is appropriate?

Safety of all persons involved?
Accounting for all persons involved?
Temporary shelter, when applicable?
Identification of essential services?
Continuation of essential services?
Emergency phone numbers?
Notification of the appropriate emergency authorities?
Communication with relevant stakeholders?

Describe how you ensure that evacuation	routes are accessil	ole.
How did you ensure that evacuation rout Persons served?	es are understanda	ible to:
Personnel?		
 Other stakeholders, including visitors 	?	
Describe how you test your emergency p Methods used.	rocedures, includir	ng:
■ How often.		
A 4 4 £	1 1	
Are tests of each emergency procedure co On each shift?	onducted: Yes	□ No
At each location?	☐ Yes	□ No
Do the tests include, as appropriate to the procedure, a complete actual or simulated physical evacuation drill?	☐ Yes	□ No

יע	oes the analysis address:		D 11
	Areas needing improvement?	☐ Yes	☐ No
	Actions to address the improvements needed?	☐ Yes	□ No
•	Implementation of the actions?	☐ Yes	☐ No
•	Necessary education and training of personnel?	☐ Yes	□ No
-	Whether the actions taken accomplished the intended results?	☐ Yes	□ No
	re the tests of emergency procedures and the analyses documented?	☐ Yes	□ No
	oes the program provide any services in controlled/operated by the organization		
	private homes?	ii, odeii us locutioli	o in the community
		Yes	☐ No
If	Yes, describe what services are provided	l in these locations	i.

	the written procedures include: Consideration of any emergency procedures that may already be in place at the service delivery site?		Yes	□ No
	The physical environment, including	_	163	- 110
	accessibility, of the service delivery site?		Yes	☐ No
-	Basic needs in the event of an emergency?		Yes	☐ No
	Actions to be taken in the event of an emergency?		Yes	□ No
•	Provisions for communication by personnel while providing services regarding decisions to continue or discontinue services?		Yes	□ No
W	here are these procedures documented?			
	w to consistently implement these procedu			aware of and know rv?
_	escribe how your organization has ready acc	res	if necessa	
_		res	if necessa	
	escribe how your organization has ready acc	res	if necessa	
	escribe how your organization has ready acc First aid expertise.	res	if necessa	
	escribe how your organization has ready acc First aid expertise.	res	if necessa	

•	Relevant emergency information on:
	- Persons served.
	- Personnel.
10. D	Describe your written procedures for critical incidents, including:
•	
•	Use of seclusion.
•	Use of restraint.
•	Incidents involving injury.
•	Communicable diseases.
•	Infection control.

ggression or violence.
se and unauthorized possession of weapons.
andering.
opement.
ehicular accidents.
ohazardous accidents.
nauthorized use and possession of legal or illegal substances.
buse.

•	Neglect.
•	Suicide and attempted suicide.
•	Sexual assault.
•	Overdose.
•	Other sentinel events.
Но	ow do you address prevention of critical incidents?
Но	ow are critical incidents reported?
Но	ow are critical incidents documented?

Actions to address the improvements ne	eded.	
Implementation of the actions.		
Whether the actions taken accomplished	d the intended r	esults.
Necessary education and training of per	sonnel.	
Prevention of recurrence.		
Internal reporting requirements.		
External reporting requirements.		
re there written procedures in place regardiseases?	ding infections	and communicable
	☐ Yes	☐ No
to these procedures address:		
Prevention, including appropriate use of standard or universal precautions?	☐ Yes	□ No
Identification?	☐ Yes	☐ No

	•	Reporting?	☐ Yes	☐ No
	•	Investigation?	☐ Yes	□ No
	•	Control/mitigation?	☐ Yes	□ No
	Но	ow do you ensure that these procedures an	e consistently i	mplemented?
	_			
		escribe how training on these procedures Persons served.	is provided for	
	•	Personnel.		
	•	Other stakeholders.		
13.		you provide transportation services for pe e surveyors will find evidence of: Appropriate licensing of all drivers.	ersons served, c	lescribe where and how
	•	Review of driving records.		
	•	Insurance for vehicles and passengers.		

5	Safety features in vehicles.
_	
5	Safety equipment.
_	
<i>I</i>	Accessibility.
_	
]	Training of drivers in your organization's transportation procedures.
_	
]	Training of drivers on the unique needs of the persons served.
_	
7	Nritten emergency procedures available in the vehicle(s).
_	
(Communication devices available in the vehicle(s).
I	First aid supplies available in the vehicle(s).
_	

■ If you contract transportation services, is there a documented review of contract at least annually that includes of all the above elements?	ts Yes	□ No
Describe the process for self-inspections of they are done.	your facilities, in	cluding how often
Are self-inspections conducted at least semiannually on each shift?	☐ Yes	□ No
In the written report of self-inspections, are	_	
■ Areas covered?	☐ Yes	□ No
Recommendations for improvement?	☐ Yes	□ No
Action plans for improvement?Results of the actions taken?	☐ Yes	□ No
. Are comprehensive health and safety inspe	ctions conducted	at least annually?
1 , 1	☐ Yes	□ No
Does this inspection result in a written report?	□ Yes	□ No
Describe the process for annual external her including:	alth and safety ins	spections of your facil
■ What areas are covered.		

How you determined what areas to inclu	ıde to ensure a c	omprehensive inspection.
Who conducts the inspection.		
How the inspector is external to your or qualifications are.	ganization and v	what the inspector's
n the written report of external inspections Areas covered?	s, are the followi	ng addressed:
Recommendations for improvement?	☐ Yes	□ No
Action plans for improvement?	☐ Yes	□ No
Results of the actions taken?	☐ Yes	□ No
Describe your written procedures for safe h nazardous materials and where these proced		•
How do you ensure that these procedures a	re consistently ir	mplemented?

- Health and safety policies and procedures
- Health and safety training information
- Inspection report from an external authority and corrective actions, if any recommendation were noted
- Self-inspection reports and follow-up, including response to recommendations
- Written emergency procedures
- Written evidence of unannounced tests of emergency procedures and corrective actions, if any recommendations were noted
- Written incident procedures and copies of incident reports
- Written procedures that address safety of persons served and personnel when services are provided in locations that are not owned/leased or controlled/operated by the organization
- Documentation showing all incidents are reviewed and analyzed to identify trends and an action plan established to reduce risks
- Records of training for personnel on incident reporting
- Written procedures regarding infections and communicable diseases
- Medication management procedures, if applicable
- Procedures for the use of standard or universal precautions
- Documentation of provision of competency-based safety training for personnel
- Minutes of safety committee meetings
- A list of personnel trained in safety techniques
- A list of personnel and others on the safety committee
- Information on vehicles and drivers, if applicable
- Copies of licenses and certificates when applicable
- Accident reporting requirements
- Written emergency procedures available in vehicles that are used to transport persons served, if applicable
- Transportation procedures, if applicable
- Reviews of contracted transportation services, if applicable
- Documentation of safety training for persons served
- Written procedures for safe handling, storage, and disposal of hazardous materials

2.

I. Workforce Development and Management

Does your workforce include:			
■ Full-time employees?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
■ Part-time employees?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
■ Contractors?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
■ Independent contractors?	☐ Yes	□ No	
■ Per diem workers?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
■ Volunteers?	☐ Yes	□ No	
■ Peer support specialists?	☐ Yes	□ No	
■ Students?	☐ Yes	□ No	
Other groups or categories of workers?	☐ Yes	□ No	
For other groups or categories of worker	s, if <i>Yes</i> , please o	lescribe:	
Explain how the organization's workforce d reflect the organization's: Mission.	evelopment and	management practices	
■ Culture.			

Person-centered philosophy.
Performance measurement and management system.
Risk management plan.
Strategic plan.
scribe how your organization's ongoing workforce planning includes:
Workforce analysis.
Written job descriptions.

Review and update of written job descrineeds and/or the requirements of extern		dance with organizational
Recruitment.		
Selection.		
Retention.		
Succession planning.		
o you have written procedures that address		
Backgrounds of the workforce in theCriminal checks?	following area ☐ Yes	s, if required:
- Immunizations?	☐ Yes	□ No
- Fingerprinting?	☐ Yes	□ No
- Drug testing?	☐ Yes	☐ No
- Vulnerable population checks?	☐ Yes	□ No

		- Driving records?		Yes		No
	-	The credentials of all applicable workforcertification, registration, and education		(including licens	ure	,
		- With primary sources?		Yes		No
		 In all states/provinces or other jurisdictions where the workforce will deliver services? 		Yes		No
	_	Fitness for duty, if required?		Yes		No
•	Ac	etions to be taken in response to the info		ation received cor Yes		rning: No
	_	Background checks?				
	_	Credentials verification?		Yes		No
	-	Fitness for duty?	ч	Yes	ч	No
		meframes for verification of background cluding: Prior to the delivery of services to the				·
		persons served or to the organization?		Yes		No
	_	Throughout employment?		Yes		No
W	her	re are these procedures documented?				
Н	ow (do you ensure that the written procedur	es a	re consistently in	ıple	emented?
	low	ribe the organization's onboarding and eving areas: rientation that addresses the organizatio Mission.		gement activities	in	each of the

-	Culture.
_	Person-centered philosophy.
_	Performance measurement and management system.
_	Risk management plan.
_	Strategic plan.
_	Other organizational planning efforts.
_	Workforce policies and procedures.
Oı	n-the-job training.

	Position performance expectations.
	Communication systems and expectations.
l i	individuals in the workforce, including:
l i	re examples of how the organization promotes engagement through respect for individuals in the workforce, including: Open communication.
1 i	individuals in the workforce, including:
1 i	individuals in the workforce, including: Open communication.
1 i	individuals in the workforce, including: Open communication.

Mechanism(s) to provide favorable and constructive feedback? Mechanism(s) to address concerns? Yes No Job postings? Yes No Promotion? Yes No Disciplinary action? Yes No Separation? Yes No Labor relations, if applicable? Yes No Prevention of harassment?			
Mechanism(s) to provide favorable and constructive feedback? Mechanism(s) to address concerns? Yes No Job postings? Yes No Promotion? Yes No Disciplinary action? Yes No Separation? Yes No Labor relations, if applicable? Yes No Prevention of harassment? Yes No	Benefits.		
Mechanism(s) to provide favorable and constructive feedback? Mechanism(s) to address concerns? Yes No Job postings? Yes No Promotion? Yes No Disciplinary action? Yes No Separation? Yes No Labor relations, if applicable? Yes No Prevention of harassment?			
and constructive feedback?			
and constructive feedback?		tten procedures	that address, at a
Job postings?	Mechanism(s) to provide favorable	☐ Yes	☐ No
Promotion?	Mechanism(s) to address concerns?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Disciplinary action?	Job postings?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Separation?	Promotion?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Labor relations, if applicable? ☐ Yes ☐ No Prevention of harassment? ☐ Yes ☐ No	Disciplinary action?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Prevention of harassment?	Separation?	☐ Yes	☐ No
	Labor relations, if applicable?	☐ Yes	☐ No
are the policies and written procedures made accessible to the workfor	Prevention of harassment?	☐ Yes	☐ No
	are the policies and written procedures	s made accessibl	e to the workford
			ien there are cha
is the mechanism for notification of the workforce when there are chaicies and procedures that they should be aware of?			

Documentation of competencies:
- To support the organization in the accomplishment of its mission and go
- To meet the needs of the persons served.
Documented assessment of competencies.
Documentation of timeframes/frequencies related to the competency assessment process.
Competency development, including the provision of resources.
Performance appraisal.
Education and training.

•	Involvement of the person being appraised?	☐ Yes	□ No
•	Documentation requirements?	☐ Yes	□ No
•	Timeframes/frequencies related to the performance appraisal process?	☐ Yes	□ No
•	Measurable goals?	☐ Yes	□ No
•	Sources of input?	☐ Yes	□ No
•	Opportunities for development?	☐ Yes	□ No
W	here are these procedures documented	?	
	escribe the performance appraisal proceoups that comprise your workforce.	ess with considera	tion of the different
Н	ow do you ensure that the written proce	edures are consiste	ently implemented?
H ₀	ow does the organization ensure that th Implement the plans of the persons se	-	workforce to:
•	Ensure the safety of persons served?		

•	Meet the performance expectations of the organization?
	escribe how you monitor the workforce to ensure it is adequate to address the eas above.
_	
_	
TA76	
	escribe the organization's process for addressing the provision of services by the orkforce consistent with relevant: Regulatory requirements.
	orkforce consistent with relevant:
	orkforce consistent with relevant:
•	Regulatory requirements.
	Regulatory requirements.
•	Drkforce consistent with relevant: Regulatory requirements. Licensure requirements.
•	Regulatory requirements. Licensure requirements.
	Regulatory requirements. Licensure requirements. Registration requirements.

Prof	fessional degrees.
—— Trai	ning to maintain established competency levels.
On-	the-job training requirements.
	oes the organization's succession planning address: uture workforce needs?
Iden	ntification of key positions?
Iden	ntification of the competencies required by key positions?
Revi	iew of talent in the current workforce?
Iden	ntification of workforce readiness?

Gap analysis?
Strategic development?

- Documented description of the composition of the workforce
- Written job descriptions
- Written procedures that address verification of backgrounds; credentials; fitness for duty, if required; timeframes; and actions to be taken in response to information received
- Workforce policies and written procedures
- Documentation of competencies, competency assessments, and associated timeframes
- Written procedures for performance appraisals
- Succession planning information

J. Technology

I	Hardware.
	Software.
_	
	Communication technologies.
_	Sensitive data.
_	Services purchased or contracted.
_	Assistive technology.
-	v does the leadership support and participate in this assessment?

	Personnel.		
	Other stakeholders.		
D _i	oes the organization have a technology and Its current use of technology and data?	d system plan t	hat is based on:
	Identification of gaps and opportunities in the use of technology?	☐ Yes	□ No
D	oes the technology and system plan includ	e:	
	Goals?	☐ Yes	☐ No
	Priorities?	☐ Yes	☐ No
	Technology acquisition?	☐ Yes	☐ No
	Technology maintenance?	☐ Yes	☐ No
	Technology replacement?	☐ Yes	☐ No
	Resources needed to accomplish the goals?	☐ Yes	□ No
	Timeframes?	☐ Yes	☐ No
	escribe how the plan was developed based chnology and data and identified gaps and		

How w	ill you demonstrate or verify for the survey team that this plan is implemented?
	ome examples that demonstrate how the technology and system plan supports: business processes of the organization.
■ Pro	tection of sensitive data.
■ Effi	cient operations.
■ Effe	ective service delivery.
■ Acc	ess to services.

Performance improvement.		
Describe how the technology and system plaplan.	n aligns with	the organization's strategi
What is the process to ensure that the technology annually for relevance and updated as needed		em plan is reviewed at lea
Has the organization implemented policies a n the following areas: Acceptable use?	nd procedure	es related to technology
•	_	
Backup/recovery?	☐ Yes	□ No
Business continuity/disaster recovery?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Security, including:	□ V	D Na
- Access management?	☐ Yes	□ No
Audit capabilities?	☐ Yes	□ No
 Data export and transfer capabilities? 	☐ Yes	☐ No
 Decommissioning of physical hardware and data destruction? 	☐ Yes	☐ No
 Protection from malicious activity? 	☐ Yes	☐ No
Remote access and support?	☐ Yes	☐ No
 Updates, configuration management, and change control? 	☐ Yes	☐ No

W	here are these policies documented?				
	ow does the organization ensure that these applemented?	poli	cies and proced	lures	are consistently
	escribe how the organization tests its proce ecovery, including methods used and how o			contir	nuity/disaster
A	re these tests conducted at least annually?		Yes		No
A	re the tests and the analyses documented?		Yes		No
Ex	xplain how information gathered from tests	s is a	nalyzed.		
_					
_					
D	oes the analysis address:				
•	Effectiveness?		Yes		No
•	Areas needing improvement?		Yes		No
•	Actions to address the improvements needed?		Yes		No
•	Implementation of the actions?		Yes		No
•	Whether the actions taken accomplished the intended results?		Yes		No
•	Necessary education and training of personnel?		Yes		No

	ribe the training provided to personnel: n cybersecurity, including:
-	Initial training.
	Ongoing training.
_	Ongoing training.
ı O -	n the technology used in performance of their job duties, including: Initial training.
	Initial training.
	Initial training.

- Technology and system plan
- Policies and procedures on technology use, backup/recovery, business continuity/ disaster recovery, and security
- Documentation of business continuity/disaster recovery tests and analyses
- Documentation of training provided to personnel
- Evidence of ongoing assessments of the organization's use of technology and data
- Input from persons served, personnel, and other stakeholders regarding the organization's use of technology

K. Rights of Persons Served

	n your policies on the rights of persons served in the following areas: nfidentiality of information.
Pri	vacy.
	eedom from: Abuse.
_	Financial or other exploitation.
_	Retaliation.
_	Humiliation.
_	Neglect.

	plain how your organization gives the person served access to information ufficient time to make decisions.
Hov	w do the persons served gain access to their records?
Hov	w are they informed of this process?
witl	scribe your processes for informed consent or refusal or expression of choice and and and and and and are consent regarding: Service delivery.
=]	Release of information.
• •	Concurrent services.
-	
- (Composition of service delivery team.
-	

•	Involvement in research projects, if applicable.
	plain how persons served have access or referral to: Legal entities for representation.
•	Self-help support services.
•	Advocacy support services.
	you have research projects in which persons served are involved, describe the search guidelines and ethics practiced.
Но	ow does your organization deal with allegations of infringements of a person's rights
_	

xplain how rights are communicated in a way that is understandable, available all times, and shared with persons served in your organization prior to or at the start of service delivery.
persons are served in your program longer than one year, how do you ensure th review of rights is done at least annually?
rescribe your formal complaint policy, including how your organization defines formal complaint.
rescribe how the complaint procedure addresses:

	How the complaint will be resolved.
	Levels of review including the availability of external review.
	Timeframes that are adequate for prompt consideration and result in timely decisions.
	Written notification regarding actions to be taken.
	Rights and responsibilities of each party.
	Availability of advocates or other assistance.
	The ease of availability to the person served of complaint procedures and, if applicable, forms.
.c	ow do you know that the information provided is understandable to persons served

1	Are all formal complaints documented?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
]	s a documented analysis of all formal comp	olaints conducte	ed at least annually?	
		☐ Yes	☐ No	
7	Where is the analysis documented?			
-				
_				
t	Explain how the review and analysis tracks rends, areas needing improvement, actions needed, implementation of the actions, and he intended results.	taken to addre	ss the improvements	
_				

- Policies promoting the rights of the persons served
- Policy and procedures for formal complaints
- Definition of a formal complaint
- Information regarding personnel training on rights of persons served, informed consent, complaint/grievance procedures, etc.
- Handbook for persons served, orientation materials, updated information regarding rights
- Records of the persons served showing informed consent
- Conflict resolution information
- Grievance and appeal process
- Documentation of formal complaints received
- Documentation showing review and analysis of formal complaints at least annually
- Action plan or changes made to improve performance and to reduce complaints
- External and internal investigation reports and related corrective action plans
- Documentation that rights of persons served are reviewed at least annually with the persons served, if applicable.

L. Accessibility

ersons serv	red?					
ersonnel?						
Other stakel	nolders?					
	, if any, you h	nave identifi	ed in the foll	lowing area	ıs:	
		nave identifi	ed in the fol	owing area	is:	
the barriers architecture		nave identifi	ed in the fol	owing area	is:	
Architecture		nave identifi	ed in the fol	owing area	is:	
Architecture		nave identifi	ed in the fol	lowing area	is:	
Architecture		nave identifi	ed in the fol	lowing area	is:	
Architecture		nave identifi	ed in the fol	lowing area	is:	
chitecture		nave identifi	ed in the fol	owing area	is:	

Е	Employment.
_	
C	Communication.
_	
Т	Pechnology.
T	ransportation.
_	
(Community integration, as appropriate.
pl he	ain how you received ongoing input from persons served, personnel, and r stakeholders about barriers they have identified.
	cribe the process you have in place for identifying barriers in the above areas n ongoing basis.

П	Have you implemented an accessibility plan that addresses all identified barriers?					
	☐ Yes ☐ No					
Н	How have you addressed:					
•						
_						
	Timelines?					
_						
L	o the accessibility plan payiowed at least appualty?					
18	s the accessibility plan reviewed at least annually? ☐ Yes ☐ No					
т 1						
■	How do you address: Progress made in the removal of identified barriers?					
-	Areas needing improvement?					
V	What is your process for updating the accessibility plan as needed?					
	Describe how you address reasonable accommodations when requested, including now are they reviewed and decided upon.					
_						
_						

Is this process documented?	☐ Yes	□ No			
What are some examples of reasonable accommodations you have made?					

- Written accessibility plan
- Identification of accessibility barriers
- Review of accessibility plan at least annually
- Requests for reasonable accommodations
- Documentation regarding reasonable accommodations that have been provided
- Meeting minutes
- Information regarding leadership advocacy activities
- If virtual access to services is provided, policies/procedures to ensure accessibility and accommodations

Review Results

M. Performance Measurement and Management

		fy some examples of how the organization's leadership demonstrates ntability for performance measurement and management in:
•		rvice delivery.
	_	
		siness functions.
-	_	isiness ranctions.
	e de	ibe how the organization identifies gaps and opportunities in preparation for evelopment or review of a performance measurement and management plan, ling consideration of:
	e de cluc In	
ino	e de cluc In	evelopment or review of a performance measurement and management plan, ling consideration of: put from:
ino	e de cluc In	evelopment or review of a performance measurement and management plan, ling consideration of: put from: Persons served.
inc	e de cluc In	evelopment or review of a performance measurement and management plan, ling consideration of: put from: Persons served.

The characteristics of the persons serve	ed.	
Expected results.		
Extenuating and influencing factors that	at may impact res	sults.
The comparative data available.		
Communication of performance information	nation.	
Technology to support implementation and management plan.	of the performa	nce measurement
and management plan.		
as the organization implemented a perform that addresses the following: Collection of relevant data on the characteristics of the persons served?	rmance measure	ment and management □ No
For each program/service seeking accrefor service delivery objectives, including		
 Results achieved for the persons served (effectiveness)? 	☐ Yes	□ No
 Experience of services received and other feedback from the persons served? 	☐ Yes	□ No

	 Experience of services and other feedback from other stakeholders? 	☐ Yes	☐ No
	 Resources used to achieve results for the persons served (efficiency)? 	☐ Yes	☐ No
	- Service access?	☐ Yes	☐ No
•	The collection of data about the persons so – The beginning of services?	erved at:	☐ No
	 Appropriate intervals during services? 	☐ Yes	☐ No
	- The end of services?	☐ Yes	☐ No
	Point(s) in time following services?	☐ Yes	☐ No
•	Identification of priority measures determined by the organization for business function objectives?	□ Yes	□ No
•	The extent to which the data collected measure what they are intended to measure (validity)?	☐ Yes	□ No
•	The process for obtaining data:		
	In a consistent manner (reliability)?	☐ Yes	☐ No
	- That will be complete?	☐ Yes	☐ No
	- That will be accurate?	☐ Yes	☐ No
•	Extenuating and influencing factors that may impact results?	☐ Yes	☐ No
•	Timeframes for the:		
	Analysis of data?	☐ Yes	☐ No
	- Communication of results?	☐ Yes	☐ No
•	How:		
	- Data are collected?	☐ Yes	☐ No
	- Data are analyzed?	☐ Yes	☐ No
	 Performance improvement plans are developed? 	☐ Yes	☐ No
	 Performance improvement plans are implemented? 	☐ Yes	☐ No
	 Performance information is communicated? 	☐ Yes	☐ No

	escribe the process used to review the perform at least annually for relevance.	rma	ance meas	urement aı	nd management
Н	ow do you ensure that the plan is updated a	s ne	eeded?		
	ow do you ensure that the performance meanth thoroughly and consistently implemented.	asuı	ement and	d managen	nent plan
m	oes the organization have documented obje easure results achieved for the persons serv rvice seeking accreditation?				
			Yes		No
	oes the identified performance indicator(s) clude the following:	for	each prog	ram seekir	ng accreditation
•	To whom the indicator(s) will be applied?		Yes		No
•	The person(s)/position(s) responsible for collecting the data?		Yes		No
•	The source(s) from which data will be collected?		Yes		No
•	Identification of relevant timeframes				
	for collection of data?		Yes		No

	hieved for the persons served (effectivenes	SS) W(ere cnosen	
me	oes the organization have documented obj easure experience of services received and r each program/service seeking accreditati	othe	_	
			Yes	□ No
	oes the identified performance indicator(s) clude the following:) for	each progi	ram seeking accreditati
•	To whom the indicator(s) will be applied	? 🗖	Yes	☐ No
	The person(s)/position(s) responsible for collecting the data?		Yes	□ No
-	The source(s) from which data will be collected?		Yes	□ No
-	Identification of relevant timeframes for collection of data?		Yes	□ No
•	A performance target that is based on the organization's performance history or established by the organization or a stakeholder or is based on an industry benchmark?		Yes	□ No
W	here are these documented?			
_				

6.	Does the organization have documented objeto measure experience of services and other for each program/service seeking accreditation	eed			
			Yes		No
	Does the identified performance indicator(s) include the following:	for	each program see	ekir	ng accreditation
	■ To whom the indicator(s) will be applied?		Yes		No
	■ The person(s)/position(s) responsible for collecting the data?		Yes		No
	■ The source(s) from which data will be collected?		Yes		No
	Identification of relevant timeframes for collection of data?		Yes		No
	■ A performance target that is based on the organization's performance history or established by the organization or a stakeholder or is based on an industry benchmark?		Yes		No
	Where are these documented?				
	Describe how the objective(s) and performan of services and other feedback from other stall				re experience
7.	Does the organization have documented obje to measure the resources used to achieve resu for each program/service seeking accreditation	lts	-		
			Yes		No
	Does the identified performance indicator(s) include the following:	for	each program see	ekir	ng accreditation
	■ To whom or what the indicator(s) will be applied?		Yes		No
	■ The person(s)/position(s) responsible for collecting the data?		Yes		No

will be collected?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
• Identification of relevant timeframes for collection of data?	☐ Yes	□ No	
A performance target that is based on the organization's performance history or established by the organization or a stakeholder or is based on an industry benchmark? Where are these documented?	☐ Yes	□ No	
Describe how the objective(s) and performa used to achieve results for the persons serve		-	es
B. Does the organization have documented obto measure service access for each program/			
to measure service access for each program/ Does the identified performance indicator(s	/service seeking	g accreditation?	n
to measure service access for each program/	/service seeking	g accreditation?	on
Does the identified performance indicator(s include the following: To whom or what the indicator(s)	service seeking Yes S) for each prog	g accreditation? No gram seeking accreditatio	on
to measure service access for each program/ Does the identified performance indicator(s include the following: ■ To whom or what the indicator(s) will be applied? ■ The person(s)/position(s) responsible	yservice seeking ☐ Yes s) for each prog ☐ Yes	g accreditation? No gram seeking accreditatio No	on
 to measure service access for each program/ Does the identified performance indicator(s include the following: To whom or what the indicator(s) will be applied? The person(s)/position(s) responsible for collecting the data? The source(s) from which data 	yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes	g accreditation? No gram seeking accreditatio No No	on
 to measure service access for each program/ Does the identified performance indicator(s include the following: ■ To whom or what the indicator(s) will be applied? ■ The person(s)/position(s) responsible for collecting the data? 	yervice seeking ☐ Yes s) for each prog ☐ Yes	g accreditation? No gram seeking ac No	•

Describe how the objective(s) and performa were chosen.	nce indicator(s)) to measure service ac
Does the organization have documented obj measure its business function in priority are	-	
Identify the priority areas for the organization		
explain why these areas were chosen.		
Does the identified performance indicator(s		•
■ To what the indicator(s) will be applied?) include the fo Yes	llowing:
-		•
 To what the indicator(s) will be applied? The person(s)/position(s) responsible 	☐ Yes	□ No
 To what the indicator(s) will be applied? The person(s)/position(s) responsible for collecting the data? The source(s) from which data 	☐ Yes☐ Yes	□ No
 To what the indicator(s) will be applied? The person(s)/position(s) responsible for collecting the data? The source(s) from which data will be collected? Identification of relevant timeframes 	☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐	□ No □ No □ No

1 1	onnel provided with documented education and training in accordance with es and responsibilities for performance measurement and management? ☐ Yes ☐ No			
	☐ Yes	☐ No		
Describe how the education and training documented.	ing are provided and	where they are		

Documentation Examples

The following are examples of the types of documents and other information you should have available to demonstrate conformance to the standards in this section. Note that for some items, evidence of conformance is not required to be in writing. See Appendix A in the standards manual for more information on standards that specifically require written documentation.

- Performance measurement and management plan
- Business reports and plans; e.g., management reports, strategic plan, budgets and financial reports, accessibility plan, technology plan, risk management plan, health and safety reports
- Demographic information about persons served
- Data collected and collection process
- Follow-up information
- Priority measures for business function objectives, performance indicators, and performance targets
- For each program/service seeking accreditation, identification of measures for service delivery objectives, performance indicators, and performance targets
- Documented personnel education and training that reflect roles and responsibilities for performance measurement and management

Effect Change

N. Performance Improvement

Is a documented analysis of service delivery pand in accordance with the timelines outlined management plan?		-		•
		Yes		No
Where is the service delivery performance an	alys	sis documented	?	
Does the analysis address the following service seeking accreditation:	ce d	elivery indicato	rs foi	each program
Results achieved for the persons served?		Yes		No
■ Experience of services received and other feedback from the persons served?		Yes		No
Experience of services and other feedback from other stakeholders?		Yes		No
Resources used to achieve results for the persons served?		Yes		No
■ Service access?		Yes		No
Explain how the analysis incorporates the:				
■ Characteristics of the persons served.				
■ Impact of extenuating or influencing factor	ors.			
Does the analysis include: Comparative analysis?	П	Yes		No

•	Identification of trends?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
•	Identification of causes?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
Gi ■	ve some examples of how the analysis is use Identify areas needing performance impro			
•	Develop an action plan(s) to address the in	mprovements 1	needed.	
•	Implement the action plan(s).			
•	Determine whether the actions taken acco	omplished the i	ntended results.	
an	a documented analysis of business function d in accordance with the timelines outlined anagement plan?			
		☐ Yes	□ No	
W.	here is the business function performance	analysis docum	nented?	
fuı	oes the analysis address priority business nction indicators that have been identified the organization?	☐ Yes	□ No	

☐ Yes ☐ Yes ☐ Yes ☐ Yes ☐ Yes	□ No □ No
☐ Yes☐ Yes	□ No
☐ Yes☐ Yes	□ No
☐ Yes	
	□ No
is used to	– 110
he improvements	needed.
	he improvements

•	Improve the quality of programs and services.
•	Facilitate organizational decision making regarding: - Service delivery.
	- Business functions.
•	Guide changes to the performance measurement and management plan.
in a foll	scribe how the organization communicates accurate performance information accordance with the performance measurement and management plan, to the lowing groups: Persons served.
•	Personnel.

w do you er ecific group, Content?	sure that the information provided wincluding:	ill meet the needs of each
Format?		
Timing?		
www.will.you.c	emonstrate or verify this for the surve	ey team?

Documentation Examples

The following are examples of the types of documents and other information you should have available to demonstrate conformance to the standards in this section. Note that for some items, evidence of conformance is not required to be in writing. See Appendix A in the standards manual for more information on standards that specifically require written documentation.

- Documented analysis of service delivery performance at least annually and in accordance with the timeframes outlined in the performance measurement and management plan
- Documented analysis of priority business function performance at least annually and in accordance with the timeframes outlined in the performance measurement and management plan
- Action plans to address improvements needed
- Management reports or meeting minutes
- Follow-up information
- Dashboards, scorecards, or other performance information provided to stakeholders

SECTION 2

Care Process for the Persons Served

A. Program/Service Structure

		there a documented scope of services that i each program/service:	ncl	udes the following	g pa	rameters
	•	Population(s) served?		Yes		No
•		Settings?		Yes		No
ı	•	Hours of services?		Yes		No
ı	•	Days of services?		Yes		No
ı		Frequency of services?		Yes		No
		Payers and funding sources?		Yes		No
		Fees?		Yes		No
		Referral sources?		Yes		No
•		The specific services offered, including whether the services are provided directly, by contract, or by referral?	-	Yes		No
]	Do	oes the program share relevant information	abo	out the scope of se	ervi	ces with:
•		The persons served?		Yes		No
•		Families/support systems, in accordance with the choices of the persons served?		Yes		No
•		Referral sources?		Yes		No
•		Payers and funding sources?		Yes		No
•		Other relevant stakeholders?		Yes		No
•		The general public?		Yes		No
		escribe how information about the scope of ese groups.	ser	vices is shared wi	th e	each of
_						

Ηo	ow does the program ensure that the scope of services is updated as necessary?
	ow do you determine that the program/services provided are consistent with the fined scope?
_	
pr	escribe the resources provided in the following areas to support the scope of the ogram/service: Materials.
	ogram/service:
pr	ogram/service:
pr	ogram/service:
pr∘ ■	ogram/service: Materials.
pr ■	ogram/service: Materials.
pr ■	ogram/service: Materials.

Space.			
Finances.			
Training.			
Human resources.			
Other (specify).			
sed on the scope of each progracumented:	m/service provided, does	the organization ha	ıve
Entry criteria?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
Transition criteria?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
Exit criteria?	Yes	☐ No	

That are your program's/service's:		
Entry criteria?		
Transition criteria?		
Exit criteria?		
re the criteria closely related to the scope? No, what is missing?	□ Yes	☐ No
Then a person is not eligible for your servi	ces, do you:	
Inform the person as to the reasons?	☐ Yes	☐ No
In accordance with the choice of the per-	son:	
 Inform the family/support system as to the reasons? 	☐ Yes	☐ No
 Inform the referral source as to the reasons? 	☐ Yes	□ No
Make recommendations for	☐ Yes	☐ No
Make recommendations for alternative services?		

What is your process to inform the family/support system?
What is your process to inform referral sources?
How do you ensure that providing information to the family/support system and/or referral source is done in accordance with the choice of the person?
List some examples of alternative services that you have suggested.
Explain how you ensure that your service delivery models and strategies are based on accepted practice in the field and incorporate current research, evidence-based practice, peer-reviewed scientific and health-related publications, clinical practice guidelines, and/or expert professional consensus.

Ac	ldress:
-	Emergent issues.
-	Ongoing issues.
-	Continuity of services, including:
	- Contingency planning.
	- Future planning.
-	Decisions concerning the person served.
Er	nsure the exchange of information regarding the person-centered plan.
_	

How would surveyors see demonstration of authority of persons served?	knowledge of tr	ie legal decision-ma
How do you provide information to the per- related to legal decision-making authority?	sons served rega	arding resources
If you provide services from a mobile unit the service seeking accreditation, do you have we		1 0
■ Responsibilities of drivers?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Responsibilities of service providers?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Confidentiality of the records of persons served?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Confidentiality of communication?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Privacy related to service delivery?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Accessibility?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Availability of information on resources to meet needs unable to be met at the mobile setting?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Security of medications?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Security of equipment and supplies?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Security of the mobile unit when it is not in use?	☐ Yes	□ No
Safety of records of the persons served?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Safety of personnel?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Maintenance of equipment?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Maintenance of vehicles?	☐ Yes	☐ No

	you have written procedures that cover other aspects of your mobile services to not listed in the standard? If so, please describe.
tra	plain how you address unanticipated service modification, reduction, or exits/nsitions precipitated by:
•	Funding issues.
•	Funding issues.
	Funding issues.
	Funding issues.
	Funding issues. Other resource issues.
■	
■	Other resource issues. we an example of when services modification, reduction, or exit/transition has

Where would the surveyors find the signe	d, written agreem	ent?
How does the program verify that persons they have been in the program for a length		
Does the organization's written agreement	t include informat	tion regarding:
■ Entry criteria?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Entry procedures?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Transition criteria?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Transition procedures?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Exit criteria?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Exit procedures?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Scope of services?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Fee schedule?	☐ Yes	□ No
Responsibility for payment of fees?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Refund policies?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Resources to address program or payer limitations?	☐ Yes	□ No
Explain how the information would be sha	ared if the person	served cannot read

Where do personnel and others who may be go to find out the processes to provide infor		an individual
Describe a typical interaction with an indiviprogram.	idual who is see	king information abou
Identify documents that are generally provi	ded to individu	als about the program.
Do you provide:		
■ Fee schedule?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Accepted payer sources?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Levels of assistance provided?	☐ Yes	□ No
Describe the different ways that the program might be interested in seeking services from		lucates those who
Are written screenings/assessments conduc	ted:	
■ Prior to the initiation of services?	☐ Yes	□ No
At a frequency consistent with the needs of persons served?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ In response to changes in care needs?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ In response to changes and preferences of the person served?	☐ Yes	□ No

w does the assessment address each of the following areas: Behavior.
Deliavior.
Cognition.
Communication.
Communication.
Dental.
Function.
Health.
Legal involvement.

SECTION 2.A. PROGRAM/SERVICE STRUCTURE

Medications.			
Nutritional.			
Pain management.			
Physical.			
Psychological.			
Recreation and leis	ure.		
Relationships.			
Social.			

•	Spiritual.
•	Trauma.
•	Others, as appropriate to the needs of the person served.
Ho ■	ow do you identify the following in written screenings/assessments? Prior daily routines.
•	Preferences of the person served.
-	Choices of the person served.
-	Personal goals of the person served.

Discuss the person-centered planning pro-	cess in your prog	ram.
Are person-centered plans for each person Initial and ongoing screenings/ assessments?	n served based on □ Yes	: • No
Observations of the person served?	☐ Yes	□ No
Choices of the person served?	☐ Yes	□ No
Preferences of the person served?	☐ Yes	□ No
Give some examples that demonstrated ho	ow this is accompl	lished.
For CCRCs, discuss the person-centered p evels of care:	lanning process i	n your various
■ Independent/residential living.		

	Nursing care.
•	Others, as appropriate.
	hen a person served expresses specific preferences, what do you do to ensure at they are addressed in the person-centered plan?
	ow does the person-centered plan address: Identified service needs?
•	Necessary interventions, approaches, supports?
•	Types of services to be provided?
•	Intensity of services to be provided?
•	Frequency of services to be provided?

•	Goals of the person served?
•	Persons responsible for facilitating each goal?
•	Integration of available resources?
•	The choices and behaviors of the person served that pose a risk to health or safety?
•	Transition/exit plans, as appropriate?
•	Identification of the preference of the person served for involvement of members of their family/support system?
•	Changing lifespan issues of the person served?
	ow is the person-centered plan monitored toward accomplishment of als identified?

		w is the person-centered plan shared in an understandable manner with: Persons served?
	•	Other persons identified by the person served?
	•	Appropriate personnel?
15.	the	nen offering assistance with activities of daily living to persons served, how does program: Promote maximum levels of independence?
	•	Support safety?
	•	Support dignity and self-worth?
16.		scribe how the service delivery team is determined by: The screening/assessment process.
	-	The person-centered planning process.

Strategies utilized to achieve the goals		
bes the interdisciplinary team include:		
The person served?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Members of the family/support system of the person served?	n Yes	□ No
Personnel with appropriate competen	cies	
to evaluate the person served and	☐ Yes	□ No
facilitate achievement of their goals?	u res	□ NO
	□ \/	□ N -
Other stakeholders, as appropriate? escribe the process your program uses t	•	
escribe the process your program uses t	to identify the per	sonnel who will
escribe the process your program uses t	to identify the per	sonnel who will
	to identify the per	sonnel who will t of goals.
escribe the process your program uses to llaborate with each person served regard to be sometimes of the process your program uses to laborate with each person served and their families of the process	to identify the per	sonnel who will t of goals.
escribe the process your program uses to the llaborate with each person served regard to the served regard to the served and their families of the served and the served and the served to the served and	to identify the per	sonnel who will t of goals.
escribe the process your program uses to laborate with each person served regard to be sometimes of the persons served and their families of the served and their families of the served and their families of the served and the serve	to identify the per	sonnel who will t of goals.

How are personnel knowledgeable about preferences, choices, and goals of persons served?	
	_
What are the ways that the personnel interact with: Persons served?	
■ Family/support systems?	
How do personnel provide appropriate orientation to: Persons served?	
■ Family/support systems?	
How do personnel communicate with both external and internal sources?	
How do personnel integrate available financial information into decision making about provision of services?	

	ribe the ways in which personnel facilita aghout the service delivery process.					
	ribe how personnel ensure that transitio ompleted.	n/aş	greement	terminati	ion	arrangemer
How	are they communicated?					
How	do you facilitate recommendations when	n ap	propriate	?		
How	do you facilitate recommendations whe	n ap	propriate	?		
 Do th	ne responsibilities of the interdisciplinar				owi	ing:
. Do th ■ Re		y tea		e the follo	owi	
Do the Region as	ne responsibilities of the interdisciplinary eviewing relevant reports to facilitate itial and ongoing screenings/	y tea	am includ	e the follo		No
Do the Rein as	ne responsibilities of the interdisciplinary eviewing relevant reports to facilitate itial and ongoing screenings/ sessments? onducting initial and ongoing	y tea	am includ	e the follo]	No No
Do the Rein as Cosc. As pe	ne responsibilities of the interdisciplinary eviewing relevant reports to facilitate itial and ongoing screenings/sessments? onducting initial and ongoing reenings/assessments? ssisting persons served to set	y tea	Yes	e the follo	ו ב	No No No
Do the Rein as Co sc Pe Id	ne responsibilities of the interdisciplinary eviewing relevant reports to facilitate itial and ongoing screenings/sessments? onducting initial and ongoing reenings/assessments? ssisting persons served to set ersonal goals?	y tea	Yes Yes Yes	e the follo	י ב י ב	No No No No
Do the as Conscious As per Id	ne responsibilities of the interdisciplinary eviewing relevant reports to facilitate itial and ongoing screenings/sessments? onducting initial and ongoing reenings/assessments? ssisting persons served to set ersonal goals? lentifying resources?	yy tez	Yes Yes Yes Yes	e the follo	ן ב ו ב ו ב	No No No No
Do the Rein as Cosc sc As pee Id	ne responsibilities of the interdisciplinary eviewing relevant reports to facilitate itial and ongoing screenings/sessments? onducting initial and ongoing reenings/assessments? ssisting persons served to set ersonal goals? entifying resources? stegrating information on resources to program planning?	yy tea	Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes	e the follo		No No No No No
Do the Rein as Cosc Sc As pee Id In in In in	ne responsibilities of the interdisciplinary eviewing relevant reports to facilitate itial and ongoing screenings/sessments? onducting initial and ongoing reenings/assessments? ssisting persons served to set ersonal goals? tentifying resources? tegrating information on resources to program planning? stablishing the person-centered plan?	yy tea	Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes	e the follo		No No No No No

Modifying the person-centered plan?		Yes		No
■ Ensuring that team members change based on the needs of the person served?		Yes		No
Partnering with the person served to achieve that person's goals?		Yes		No
■ Establishing the transition plan?		Yes		No
Establishing the agreement termination plan?		Yes		No
Transitioning the persons served to other levels of care and/or other services/programs, as needed?		Yes		No
Referring the persons served to other services/programs, as needed?		Yes		No
Communicating with relevant stakeholders?		Yes		No
Participating in performance improvement?		Yes		No
Describe the process for the interdisciplinary	tea		d in	cluding the
person served to facilitate an integrated appr	oacł	n to service delive	ry.	
person served to facilitate an integrated appro-	oach	n to service delive	ery.	
person served to facilitate an integrated appro-	oacł	n to service delive	ery.	
Give examples of how the team members col			ery.	
	labo	orate.		on served

How do you ensure that you are provid	ing sufficient notice	to all parties?
Describe the communication to relevan		occurs to facilitate
continuity of services at the time of trai	isition of exit.	
Does this communication include:		
	□ Ves	□ No
Advance directives?Assistance needed with activities	□ Yes	□ No
■ Advance directives?		
Advance directives?Assistance needed with activities of daily living?	☐ Yes	□ No
Advance directives?Assistance needed with activities of daily living?Behavioral interventions?	☐ Yes	□ No
 Advance directives? Assistance needed with activities of daily living? Behavioral interventions? Family system support? 	☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes	□ No □ No □ No
 Advance directives? Assistance needed with activities of daily living? Behavioral interventions? Family system support? Healthcare information? 	☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes	□ No □ No □ No
 Advance directives? Assistance needed with activities of daily living? Behavioral interventions? Family system support? Healthcare information? Medications? 	☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes	□ No□ No□ No□ No□ No□ No

22.		escribe the process your program uses regarding discussions with family/support stems, including:
		Arranging the discussions.
	•	Documentation process.
	•	Identifying the team members to participate.
	•	Frequency.
	tha	e the discussions scheduled at a time at is convenient for persons served d their families/support systems?
23.	the	entify some examples that demonstrate how, in accordance with the choice of e person served, the program partners with the family/support system throughout e service delivery process in each of the following areas: Ongoing consideration of the family's/support system's:
		 Ability and willingness to support and participate in the person-centered plan.
		- Composition.

SECTION 2.A. PROGRAM/SERVICE STRUCTURE

In	terpersonal dynamics.
D:	ifferent methods of:
וע -	Engagement.
-	Communication.
	Coming
-	Coping.
-	Problem solving.
a .	
St	rengths and limitations.
Kı	nowledge base.
_	

	epectations of the program.
_	
Ed	lucational needs.
Re -	esponsibilities, including decision making regarding: Healthcare of the person served.
-	Finances of the person served.
-	Lifestyle of the person served.
-	Other, as appropriate.
Ge	eographic proximity to the person served.

 Preferred method of communication.
 Preferred timing of communication.
Financial, social, or cultural factors that might influence the person-centered plan.
Well-being of the family/support system.
escribe how your safety and security measures are consistent with: Behavioral needs of the persons served.
Cognitive needs of the persons served.
Physical needs of the persons served.

Do the safety and security measures addres Chemical use, abuse, or dependency?	s: Yes	☐ No
■ Elopement risks?	☐ Yes	□ No
F	☐ Yes	□ No
T	☐ Yes	□ No
N (11 1d): 2	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Physical hazards?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Physically aggressive behaviors?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Self-injurious behaviors?	☐ Yes	□ No
Sexually-inappropriate behaviors?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Suicidal ideation?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Suspected neglect?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Suspected abuse?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Describe how your safety and security meas with the environment.	sures promote so	cialization and interact
What kinds of behaviors does your progran	n encounter?	

When behaviors occur, how do you observe and record the behavioral event?
Explain how you strive to understand the behavioral event from the perspective of the person served, personnel, as a communication on the part of persons served.
Describe your analysis process when behavioral events occur and how this informs your interventions.
Describe how you determine appropriate approaches and treatment.
Describe how you ensure the safety of persons served, personnel, and others.
Describe how personnel: Implement appropriate interventions.

	■ A	ssess the results.				
	■ Sł	nare information learned with others.				
	_					
26.		each program seeking accreditation, is the see of chemical and physical restraints?	ere	a policy in place	rega	ırding
				Yes		No
	Do tl	ne policies address whether and under w	hat	circumstances:		
	■ C	hemical restraints will be used?		Yes		No
	■ P	hysical restraints will be used?		Yes		No
	Whe	re are these policies documented?				
	How	do you ensure that these policies are cor	ısist	ently implement	ed?	
27.	Do y	ou have written procedures regarding the	e us	e of chemical or	phy	sical restraints?
				Yes		No
	Do tl	nese written procedures address:				
	■ P	revention of unsafe behaviors?		Yes		No
	to	lternative interventions used in an effort avoid the use of chemical or physical estraints?		Yes		No
	OI	he use of chemical or physical restraints nly after nonpharmacological oproaches have been exhausted?		Yes		No
		he use of chemical or physical restraints nly temporarily in an emergency				

	to protect the person served or others from injury or serious harm?	☐ Yes	□ No
Ī	■ Who is responsible for authorizing the use of chemical or physical restraints?	☐ Yes	□ No
ı	■ Time-limited use?	☐ Yes	□ No
ı	■ Disclosure when used?	☐ Yes	□ No
ı	Strategies for discontinuation?	☐ Yes	□ No
ı	Reviews for discontinuation?	☐ Yes	□ No
ļ	Documentation in the records of the persons served?	☐ Yes	□ No
	How will you demonstrate or verify for the sconsistently implemented?	survey team tha	at these procedures are
-			
-			
28.	Describe your procedures regarding medica	tions.	
-			
	How do you make sure your procedures cor laws and regulations?	itinue to compl	y with all applicable
_			
(Do your written procedures include all elements identified in the standard? Where can surveyors find the written proce	☐ Yes dures?	□ No
-			
-			

Does the training include all areas identified in the standard?	☐ Yes	□ No
Do you provide this education/training:		
■ Upon hire?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Annually?	☐ Yes	☐ No
What is your policy on advance directive	es?	
How does it address any legal requireme and resuscitation orders?	nts surrounding ad	vance directives
How do persons served find out about you their right to refuse resuscitation?	our policy on resusc	citation, including
	our policy on resusc	citation, including

do you ensure that persons served understand the procedures concerning nce directives? do you identify what assistive technology, electronic aids, and other equipments by the persons served?
e person served uses assistive technology, electronic aids to daily living, conmental controls, equipment, environmental modifications, and/or onal emergency response systems, how do you, on an ongoing basis: Determine that the technology and/or equipment: Functions properly?
Achieves the intended purpose?
)

	■ Notify the appropriate designee, as needed?
	Give some examples of staff identifying a problem with equipment and how it was resolved.
	Give some examples of how you have incorporated the technology and/or equipment into service delivery, in accordance with the person-centered plan for persons served.
32.	How do you ensure that there is equipment available to meet the individual needs of the persons served?
	Describe how service delivery is facilitated at the physical plant.

	Describe how safe environmental conditions are maintained at the physical plant.
	Where is the program's written philosophy of health and well-being for the persons served documented?
	How is the philosophy implemented to address: ■ Function?
1	■ Quality of life?
	■ Aging in place?
	How does the philosophy promote healthy aging and well-being?
	How is the philosophy shared with persons served, families/support systems, and personnel?

	Describe how well-being is promoted through activities that are based on input from the persons served.
-	
	How is input from families/support systems sought and considered in the activities offered?
	What are some examples of: Structured activities available?
	■ Unstructured activities available?
]	How do the activities promote healthy behavior?
	How do you ensure that the activities: ■ Meet the interests of the persons served?
	■ Align with their cognitive abilities?

Align with their communication abilities?
Reflect their choices?
Promote their personal growth and enhance self-image?
Improve or maintain their functional levels?
Allow for social interaction?
Allow for autonomy?
Include opportunities for community integration?
nere would the surveyors find information about activities for the person served the person-centered plan for each person?

35.		hat are the ways that information about scheduled activities is made available to: Persons served?
	•	Families/support systems?
		these individuals are not able to read, what are other ways that this information made available to them?
	_	
36.		escribe how the program assesses the learning needs and preferences of the rsons served.
	Ho	ow does this information guide access to: Information of interest?
	•	Health information?
	•	Other media?

	Describe how the program arranges for form opportunities.	al a	nd inforn	nal educational
37.	Is Wi-Fi available to persons served at the pr	ogra	am?	
			Yes	☐ No
	Is other technology available that promotes engagement or enhance quality of life?		Yes	□ No
	If Yes, what resources are available for the use	e of	technolog	yy?
38.	If your program provides dining services, ho and use this information to improve dining s		•	c input from persons serve
	How do you promote access to nutritious me agreements of persons served?	als	in accord	ance with the written
	Describe how your program promotes access	s to	snacks.	

cho	osing.			
			capacity to prepare, de afe manner that addres	
Des	cribe how your p	rogram conside	rs dietary requests.	
	utritional informa nu served by the p			
	iested?	0 1	☐ Yes	☐ No
	es the program seruding ventilatory		who require respirator	ry management,
			☐ Yes	☐ No
	es, what additiona se persons?	l competencies	are established for the	personnel caring for
Цол	v are these compe	etencies demons	strated?	
1100	1			

Do equipment and supplies available inc	clude:	
■ Cough assistance devices?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Suctioning equipment?	Yes	□ No
■ CPAP/BIPAP?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Oxygen?	☐ Yes	□ No
If you need additional or different equip	ment and supplies,	how are these obtained?
How are personnel trained to use the eq	uipment and suppli	es available?
Who is responsible for proper maintena	nce of equipment ar	nd supplies?
Is there a pulmonologist available?	☐ Yes	□ No
Are respiratory therapy services available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week?	e Yes	□ No
Describe the training about respiratory person served and the family/support sy	•	provided to the
Explain how the needs of persons who re in your organization's emergency plans.		anagement are considered
If the program serves any persons who a	are ventilator depen	<u></u>
Are portable ventilators available?	Yes	☐ No

	•	Explain how there is ongoing assessment	of th	ne need for ventila	atory support.
	•	How is ventilator weaning addressed?			
10.		end-of-life situations, how are opportunitiered?	es to	o express grief and	d remembrance
11.	to y tear the and of r pro	entify records that have the items listed belayour program and you have done what is larm. Be prepared for surveyors to randomly on-site survey. Closed records may be purely should represent all programs and sites streecords for review will be based on the scongrams. Additional records may be selected sure that the sample selection includes record plans to interview.	isted seled lled eeki pe a d as	d, you have exampled open records for in advance by the ing accreditation. and size of the orgueeded based on	oles for the survey for review during e organization The sample size ganization and review findings.
		the identified records include:		Vas	D Na
		Identification data? Advance directives?		Yes Yes	□ No
		Emergency contact information?		Yes	□ No
	•	Substitute decision maker who has been a including:			
		- Name?		Yes	□ No
		Contact information?		Yes	□ No
		Verification of the appointment?		Yes	□ No
	-	Medication Information?		Yes	□ No
	•	Healthcare providers involved in the care – Name?		he person served, Yes	including: ☐ No
		- Contact Information?		Yes	□ No
	_	Medical Information?		Yes	□ No

Reports of initial assessments?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Reports of ongoing assessments?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Reports from referral sources?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Reports of service referrals by the program?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Reports from outside consultants?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ The service plan of the person served?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Clinical entries related to the services received, as appropriate?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Release forms?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Discharge/transition summaries, as appropriate?	☐ Yes	□ No
Describe how you work with local communi	tv resources or	n emergency preparednes
Describe how the unique needs of the person		
Describe how the unique needs of the person community resources for emergency prepare regarding power restoration, considerations or locality, transportation issues that might a availability, recovery procedures to get the or safety of individuals, and considerations for	edness at your l in the case of e crise if an evacu ganization rur	ocation, including issues vacuation of your proper lation occurs, shelter aning safely and ensure the
community resources for emergency prepare regarding power restoration, considerations or locality, transportation issues that might a availability, recovery procedures to get the or	edness at your l in the case of e crise if an evacu ganization rur	ocation, including issues vacuation of your proper lation occurs, shelter aning safely and ensure the
community resources for emergency prepare regarding power restoration, considerations or locality, transportation issues that might a availability, recovery procedures to get the or	edness at your l in the case of e crise if an evacu ganization rur	ocation, including issues vacuation of your proper lation occurs, shelter aning safely and ensure the
community resources for emergency prepare regarding power restoration, considerations or locality, transportation issues that might a availability, recovery procedures to get the or	edness at your l in the case of e crise if an evacu ganization rur	ocation, including issues vacuation of your proper lation occurs, shelter aning safely and ensure the
community resources for emergency prepare regarding power restoration, considerations or locality, transportation issues that might a availability, recovery procedures to get the or	edness at your lin the case of earise if an evacurganization rurpublic health c	ocation, including issues vacuation of your proper lation occurs, shelter lating safely and ensure the oncerns.
community resources for emergency prepare regarding power restoration, considerations or locality, transportation issues that might a availability, recovery procedures to get the or safety of individuals, and considerations for the safety of individuals and considerations for the safety of individuals.	edness at your lin the case of earise if an evacurganization rurpublic health c	ocation, including issues vacuation of your proper lation occurs, shelter lating safely and ensure the oncerns.
community resources for emergency prepare regarding power restoration, considerations or locality, transportation issues that might a availability, recovery procedures to get the or safety of individuals, and considerations for the safety of individuals. Describe how you work with leaders in your	edness at your lin the case of earise if an evacurganization rurpublic health c	ocation, including issues vacuation of your proper lation occurs, shelter lating safely and ensure the oncerns.

43.	Name the individual(s) who have the responsibility and authority to manage key components of the program.
	What skills and competencies have been identified as required to perform as a program manager?
44.	What is your program's approach to ensuring that personnel are consistently assigned to the persons served to meet their needs?
	List some examples of how this is accomplished.
45.	Describe the education that is provided to personnel and volunteers on the following: Indications that the status of the person served has changed.
	 How to respond to information about persons served that may be reported by other sources.

Н	ow to protect the privacy of the persons served.
_	
Н	ow to protect the dignity of the persons served.
Н	ow to, on an going basis:
-	Observe for changes in persons served.
	Communicate observed or reported changes.
ow ' ontii	will you demonstrate or verify for the survey team that leadership fosters and the survey team that leadership fosters are survey to the survey team that leadership fosters are survey to the survey team that leadership for personnel that:
Re	cognizes and respects individual:
-	Learning styles?
	NT 12
-	Needs?

_	Strengths?
Dra	ovides and evaluates:
-	Teaching?
_	Coaching?
_	Modeling?
_	Supervision?
_	Feedback?
	easures the effectiveness of the techniques used in the learning environment ainst a performance target?

47.	Describe how your program conducts outreach to expand your future workforce.					
	What opportunities for career development are provided to personnel?					
	What mechanisms can personnel use for communication and problem-solving with colleagues?					
	List the mechanisms used.					
	What resources are provided to support the well-being of the workforce?					
48.	What are the ways that the program provides education regarding end-of-life choices					

Describe some situations in which the program has honored a person's choices concerning end-of-life.
What are some examples of the program having initiated related services in end-of-li situations?
Explain how the program offers expression of final wishes to persons served and families/support systems.
What opportunities exist in the program for expression of grief and loss at end of life

Documentation Examples

The following are examples of the types of documents and other information you should have available to demonstrate conformance to the standards in this section. Note that for some items, evidence of conformance is not required to be in writing. See Appendix A in the standards manual for more information on standards that specifically require written documentation.

- Written program entry criteria
- Program enrollment criteria
- Admission packet
- Program description
- Outcomes system description
- Policy and procedures for move-in, admission, program entry
- Website information
- Video about the program

- Residency and care packet including details regarding housing, services, fees, and other information
- Transfer guidelines
- Agreement termination criteria
- Contract termination criteria
- Discharge criteria
- Move-out criteria
- Notes regarding progress of persons served
- Written procedures regarding use of mobile technology for service delivery
- Maintenance logs from mobile units
- Admission agreements
- Contracts
- Refund policies
- Written agreement for services
- Screening/assessment tools
- Person-centered plans, care plans or service plans
- Procedures for compliance with medication-related laws and regulations
- Advance directives
- Written philosophy of health and well-being
- Records of person served
- Policy on use of chemical and physical restraints
- Written procedures addressing organization's approach to the use of chemical and physical restraints
- Documentation of competency-based staff training
- Documentation of competency-based volunteer training
- Activities schedule

B. Residential Communities

Dini	ng.
∃eal	thcare.
lou	sekeeping.
Mair	itenance.
viuii	inclinatice.
Secu	rity.
Socia	al interaction.
п	
ıran	sportation.
)th/	er services.
<i>J</i> 1110	i sei vices.

2.

As you consider changing resources to address needs, are there services that you are informally beginning to offer more frequently to persons served?					
Do you have the resources necessary to address those needs?	☐ Yes	□ No			
Are there changes in resources to address those needs?	☐ Yes	□ No			
Do any of these informal service offerings need to be more formalized because they are sought after by persons served or because they are resource intensive to the program?	□ Yes	□ No			
Discuss how these issues factor into your ser	vice delivery pl	anning.			
Describe the procedures your personnel folloor assisting with arrangements for services.	ow regarding p	roviding, arranging,			
Do these policies address: Health-related services?	☐ Yes	□ No			
■ Rehabilitation services?	☐ Yes	□ No			
■ Social services?	☐ Yes	□ No			
■ Housekeeping services?	☐ Yes	□ No			
■ Laundry services?	☐ Yes	□ No			
■ Security services?	☐ Yes	☐ No			
■ Transportation services?	☐ Yes	☐ No			

What are some services available to your persons served either through the organization's own services or through other arrangements?						
Do available services include:						
■ Health-related services?	☐ Yes	☐ No				
■ Rehabilitation services?	☐ Yes	☐ No				
■ Social services?	☐ Yes	☐ No				
■ Housekeeping services?	☐ Yes	☐ No				
■ Laundry services?	☐ Yes	☐ No				
■ Security services?	☐ Yes	☐ No				
■ Transportation services?	☐ Yes	☐ No				
Explain how you determine whether a or rehabilitation services.	a person served has a 1	need for any health-rela				
If there is a need for health-related or served access those services?	rehabilitation services	s, how does the person				

4.

	person served needs social services, how would these be provided or arranged
	at is the process for providing or arranging for: Housekeeping services?
I	Laundry services?
	Security services?
	Transportation services?
_	lain how the program provides or arranges for physician input regarding: Adequacy of individual health services where in-depth medical expertise may be useful.
	Transition decisions to different levels of care.

	Policies and procedures that address medication management/assistance.
-	Actions to take in case of an emergency.
_	Administration/assistance.
	Dispensing.
	Disposal.
	Documentation.
E	Errors.
	mplications for management of multiple medications.

•	Indications and contraindications.
•	Obtaining medication.
•	Procedures for handling controlled substances.
•	Side effects.
•	Storage.
H•	ow does the pharmacist conduct medication regimen reviews for the persons served?
	re there services for which persons served might contract with an organization a their own to receive services?
	☐ Yes ☐ No

6.

What information do you provide to persons served to help them with this process and to reduce risk?						
Who can surveyors speak with in your organization regarding the type of informatio you discuss or share with persons served?						
Where can surveyors find your policies regarding requirements for services that a person served might arrange on their own such as private duty care, home care, transportation, or other services?						
Does your organization require persons served to do any sort of background checks of service providers?		Yes		No		
Do persons served need to inform your organization about services that they arrange on their own?		Yes	_	No		
Are pets allowed in your program?		Yes		No		
If Yes:■ Do you require a fee for persons served to have a pet?		Yes		No		
■ Do your policies address what should occur when a person served can no longer care for the pet?		Yes		No		
Do your policies address what constitutes a service animal?		Yes		No		
Do you have any policies regarding how service animals may be involved in your organization?		Yes		No		
Do your policies address any responsibilities that persons served have regarding cleanliness or maintenance of their individual residences?		Yes		No		

Do your policies discuss the way in which your organization will maintain individual residences?	☐ Yes	□ No
Do your policies address whether smoking is permitted for persons served, personnel, and others?	☐ Yes	□ No
If smoking is permitted, are there designated areas for smoking?	☐ Yes	□ No
What are your policies regarding guests of	r visitors to the org	ganization?
Do you:	7. 11	
■ Provide transportation?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Arrange for transportation?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Refer persons served to resources for transportation?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Contract for transportation?	☐ Yes	☐ No
If you answered <i>No</i> to all of the above, ple transportation.	ease explain how p	ersons served access
What is done to ensure that all persons seare able to participate in appointments, coby the program, recreation and leisure op	ommunity events,	and outings sponsored
Where can surveyors find your policies a		
the opportunity for persons served to rec	eive visitors 24 hou	ırs a day if desired?

	eir choice in: Having a private or semiprivate living unit?
_	
•	Having a roommate?
W]	hat examples can persons served give to demonstrate:
•	They have choice in bringing personal possessions?
•	Their voice regarding unit décor?
-	Accessibility of the unit?
-	How the unit supports any healthcare needs?
	Personal security is maintained?
-	Tersonal security is maintained:

SECTION 2.B. RESIDENTIAL COMMUNITIES

	•	Privacy and safety are maintained?
	•	Possessions are secure?
12.	Ide	entify how individual units have an emergency call or monitoring system.
	W	hat is the system to summon emergency backup when it is needed?
13.		escribe the variety of safety and security approaches and/or systems that are used maintain safety of common areas as well as individual living units.
14.	De	escribe your organization's preventive maintenance approach.
	W	hat systems do you have to maintain cleanliness of the physical plant?

	What feedback do you receive to ensure that persons served, personnel, and others are satisfied with the cleanliness of the physical plant?					
	How do you plan for capital improve	ments of the property?				
15.	Describe meetings with persons served to discuss issues concerning their living environment.					
	Who is involved in these meetings?					
16.	Describe your organization's infection	n prevention and conti	ol policy.			
	Does the infection prevention and co	• •				
	■ Vaccinations?	☐ Yes	□ No			
	■ Screenings?	☐ Yes	□ No			
	Education for:Persons served?	☐ Yes	☐ No			
	- Personnel?	☐ Yes	□ No			
	Other stakeholders?	☐ Yes	□ No			
	- Other stakeholders:	– 162	■ NO			

Desc:	ribe who is involved in these planning efforts, including:
I In	ternal stakeholders.
_	
_	
■ C	ommunity resources.
	,
_	
ı Ex	xternal stakeholders.
_	
How	does the program address:
_	1 0
· C	ontingency planning for potential workforce shortages?
• C	
- C	
- C	
_	ontingency planning for potential workforce shortages?
	ontingency planning for potential workforce shortages? spedited onboarding of new personnel, including:
	ontingency planning for potential workforce shortages? spedited onboarding of new personnel, including:
——————————————————————————————————————	contingency planning for potential workforce shortages? Expedited onboarding of new personnel, including: What topics would be covered as part of an expedited orientation?
	ontingency planning for potential workforce shortages? spedited onboarding of new personnel, including:

	sential caregivers?		Yes			No
If	essential caregivers are allowed:					
•	Does the program have written procedures regarding the scope of their involvement with persons served?		Yes		-	No
•	Describe who may fulfill the role of an es	sent	ial careg	iver.		
•	What type(s) of activities/tasks are included	led i	in the sco	ope of an	esse	ential caregiver?
	plain how the program would procure the ongoing operations.	sup	plies nec	cessary to	sup	pport and sustain
_						
	hat mechanisms does the program have in mmunication with: Persons served?	ı pla	ce to ens	sure timel	y aı	nd transparent
•	Families/support systems?					

•	The workforce?
•	Other stakeholders?
	escribe how the program would address the unique communication needs of various keholders.
De	escribe your program's process for ethical decision-making.
•	Give an example of when this process has been implemented.

Documentation Examples

The following are examples of the types of documents and other information you should have available to demonstrate conformance to the standards in this section. Note that for some items, evidence of conformance is not required to be in writing. See Appendix A in the standards manual for more information on standards that specifically require written documentation.

- Policies and procedures addressing how the program provides, arranges, or assists with arrangements for various categories of services
- Policies addressing persons served hiring private duty care, home care, or other assistance
- Policies on visiting hours and guests

- Policies addressing whether pets are allowed and any details on responsibilities for caring for pets
- Policies addressing essential caregivers and sustained emergencies
- Policies addressing vaccination and screening

C. Care Process for Specific Diagnostic Categories

Applicable Star	ndards
	The standards in this section are applicable if the program serves <i>any</i> persons with dementia and is not seeking accreditation as a Dementia Care Specialty Program.
1.	To empower the persons served with dementia to make decisions each day that are consistent with their abilities, describe how your program: Assesses the ability of the persons served with dementia to make decisions.
	■ Minimizes barriers to decision making by the persons served with dementia.
	■ Communicates with the persons served with dementia regarding the immediate consequences associated with choices and behaviors that pose a potential risk to their health or safety.
	■ Facilitates appropriate support for decision making by the persons served with dementia.

Does your program's ongoing screening, about the person's:	/assessment process	s include information
■ Life history?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Important memories?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Favorite stories?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Daily routines?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Comfort/reminiscence objects?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ People of importance?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Explain how this is accomplished.		
How does your program provide or arra: ■ The persons served?	nge for education fo	or:
	nge for education fo	or:
The persons served?	nge for education fo	or:
The persons served?		

- Progression?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Types of dementia?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Coexisting conditions?	☐ Yes	☐ No
– Lived experience of dementia?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Maintaining relationships?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Skills training, including:		
- Activities?	☐ Yes	□ No
- Therapeutic approach to behavior?	☐ Yes	☐ No
- Communication skills, including com	nmunication with:	
- Persons served?	☐ Yes	☐ No
- Service providers?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Caregiver self-care?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Coping with changes?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Driving?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Falls?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Incontinence?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Loss and grief?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Legal issues?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Mobility?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Palliative care?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Planning for the future?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Risk of elopement?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Sexuality?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Skin integrity?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Community resources?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Payer sources?	☐ Yes	□ No
How do you identify the specific educationa	l needs of each perso	on served?
	_	

How do you identify the specific educational needs of the family/support system of each person served?
How do you ensure that the education provided to each person served appropriately addresses his or her needs?
How do you ensure that the education provided to the family/support system of each person served addresses its needs?
How do you ensure that program personnel implement a positive, therapeutic approach to behavior?
Identify some examples that demonstrate how this is accomplished.

■ A palliative approach to care.						
■ End-of-life care.						
Does your program utilize any volunteers w with dementia?	ho interact with	persons served				
	☐ Yes	☐ No				
If <i>Yes</i> , do these volunteers receive document that addresses:	ed, competency	r-based training				
Communication?	☐ Yes	☐ No				
■ Dementia?	☐ Yes	☐ No				
Post-incident debriefing opportunities?	☐ Yes	☐ No				
■ Therapeutic approach to behavior?	☐ Yes	☐ No				
Explain how this is accomplished and where	the training is	documented.				
Does your organization provide documente	d competency-b	pased training for				
Orientation?	☐ Yes	☐ No				
Regular intervals?	☐ Yes	☐ No				
Describe how this is accomplished.						

Where is the training documented?				
Does the training include, as appropriate	to the roles of the	personnel being trained:		
Dementia, including:Signs and symptoms?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
- Progression?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
Types of dementia?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
Coexisting conditions?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
 Lived experience of dementia? 	☐ Yes	☐ No		
■ Delirium?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
■ Depression?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
Suicide risk assessment and prevention strategies?	☐ Yes	□ No		
■ Identifying the personal preferences of the persons served?	☐ Yes	□ No		
■ Loss and grief?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
■ Communication?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
■ Therapeutic approach to behavior?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
■ Observation skills?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
■ Sexuality?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
■ Skin integrity?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
■ Meaningful engagement of persons served on an ongoing basis?	☐ Yes	□ No		
■ Therapeutic approach to activity development and implementation?	☐ Yes	□ No		
■ Gathering information about the person		llowing areas:		
Life history?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
Important memories?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
Favorite stories?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
Daily routines?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
Comfort/reminiscence objects?	Yes	☐ No		

c	ECTION 2 C	CADE DOC	CECC FOR C	DECIEIC DIA	CNOSTIC CA	TECODIE
•	SECTIONS 2 C		N F// F()K /	DECIEIC I JI A	(.N(.)\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\) I F(.()RIF

☐ Yes	☐ No
appropriate for spec	cific program personnel?

D. Skin Integrity and Wound Care Standards

	d wound care, including:		es to address skir	int	08111)
-	Initial and ongoing assessments of skin integrity?		Yes		No
•	Management of skin integrity issues?		Yes		No
•	Definition of what constitutes a wound?		Yes		No
•	Wound care?		Yes		No
•	Procedures for referral if assessment or management is outside the scope of the program?		Yes		No
Ho	ow do you ensure that these procedures are	e cor	sistently implem	ent	ed?
_					
	o initial and ongoing assessments for each Skin integrity, including: – Edema?				: No
Do	Skin integrity, including:		on served docun Yes Yes		
	Skin integrity, including: - Edema?		Yes	<u> </u>	No
Do	Skin integrity, including: - Edema? - Pain?		Yes Yes	_ _	No No
 Do ■	Skin integrity, including: - Edema? - Pain? - Pulses?		Yes Yes Yes		No No No
 Dα ■	Skin integrity, including: - Edema? - Pain? - Pulses? - Skin appearance?		Yes Yes Yes Yes		No No No No
	Skin integrity, including: - Edema? - Pain? - Pulses? - Skin appearance? - Skin turgor?		Yes Yes Yes Yes		No No No No

le	Then skin integrity risks are identified through the assessment of the person se escribe how the interdisciplinary team addresses identified needs that are with
	le scope of the program, including: Interventions to prevent or reduce the risk of a wound developing.
	Standards of practice.
	Nutritional needs.
•	Equipment.
ı	Supplies.
	Education needs of: - The person served.

- The family/support system.		
- Personnel.		
Describe the process for referral to an app skin integrity risks are identified that are		
If a wound is present, does the interdiscip implement written protocols that address:	•	ach person served
■ When the wound care needed is within	-	- 0
Documented initial and ongoing as		=
- Location?	☐ Yes	□ No
- Description of base?	☐ Yes	☐ No
- Measurement?	☐ Yes	☐ No
- Exudates?	☐ Yes	☐ No
- Progression?	☐ Yes	☐ No
- Causes?	☐ Yes	☐ No
 Interventions to reduce and/or eliminate the wound? 	☐ Yes	☐ No
- Standards of practice?	☐ Yes	□ No
- Nutritional needs?	☐ Yes	□ No
- Equipment?	☐ Yes	☐ No
- Supplies?	☐ Yes	☐ No
- Education needs of:	_	_
- The person served?	☐ Yes	☐ No
- The family/support system?	☐ Yes	☐ No
- Personnel?	☐ Yes	□ No

A plan for follow-up care?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
■ When the wound care needed is outside of the scope of the program, referrals to or coordination with appropriate wound care specialists?		□ No	
Identify some examples of when the team as the program and when the persons served v			
Explain how the protocols were established.			
Describe the resources identified to facilitat	e wound care a	nd how they are utilize	ed.
Give some examples of how the interdiscipl to optimize outcomes for the persons served	•	onstrates efforts	
 Exchange of information on factors facil management. 	itating skin inte	grity and wound	

Exchange of information on barriers to	o skin integrity an	d wound management.	
			_
Education of other healthcare provider	rs.		
			_
Collaboration with other healthcare pr	oviders on the tin	ning of interventions.	
Arrangement of follow-up with other l transition from the program to facilitation integrity and wound issues.			
			_
			_
personnel who provide services related eive documented, competency-based to		and wound managemen	t
Orientation?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
Regular intervals?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
es the training include:			
Assessment protocols for skin integrity and wound management?	√ □ Yes	☐ No	

integrity and wound management that are based on accepted practices in the field and current research, evidence-based practice, peer-reviewed scientific and health-related publications, clinical practice guidelines, and/or expert professional consensus?		□ No
Education techniques to facilitate behavior change in persons served?	☐ Yes	□ No
Explain how this training is provided and o	documented.	
	1	1.1 1 1
 Does the program gather information on e Wounds present at admission to the program that improved during the program? 	ach person serve ☐ Yes	d that includes:
 Wounds present at admission to the program that improved during 	-	
 Wounds present at admission to the program that improved during the program? Wounds present at admission to the program that worsened during 	☐ Yes	□ No
 Wounds present at admission to the program that improved during the program? Wounds present at admission to the program that worsened during the program? New wounds that developed during 	□ Yes □ Yes	□ No
 Wounds present at admission to the program that improved during the program? Wounds present at admission to the program that worsened during the program? New wounds that developed during the program? 	□ Yes □ Yes	□ No
 Wounds present at admission to the program that improved during the program? Wounds present at admission to the program that worsened during the program? New wounds that developed during the program? 	□ Yes □ Yes	□ No

Explain how this information is used to conduct a written analysis at least annually to address: ■ Performance in relationship to established targets for: - Wounds present at admission to the program that improved during the program. - Wounds present at admission to the program that worsened during the program. - New wounds that developed during the program. ■ Trends. ■ Actions for improvement. ■ Results of performance improvement plans.

- Persons served.

■ Necessary education and training of:

-	Families/support systems.
_	Personnel.

Documentation Examples

The following are examples of the types of documents and other information you should have available to demonstrate conformance to the standards in this section. Note that for some items, evidence of conformance is not required to be in writing. See Appendix A in the standards manual for more information on standards that specifically require written documentation.

- Documentation of initial and ongoing assessments that address skin integrity
- Written protocols for wound care needs, including needs that are within the scope of the program and needs outside the scope of the program
- Information on local, regional, provincial, national, or international resources used to facilitate wound care
- Documentation of competency-based training for personnel who provide services related to skin integrity and wound management
- Written analysis of information gathered on persons served regarding wounds present at admission to the program that improved and worsened during the program, and new wounds that developed during the program

E. Care Process for Personal Supports Services

Applicable Star	ndards		
	If the organization is seeking accredita standards in this section must be apple	· ·	
1.	Give some examples of ways that potent systems are provided with opportunitie the mission of the program and program	s to be oriented to th	
	Describe a typical interaction with an in the program.	ndividual who is seel	king information about
	How does the program learn about the and their families/support systems rega		
	Identify documents/materials that are to program.	ypically provided to	individuals about the
	Do you provide:		
	■ Fee schedule?	☐ Yes	□ No
	Accepted payer sources?	☐ Yes	□ No
	■ Levels of assistance provided?	☐ Yes	☐ No

•	At a frequency consistent with the needs of persons served.
•	In response to changes in care needs.
	In response to changes in preferences of the person served.
	in response to changes in preferences of the person served.
Lis	st some examples of how the information gathered is used for effective service elivery for the person served.
	st some examples of how the information gathered is used for effective service
Lis de	st some examples of how the information gathered is used for effective service

	■ Dignity and self-worth?
4.	What is the process for notifying various parties about transition or exit from the program?
	How does the process ensure that there is sufficient notice to all parties?
5.	Describe the communication that occurs to facilitate continuity of services at the time of transition or exit.
	To which stakeholders is information communicated and how is this accomplished?
6.	Describe how your safety and security measures are consistent with: Behavioral needs of the persons served.
	■ Cognitive needs of the persons served.

Physical needs of the persons served.
Describe how your safety and security measures promote socialization and interaction with the environment.
Describe how your safety and security measures are addressed in personnel training at least annually.
What kinds of behaviors does your program encounter?
When behaviors occur, how do you observe and record the behavioral event?
Explain how you strive to understand the behavioral event from the perspective of the person served, personnel, and as a communication on the part of persons served.

Describe your analysis process when behavioral events occur and how this informs your interventions.		
Describe how you determine appropriate ap	pproaches and trea	tment.
Describe how you ensure the safety of person	ons served, person	nel, and others.
Describe how personnel: Implement appropriate interventions.		
■ Assess the results.		
■ Share information learned with others.		
Does the organization have a policy that cle it has any role in medications for persons se	erved?	
	Yes	☐ No

by personnel, persons served, and other stakeholders?			
the program is involved in medication management, are there written procedur place that address compliance with all applicable laws and regulations pertaining medications and controlled substances?			
	☐ Yes	☐ No	
How does the program ensure that these pr	ocedures are cor	nsistently implemente	
an apprecione laws and regulations.			
Do your written procedures include:	□ Yes	□No	
Do your written procedures include: ■ Medication storage?	□ Yes	□ No	
Do your written procedures include:	□ Yes □ Yes		
Do your written procedures include: Medication storage? Medication administration?	☐ Yes	□ No	
Do your written procedures include: Medication storage? Medication administration? Timing of administration?	☐ Yes	□ No	
Do your written procedures include: Medication storage? Medication administration? Timing of administration? Location of administration?	□ Yes □ Yes	□ No □ No □ No	
Do your written procedures include: Medication storage? Medication administration? Timing of administration? Location of administration? Self-administration?	☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes	□ No □ No □ No □ No	
Do your written procedures include: Medication storage? Medication administration? Timing of administration? Location of administration? Self-administration? Medication management/assistance? Medication reconciliation?	☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes	□ No □ No □ No □ No □ No	
Do your written procedures include: Medication storage? Medication administration? Timing of administration? Location of administration? Self-administration? Medication management/assistance? Medication reconciliation? Medication disposal? Over-the-counter:	□ Yes	□ No	
 Medication administration? Timing of administration? Location of administration? Self-administration? Medication management/assistance? Medication reconciliation? Medication disposal? 	☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes	□ No □ No □ No □ No □ No □ No	

If the program is involved in medication management, describe the competency-b training on medications that is provided to personnel who are responsible for medications.				
Does the training include:				
Written procedures that address medications?	☐ Yes	□ No		
■ Actions to take in case of an emergency?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
■ Administration/assistance?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
■ Medication reconciliation?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
■ Dispensing?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
■ Disposal?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
Documentation?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
■ Errors?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
■ Implications of abrupt discontinuation?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
Implications for management of multiple medications?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
• Indications and contraindications?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
Obtaining medication?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
Written procedures for handling controlled substances?	☐ Yes	□ No		
■ Side effects?	☐ Yes	☐ No		
■ Storage?	☐ Yes	☐ No		

Is this training provided:					
■ Upon hire?	☐ Yes	☐ No			
■ Annually?	☐ Yes	☐ No			
How will you demonstrate or verify	this for the survey team	?			
How do you identify what assistive technology, electronic aids, and other equipment are used by the persons served?					
If persons served use assistive technology as the property?	modifications, and/or gram, on an ongoing ba	personal emergency	ntal		
Achieves the intended purpos	se?				
Notify the appropriate designee,	as needed?				
Give some examples of personnel ide and how it was resolved.	entifying a problem wit	n technology or equipn	nent		

hat include, as	applicable,				
□ N	No				
	No				
	No				
 Emergency contact information? Substitute decision maker who has been appointed for the person served, including: 					
	No				
on served, inclu	ıding:				
	No				
dentify the individual(s) who has the responsibility and authority to manage ey components of the program.					
n as a program	manager?				
	n as a program				

	Describe how you consider the individual preferences of those served when selecting direct care personnel.
	How do you address the input of persons served on an ongoing basis?
	How will you demonstrate evidence of these practices to the survey team?
•	What is your program's approach to ensuring that personnel are consistently assigned to the persons served to meet their needs?
	List some examples of how this is accomplished.
	Describe the education that is provided to personnel and volunteers on the followin Indications that the status of the person served has changed.

	ow to respond to information about persons served that may be reported be ner sources.
Ho	ow to protect the privacy of the persons served.
_	
Но	ow to protect the dignity of the persons served.
Ho -	ow to, on an going basis: Observe for changes in persons served.
-	Communicate observed or reported changes.
ow o	does your program ensure that personnel are knowledgeable about early stating possible dementia and aging-related decline?

When early signs of possible dementia or aging-related decline are identified, what is your process for making a recommendation to the case manager responsible for the person's healthcare for further evaluation?
If a person served has had a diagnosis confirmed, how do you determine if the scope of your program can support the person to remain and age in place?
If applicable, give some examples of how your person-centered planning process has responded to new identified needs to allow such individuals to remain in the program.
If it is determined that scope of your program cannot support these new needs: ■ How is transition planning initiated?
How do you ensure that transfer of information occurs to support successful transition?

Documentation Examples

The following are examples of the types of documents and other information you should have available to demonstrate conformance to the standards in this section. Note that for some items, evidence of conformance is not required to be in writing. See Appendix A in the standards manual for more information on standards that specifically require written documentation.

- Information provided about the program and the services offered
- Records of persons served
- Policy that identifies the program's role related to medication management
- Written procedures that address compliance with laws and regulations pertaining to medications and controlled substances, if applicable
- Personnel training records
- Evidence of personnel scheduling and assignments
- Evidence of education provided to personnel and volunteers on how to identify and respond to changing needs of the persons served
- Evidence of personnel knowledge about the early signs of dementia and the program's response to confirmed diagnosis of a person served

F. Service Delivery Using Information and Communication Technologies

Applicable Star	ndards		
	If the program uses information and comm services, Standards 2.F.1.–8. apply.	nunication technolo	gies (ICT) to deliver
1.	Describe what services your program provid technologies.	es via information a	nd communication
	Do you have written procedures that address Consent of the person served?	s:	□ No
	Audio recording, video recording, and photographing the person served?	☐ Yes	□ No
	 Decision making about when to use inforversus in-person services: 	rmation and commu	nication technology
	At the beginning of services?	☐ Yes	□ No
	 Throughout the course of services? 	☐ Yes	□ No
	 Do you have written procedures to confir equipment is available and functions: 	m that all necessary	technology and/or
	Prior to the start of service delivery?	☐ Yes	□ No
	 As needed throughout services? 	☐ Yes	□ No
	 At the location of the: 		
	- Person served?	☐ Yes	□ No
	- Provider?	☐ Yes	□ No
	To verify at each encounter:The identity of the person served?	☐ Yes	□ No
	– The identity of the provider?	☐ Yes	□ No
	 The physical location of the person served? 	☐ Yes	□ No
	■ To maintain privacy during the delivery of services?	☐ Yes	□ No

-	To respond to technology disruption that impacts the delivery of services?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Ho	ow do you ensure that these written proce	edures are consi	stently implemented?
W]	here are these procedures documented?		
ser	escribe the competency-based training provices effectively via information and con Human factors.		
•	Crisis response procedures.		
•	Assessment of risk factors in the environ	nment of the per	son served.
•	How to modify treatment techniques/in	terventions to d	eliver services virtually.
inc	escribe the competency-based training pr cluding hardware and software, in the fol Features.	-	nnel on equipment,

SECTION 2.F. SERVICE DELIVERY USING INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGIES

•	Setup.
-	Use.
•	Maintenance.
	Safety considerations.
	Infection control.
-	Troubleshooting.
Н	ow and where is this training documented?
Do th	escribe how instruction and training are provided to the persons served, members o e family/support system, and others.

Do the instruction and training on equipme		•
■ Features?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Setup?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Use?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Maintenance?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Safety considerations?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Infection control?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Troubleshooting?	☐ Yes	□ No
Describe the instruction and training provide environment to receive services.	led on creating a	an appropriate
How will you demonstrate or verify this for	the survey team	?
Are persons served provided information of How to contact the program?	n:	□ No
■ The expected timeframe for response?	☐ Yes	□ No
How do personnel provide technical assistar the program?	nce with accessin	ng the services provided by
Does your program have personnel to addre	ess questions rela	ated to service delivery?

	ibe how you ensure that, based on identified need, there is an appropriate ator at the location of the person served.
	n example for each of the following areas of how service delivery has been ied based on the needs of the person served:
Tre	eatment techniques/interventions.
Eq	uipment.
Ma	aterials.
Fn	vironment at the location of the person served, including:
-	Accessibility.
_	Privacy.
	•

Describe how the following are accomplished prior to the start of each session: Any participants in the session in addition to the person served are identified. The organization provides information that is relevant to the session. Give some examples of the information that is provided. How will you demonstrate or verify for the survey team that equipment is maintain in accordance with manufacturers' recommendations? Do you have emergency procedures in place that address the unique aspects of service delivery via information and communication technologies? Yes	 Usability of equipment. 		
■ Any participants in the session in addition to the person served are identified. ■ The organization provides information that is relevant to the session. Give some examples of the information that is provided. How will you demonstrate or verify for the survey team that equipment is maintain in accordance with manufacturers' recommendations? Do you have emergency procedures in place that address the unique aspects of service delivery via information and communication technologies? □ Yes □ No Do these procedures include: ■ Identification of an emergency contact for the person served, including phone			
Give some examples of the information that is provided. How will you demonstrate or verify for the survey team that equipment is maintain in accordance with manufacturers' recommendations? Do you have emergency procedures in place that address the unique aspects of service delivery via information and communication technologies? Yes No Do these procedures include: Identification of an emergency contact for the person served, including phone		=	
How will you demonstrate or verify for the survey team that equipment is maintain in accordance with manufacturers' recommendations? Do you have emergency procedures in place that address the unique aspects of service delivery via information and communication technologies? Yes No Do these procedures include: Identification of an emergency contact for the person served, including phone	■ The organization provides information the	hat is relevant t	o the session.
Do you have emergency procedures in place that address the unique aspects of service delivery via information and communication technologies? ☐ Yes ☐ No Do these procedures include: ■ Identification of an emergency contact for the person served, including phone	Give some examples of the information that	is provided.	
Do you have emergency procedures in place that address the unique aspects of service delivery via information and communication technologies? Yes No Do these procedures include: Identification of an emergency contact for the person served, including phone			nt equipment is maintain
of service delivery via information and communication technologies? ☐ Yes ☐ No Do these procedures include: ☐ Identification of an emergency contact for the person served, including phone	The decordance with managedurers recomme	enducions.	
Do these procedures include: ■ Identification of an emergency contact for the person served, including phone			
 Identification of an emergency contact for the person served, including phone 		☐ Yes	☐ No
 Identification of an emergency contact for the person served, including phone 	Do these procedures include:		
number(I Yec I No	 Identification of an emergency contact 	☐ Yes	□ No

Identification of local emergency resources, including phone numbers?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ The provider becoming familiar with the emergency procedures at the location of the person served, if the procedures exist?	□ Yes	□ No
How do you ensure that these procedures can of an emergency?	n be implemented in	n the event
Does the program's documented scope of ser Geographic areas served?	Yes Yes	□ No
■ The communication technology used to deliver services?	☐ Yes	□ No
Where is this information documented?		
Where is this information documented?		

Documentation Examples

The following are examples of the types of documents and other information you should have available to demonstrate conformance to the standards in this section. Note that for some items, evidence of conformance is not required to be in writing. See Appendix A for more information on standards that specifically require written documentation.

- Program's scope of ICT services
- Written procedures for the use of information and communication technologies
- Documentation of training provided to personnel who deliver services via information and communication technologies on how to deliver services effectively via information and communication technologies and on the equipment used
- Records of equipment maintenance in accordance with manufacturers' instructions
- Emergency procedures that address service delivery via information and communication technologies
- Individual plans of the persons served

SECTION 3

Program Specific Standards

A. Adult Day Services

Are adult day services the only services offered by your organization?				
	☐ Yes	☐ No		
If <i>No</i> , describe how space is des	ignated for adult day services			
Are personnel shared?	☐ Yes	□ No		
If Yes, how do you designate per	rsonnel for the adult day serv	ices program?		
How do you define the continu	um of services available to yo	ur population?		
What role does your adult day s	services program have with of	ther service providers		
throughout this continuum?				

Wh	ere can surveyors find this information documented?
Des	cribe your linkages with other service providers in the continuum.
	es the program calculate and document its unit cost data at least annually art of the budgeting process?
Цот	Tes Till
	v do you use this information to develop comparative analyses that help with sion-making.
deci	
deci	sion-making.
Hov	sion-making.
Hov	v are unit cost data shared with relevant stakeholders?

for	scribe how your program provides, arranges or assists with arrangements services for each family/support system in the following areas: Advocacy education.
_	Travocacy education.
	Assistive technology.
	Counseling/support services.
	Education.
	Reasonable accommodations.
	Respite.
	Support.

_	Adult protective services.
_	Alternate housing.
_	
	Care management services.
_	
_	Community service organizations.
•	Crisis intervention programs.
_	In-home services, including home healthcare and homemaker services.
-	Meal delivery services.
_	
-	Specialized services unique to the population served.

	Transportation services.
	Wellness and health promotion.
	Other services, as needed.
Ho	ow is this done for persons served?
Ho	ow is this done for family/support systems?
	pes the program provide education to the persons served and families/support stems about medications to be given during program hours?
	☐ Yes ☐ No
	escribe the specific education that is provided, including the topics covered d how the education is delivered, to address:
•	Actions to take in case of an emergency.
•	Administration/assistance.

Dispensing.
Documentation.
Errors.
 Identification of medication, including why each medication is given.
 Implications of abrupt discontinuation.
Implications for management of multiple medications.
Indications and contraindications.
Procedures for handling controlled substances.

Side effects.							
■ Storage.							
Identify a minimum of 20 files of the perso	ons ser	ved for the	e sur	vev team	to re	view.	
Use the following emergency information				•			
Advance directives.		Present		Absent		N/A	
■ Allergies.		Present		Absent		N/A	
■ Behavioral symptoms.		Present		Absent		N/A	
■ Cognitive status		Present		Absent		N/A	
 Current diagnoses/conditions and history. 		Present		Absent		N/A	
■ Emergency contact information.		Present		Absent		N/A	
■ Equipment and devices.		Present		Absent		N/A	
■ Functional status.		Present		Absent		N/A	
■ Hospital preferences.		Present		Absent		N/A	
 Healthcare providers involved in care, including contact information. 		Present		Absent		N/A	
Immunization status.		Present		Absent		N/A	
■ Insurance information.		Present		Absent		N/A	
■ Medications.		Present		Absent		N/A	
■ Mental health status.		Present		Absent		N/A	
Photograph (for identification of the person served).		Present		Absent		N/A	
Prosthetics and orthotics information.		Present		Absent		N/A	
Risk factors.		Present		Absent		N/A	
 Vision and hearing 		Present	П	Ahsant	П	NI/A	

Documentation Examples

The following are examples of the types of documents and other information you should have available to demonstrate conformance to the standards in this section. Note that for some items, evidence of conformance is not required to be in writing. See Appendix A in the standards manual for more information on standards that specifically require written documentation.

- Program handbook with information for local services available to persons served and their families/support systems
- Emergency files for each person served
- Medication administration tracking log

B. Assisted Living

W.	here would surveyors specifically find information regarding: The ages that are served?
•	Any limitations in activities of daily living that can be served in the program?
	Behavioral status of individuals that can be served?
-	Cultural needs that can be served by the program?
-	Medical conditions that can be addressed?
•	Any participation restrictions that can be helped or supported by the program?
	Psychological status of individuals that can be served in the program?

rson-centered plans of persons served: The person served.				
	Freating physicians.			
	reating physicians.			
	Healthcare professionals such as therapists, nutritionists, or others.			
	Members of the family/support system, as appropriate.			
	Other stakeholders, as appropriate, such as funders, discharge planners from acute care, or others based on the individual's situation.			

	he program also serves the spouses or significant others of persons served, wide examples of how service delivery recognizes the importance of these lividuals in the lives of the person served.
_	
	scribe opportunities for private interaction between the person served his or her spouse/significant other.
_	
to 1	scribe opportunities for the person served and his or her spouse/significant of the together for typical daily activities, special events, and other occasions of portance to the person served.
o 1	be together for typical daily activities, special events, and other occasions of
to 1	be together for typical daily activities, special events, and other occasions of
to im	scribe the choices people have to maintain their normal routines in the lowing areas:
De	be together for typical daily activities, special events, and other occasions of portance to the person served. Scribe the choices people have to maintain their normal routines in the
De	scribe the choices people have to maintain their normal routines in the lowing areas:
to im	scribe the choices people have to maintain their normal routines in the lowing areas:

•	Eating.
•	Bathing, both when and how.
•	Oral care.
-	Dressing.
-	Hygiene.
-	Choice of clothing.
-	Choice of grooming style.
•	Cleaning.

Com	nmunity activities.	
Cont	tact with pets.	
Cook	king.	
Gard	dening.	
Intim	macy.	
Recre	reation.	
Exerc	rcise/mobility activities.	
Hobb	bies.	

	•	Social interactions.
	•	Religious and spiritual activities.
		escribe how the fulfillment of one resident's desires respects the needs of others the community.
	_	
5.	is a	view the standard language and provide examples of how the service delivery team aware of these areas when providing services to individuals and how these areas pact how services are provided.
	_	
	_	
6.	W	here can the surveyors find PRN medications?
	Но	ow do personnel identify when PRN medications are needed for individuals?

tified.	procedures for timely administration of PRN medications once a ne
o pers	sonnel follow up to determine the effectiveness of the PRN medication
are the	e regulations pertaining to medications that are applicable to your ?
	ese regulations, how does the team assess options for: on storage?
dicatio	on administration?
	on administration!
ning o	on administration:
	f administration?
ation	

•	Self-administration?
•	Over-the-counter medications?
•	Complementary health approaches?
	ow does your team collaborate with persons served regarding each of the ove topics?
	escribe the methods that the program uses to ensure that persons served are safe their units and throughout the program.
	entify two or three examples of respectful ways that the program keeps a watchful e on persons served.
W	hat indicator do you use to measure falls and where is this indicator documented?

What is your target for falls reduction?
What trends have you seen from measuring falls?
What actions have you implemented to reduce falls based on your measurement?
What were the results of these improvements?
What education and training have you conducted regarding falls?
What indicator do you have to measure a wellness topic for persons served and where is this indicator documented?
What target have you identified for your wellness indicator?

What trends have you seen regarding the wellness topic you are measuring?			
What actions have you taken to improve you have measured?	the area or topic o	f wellness that	
What were the results of those actions?			
What education and training did you implement regarding the wellness t you measured?			
Does the organization provide personne • At orientation?	l training:	□ No	
Does the organization provide personne At orientation? At regular intervals?	· ·	□ No	
■ At orientation?	☐ Yes		
At orientation?At regular intervals?Does this training include information or	Yes Yes on:	□ No	
 At orientation? At regular intervals? Does this training include information of Aging process? 	Yes Yes on:	□ No	
 At orientation? At regular intervals? Does this training include information of Aging process? Dementia? 	Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes	□ No □ No □ No	
 At orientation? At regular intervals? Does this training include information of Aging process? Dementia? Disease management? 	Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes	□ No □ No □ No □ No	
 At orientation? At regular intervals? Does this training include information of Aging process? Dementia? Disease management? Fall prevention? 	Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes	□ No □ No □ No □ No □ No	

■ Topics identified by:		
Persons served?	Yes	□ No
- Personnel?	Yes	☐ No
■ Work place violence?	Yes	□ No
■ Working with external entities?	☐ Yes	☐ No
. Describe your written procedures that	address:	
■ Conducting criminal background c	hecks of all personne	el.
■ Timeframes for criminal backgroun	nd check verification:	
 Prior to the delivery of services t 		
Throughout ampleyment		
 Throughout employment. 		
Describe the actions that are taken rega	arding information fo	ound through these
procedures.		
Where can surveyors find these writter	procedures?	

13. Identify a minimum of ten closed records of the persons served for the survey team to review. Use the following checklist to review the contents of the records. Not all items may apply in all situations. Try to identify at least some records that demonstrate each of these items. This list will also be used by surveyors on site while reviewing current emergency information in open records. Advance directives or end-of-life issues.	12.	Describe ways that your organization's leader in research opportunities that can help advato persons served.			
to review. Use the following checklist to review the contents of the records. Not all items may apply in all situations. Try to identify at least some records that demonstrate each of these items. This list will also be used by surveyors on site while reviewing current emergency information in open records. Advance directives or end-of-life issues. Present Absent N/A Allergies and sensitivities. Present Absent N/A Behavioral symptoms. Present Absent N/A Cognitive status. Present Absent N/A Current diagnoses/conditions and history. Present Absent N/A Emergency contact information. Present Absent N/A Functional status. Present Absent N/A Healthcare providers involved in care, including contact information. Present Absent N/A Hospital preference. Present Absent N/A Insurance information. Present Absent N/A Legally appointed decision maker(s), including contact information. Present Absent N/A Medications. Present Absent N/A Mental and behavioral healthcare providers involved in care, including contact information. Present Absent N/A Mental and behavioral healthcare providers involved in care, including contact information. Present Absent N/A Mental and behavioral healthcare providers involved in care, including contact information. Present Absent N/A					
■ Allergies and sensitivities.	13.	to review. Use the following checklist to revitems may apply in all situations. Try to identicate of these items. This list will also be use current emergency information in open rec	iew the content at ify at least somed by surveyors ords.	s of the records ne records that on site while re	s. Not all demonstrate eviewing
■ Behavioral symptoms.					
Cognitive status.		•			_
 ■ Current diagnoses/conditions and history. ■ Emergency contact information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Equipment and devices. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Functional status. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Healthcare providers involved in care, including contact information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Communication needs. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Hospital preference. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Insurance information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Legally appointed decision maker(s), including contact information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Medications. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Mental and behavioral healthcare providers involved in care, including contact information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A 		, -			
and history.		■ Cognitive status.	☐ Present	☐ Absent	□ N/A
 ■ Emergency contact information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Equipment and devices. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Functional status. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Healthcare providers involved in care, including contact information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Communication needs. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Insurance information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Insurance information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Legally appointed decision maker(s), including contact information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Medications. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Mental and behavioral healthcare providers involved in care, including contact information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A 			☐ Present	☐ Absent	□ N/A
 ■ Equipment and devices. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Functional status. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Healthcare providers involved in care, including contact information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Communication needs. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Hospital preference. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Insurance information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Legally appointed decision maker(s), including contact information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Medications. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Mental and behavioral healthcare providers involved in care, including contact information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A 		·	☐ Present	☐ Absent	□ N/A
 ■ Functional status. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Healthcare providers involved in care, including contact information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Communication needs. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Hospital preference. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Insurance information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Legally appointed decision maker(s), including contact information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Medications. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Mental and behavioral healthcare providers involved in care, including contact information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Present □ Absent □ N/A 			☐ Present	☐ Absent	□ N/A
including contact information. Present Absent N/A Communication needs. Present Absent N/A Hospital preference. Present Absent N/A Immunization status. Present Absent N/A Insurance information. Present Absent N/A Legally appointed decision maker(s), including contact information. Present Absent N/A Present N/A Present Absent N/A			☐ Present	☐ Absent	□ N/A
 ■ Hospital preference. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Immunization status. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Legally appointed decision maker(s), including contact information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Medications. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Mental and behavioral healthcare providers involved in care, including contact information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A 		•	☐ Present	☐ Absent	□ N/A
 Immunization status. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A □ Insurance information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Medications. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Mental and behavioral healthcare providers involved in care, including contact information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A 		■ Communication needs.	☐ Present	☐ Absent	□ N/A
 ■ Insurance information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Legally appointed decision maker(s), including contact information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Medications. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Mental and behavioral healthcare providers involved in care, including contact information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A 		■ Hospital preference.	☐ Present	☐ Absent	□ N/A
 ■ Legally appointed decision maker(s), including contact information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Medications. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Mental and behavioral healthcare providers involved in care, including contact information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A 		■ Immunization status.	☐ Present	☐ Absent	□ N/A
including contact information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Medications. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A ■ Mental and behavioral healthcare providers involved in care, including contact information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A		■ Insurance information.	☐ Present	☐ Absent	□ N/A
■ Mental and behavioral healthcare providers involved in care, including contact information. □ Present □ Absent □ N/A		0 , 11	☐ Present	☐ Absent	□ N/A
providers involved in care, including contact information.		■ Medications.	☐ Present	☐ Absent	□ N/A
		providers involved in care, including	☐ Present	□ Ahsent	□ N/A

-	Photograph (for identification of the person served).	☐ Present	☐ Absent	□ N/A
•	Prosthetics and orthotics information.	☐ Present	☐ Absent	□ N/A
-	Risk factors.	☐ Present	☐ Absent	□ N/A
-	Spiritual preferences.	☐ Present	☐ Absent	□ N/A
_	Vision.	☐ Present	□ Absent	□ N/A

Documentation Examples

The following are examples of the types of documents and other information you should have available to demonstrate conformance to the standards in this section. Note that for some items, evidence of conformance is not required to be in writing. See Appendix A in the standards manual for more information on standards that specifically require written documentation.

- Marketing packet with information about characteristics of populations who can be served in assisted living
- Policies and procedures regarding administration of PRN (as needed) medications
- Measurements of falls
- Measurements of well-being
- Procedures regarding conducting criminal background checks of personnel
- Emergency files for persons served
- Schedules of meetings between personnel and persons served

C. Person-Centered Long-Term Care Community

)e	escribe how it addresses:
	Autonomy in decision making.
	Choice.
	Cultural competence.
	Flexibility.
	Holistic service delivery.
	Individuality.

Personnel.	Give some examples of l ■ Leadership.	now this philosophy is a	modeled by:	
Persons served. Give some examples of how this philosophy guides service delivery. Describe how and when you communicate your philosophy to stakeholders n an understandable manner.	Leadership.			
Persons served. Give some examples of how this philosophy guides service delivery. Describe how and when you communicate your philosophy to stakeholders n an understandable manner.				
Persons served. Give some examples of how this philosophy guides service delivery. Describe how and when you communicate your philosophy to stakeholders n an understandable manner.				
Persons served. Give some examples of how this philosophy guides service delivery. Describe how and when you communicate your philosophy to stakeholders n an understandable manner.				
Give some examples of how this philosophy guides service delivery. Describe how and when you communicate your philosophy to stakeholders n an understandable manner.	Personnel.			
Give some examples of how this philosophy guides service delivery. Describe how and when you communicate your philosophy to stakeholders n an understandable manner.				
Give some examples of how this philosophy guides service delivery. Describe how and when you communicate your philosophy to stakeholders n an understandable manner.				
Give some examples of how this philosophy guides service delivery. Describe how and when you communicate your philosophy to stakeholders n an understandable manner.				
Describe how and when you communicate your philosophy to stakeholders n an understandable manner.	Persons served.			
Describe how and when you communicate your philosophy to stakeholders n an understandable manner.				
Describe how and when you communicate your philosophy to stakeholders n an understandable manner.				
Describe how and when you communicate your philosophy to stakeholders n an understandable manner.				
Describe how and when you communicate your philosophy to stakeholders n an understandable manner.		d: 1:1 1	. 1 . 1 1.	
n an understandable manner.	Give some examples of	iow this philosophy gu	ides service denvery.	
n an understandable manner.				
n an understandable manner.				
n an understandable manner.				
n an understandable manner.				
Describe how your philosophy is reflected in the engagement of stakeholders.	Describe how and when n an understandable m	you communicate you anner.	r philosophy to stakeho	olders
Describe how your philosophy is reflected in the engagement of stakeholders.				
Describe how your philosophy is reflected in the engagement of stakeholders.				
Describe how your philosophy is reflected in the engagement of stakeholders.				
Describe how your philosophy is reflected in the engagement of stakeholders.				
Describe now your philosophy is reflected in the engagement of stakeholders.	Doganih o h ozy zvova mbil	oo ombre is moffe at ad in th	a an account of stales	h aldana
	Describe now your phile	sopny is reflected in tr	ie engagement of stake.	noiders.

Entry criteria.
•
Transition/exit criteria.
Resources available.
Resources previously used.
Initial and ongoing screenings/assessments.
micial and ongoing screenings, assessments.
The person's potential to benefit.
The Person of Continue to Continue

	The person's personal preferences.
for	ow is information shared with persons served and others regarding arrangement the following categories of services: Behavioral health?
•	Diagnostic?
•	Laboratory?
	Medical?
	Pharmacy?

	Rehabilitation?				
	Social?				
-	Spiritual?				
-					
	initial and ongoing screenings/assessmen		o:		No
	Life routines?	☐ Yes			No
]	Life roles?	☐ Yes			No
]	Family/support system?	☐ Yes			No
]	History?	☐ Yes			No
•	w is the information that is gathered in ean members?	ch of the	areas shared	wi	th

	cle events that have meaning to:
_	Persons served.
•	Families/support systems.
•	Personnel.
	here is the program's procedure for involving persons served in decision making an ongoing basis?
— Но	ow does the procedure address: The assessment of the capacity of persons served to make decisions?
•	The assessment of the capacity of persons served to make decisions? The education of persons served regarding the consequences of potentially

•	Facilitating discussion for de	cision making?	
•	Minimizing any barriers to c	lecision making by the pers	ons served?
	escribe how discussions and d the person served.	ecisions are documented in	the records
W]	ho performs this risk assessm	ent?	□ No
	hen is it completed?		
	o the risk assessments address	the following areas:	
•	Behavioral?	☐ Yes	☐ No
•	Cognition?	☐ Yes	☐ No
•	Communication?	☐ Yes	☐ No
•	Dental?	☐ Yes	☐ No
•	Function?	☐ Yes	☐ No
•	Health?	☐ Yes	☐ No
-	Physical?	☐ Yes	☐ No

■ Medication?	Yes	☐ No
■ Nutrition?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Pain management?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Psychosocial?	Yes	□ No
■ Recreation and leisure?	Yes	□ No
Give some examples of how risk assessmentered plans of persons served and/or		
Describe ways that you educate persons in the long-term care program.	s served about the ch	oices available to them
What are some ways that you documen	at the preferences of t	he persons served?
How do you communicate the preferen	ices of the persons se	rved with stakeholders?

What are some examples of how person-centered plans have been implemented in accordance with the documented preferences of the persons served?
Provide examples of how your team fosters positive relationships with persons served to foster personnel empowerment to make decisions at the front line and to enhance quality of life for persons served.
How do you provide or arrange for: ■ Health promotion?
■ Services that prevent illness?
■ Health screenings?

	•	Dis	sease management?
11.			ibe how you assist the residents and their families/support systems to develop r increase:
	•	So	cial contacts, as desired:
		-	Within the program.
		-	External to the program.
	•	Re	lationships, as desired:
		-	Within the program.
		_	External to the program.
12.			ibe some ways that sensory stimulation is being used for individuals with ntia.
	W]	here	e is this documented in the person-centered plan for the individual?

. How are the preferences of the persons served identified relative to assessing the use of complementary health approaches and providing education, information, and resources? How does the program assess the person's use of complementary and alternative medicine? Describe the education provided on the efficacy and safety of interventions. Give examples of the types of information and resources the program provides on integrative medicine.	V	What results have you seen in those where sensory stimulation has been used?
use of complementary health approaches and providing education, information, and resources? How does the program assess the person's use of complementary and alternative medicine? Describe the education provided on the efficacy and safety of interventions. Give examples of the types of information and resources the program provides	_	
Describe the education provided on the efficacy and safety of interventions. Give examples of the types of information and resources the program provides	u	use of complementary health approaches and providing education, information,
Describe the education provided on the efficacy and safety of interventions. Give examples of the types of information and resources the program provides	_	
Give examples of the types of information and resources the program provides		
Give examples of the types of information and resources the program provides	_	
	Γ	Describe the education provided on the efficacy and safety of interventions.
	_	
on integrative medicine.		Give examples of the types of information and resources the program provides on integrative medicine.
	_	
	_	

-	Time of waking.
	Time for sleeping.
	Eating.
	Bathing, both when and how.
	<i>C</i>
	Oral care.
	Dressing.
	Hygiene.
	Choice of clothing.
	Č

•	Choice of grooming style.
_	
	Cleaning.
_	
	Community activities.
_	Contact with pets.
	Cooking.
_	Gardening.
[ntimacy.
F	Recreation.
_	

	Exercise/mobility activities.
•	Hobbies.
•	Social interactions.
•	Religious and spiritual activities.
	escribe how the fulfillment of one resident's desires respects the needs of others
in 	the community.
_	
_	
	here can surveyors find policies and written procedures specifically regarding rvices provided by nursing personnel that address: Education regarding identified needs of persons served?
se	rvices provided by nursing personnel that address:

16.

Pain?			
Rehabilitation issues?			
Skin integrity?			
Identifying a need for and implementing a	a specialt	ty consultation)
Who provides medical management	orocedur Yes		e following:
Who provides medical management for the persons served? Who provides rehabilitation management	☐ Yes		_
Who provides medical management for the persons served? Who provides rehabilitation management for the persons served? If these are not the same physician, mechanisms for coordination,	☐ Yes		I No
Who provides medical management for the persons served? Who provides rehabilitation management for the persons served? If these are not the same physician, mechanisms for coordination, communication, and collaboration?	YesYesYes	ncluding:	l No
responsibilities of the attending	☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ Yes☐ ement, in	ncluding:	I No I No I No

24 hours a day, 7 days a week?	ysician coverage	
Who provides this coverage?		
Access to consulting physicians to treat continuing, unstable, or complex medical conditions?	□ Yes	□ No
Prevention, including:		
 Prevention of further disability? 	☐ Yes	□ No
Medical complications?	☐ Yes	☐ No
- Adverse events?	☐ Yes	□ No
scribe how the program communicates		
scribe how the program communicates		
 Adverse events? Scribe how the program communicates of the time of entry into the program. When there are significant changes in the time of the program. 	with the physicia	n(s) of the person
At the time of entry into the program.	with the physicia	n(s) of the person

	How do you ensure that the communications are timely so that they are happening when the information needs to be shared?
8.	Describe your procedures for emergency crisis situations that might involve managing behaviors.
	Explain how use of these procedures would be aligned with the person-centered plan of the individual.
9.	Which professionals require privileges to provide services in your program?
	Describe how your organization's privileging process addresses each of the following areas:
	 Qualifications required to provide professional services in the long-term care program.
	■ Experience and training required to provide professional services in the long-term care program.

he/she board certified?	☐ Yes	□ No
Yes, describe his/her education/expe	rience.	
57 1 1 1 1 1 1 . · ·	☐ Yes	☐ No
o you have a physician who participa ng-term care program?	ites in the medical di	rection of your
A system to ensure that practice is	consistent with the pr	rivileges granted.
A mechanism to demonstrate curre	nt competency relative	ve to the privileges grant
A system to address modification o	r withdrawal of privi	leges.
A system to monitor performance i	n executing the privi	leges granted.
Specific responsibilities in accordar	nce with the privilege	s granted.
	A system to monitor performance is A system to address modification of the control of the contr	Yes Yes, describe his/her education/experience.

Is t	there a contract in place that outlines the responsibilities of the medical director
D۵	☐ Yes ☐ No escribe the medical director's involvement in the following activities:
	Ensuring the adequacy of individual treatment prescriptions and programs, including notations of contraindications and precautions.
-	Developing ongoing relationships with the medical community.
•	Educational activities with program personnel.
•	Establishing policies and written procedures that identify the functions and responsibilities of the physician.
•	Performance improvement activities.
•	Advocating for persons served.
-	Advocating for persons served.

Resource utilization management. Stakeholder relationship management. Marketing and promoting the program. Strategic planning. Financial planning and decision making.	Program development and modification.	
Resource utilization management. Stakeholder relationship management. Marketing and promoting the program. Strategic planning. Financial planning and decision making.		
Stakeholder relationship management. Marketing and promoting the program. Strategic planning. Financial planning and decision making.	Establishing policies and procedures for the program.	
Stakeholder relationship management. Marketing and promoting the program. Strategic planning. Financial planning and decision making.		
Marketing and promoting the program. Strategic planning. Financial planning and decision making.	Resource utilization management.	
Marketing and promoting the program. Strategic planning. Financial planning and decision making.		
Strategic planning. Financial planning and decision making.	Stakeholder relationship management.	
Strategic planning. Financial planning and decision making.		
Financial planning and decision making.	Marketing and promoting the program.	
Financial planning and decision making.	Strategic planning	
Ethical decision making.	Financial planning and decision making.	
Ethical decision making.		
	Ethical decision making.	

	personnel receive competency Orientation?	r-based training at: ☐ Yes	□ No
•	Regular intervals?	☐ Yes	☐ No
•	Aging process.		
	Aging process. Assisting persons served with	activities of daily living.	
•		activities of daily living.	
•	Assisting persons served with	activities of daily living.	

Fal	prevention.
Pai	n management.
Per	formance measurement and management.
Pre	vention related to:
	vention related to: Recurrence of the illness, injury, impairment, or disability.
_	
_	Recurrence of the illness, injury, impairment, or disability. Potential risks and complications due to the illness, injury, impairment,
_	Recurrence of the illness, injury, impairment, or disability. Potential risks and complications due to the illness, injury, impairment,
_	Recurrence of the illness, injury, impairment, or disability. Potential risks and complications due to the illness, injury, impairment, or disability.
Psy	Recurrence of the illness, injury, impairment, or disability. Potential risks and complications due to the illness, injury, impairment, or disability.

	■ Topics identified by persons served.
	■ Topics identified by personnel.
	■ Wellness.
	■ Working with external entities.
	Is competency-based training documented? ☐ Yes ☐ No Where is training documented?
	Identify which personnel should receive training as it corresponds to their roles within the organization.
4.	Describe the learning environment for personnel.

	Embodies the skills, knowledge, and competencies expected of personnel.
	Recognizes and respects individual learning styles, needs, and strengths.
	Provides education opportunities that reflect the learning styles, needs, and strengths of personnel.
I	Identifies and develops emerging leaders.
_	
_	
v	w does the program:
	Measure the satisfaction of personnel with the learning opportunities?
-	
1	Measure the effectiveness of the learning opportunities provided?
_	
_	Address performance improvement of the learning environment?
_	

25.	Identify at least one indicator of personnel satisfaction included in the program's data collection system.
26.	Describe some of the ways that persons served are encouraged to provide feedback regarding personnel performance.
27.	How does the leadership support the program's participation in research opportunities?
	What is the program's current involvement in research opportunities?
	What type of information does the program provide to persons served and families/ support systems about available clinical trials?

far	escribe ways that the program provide mily/support system of the person ser the person served.		
_			
de	a person served has questions regardiescribe ways that you could either proerson served to obtain the information	vide information or	arrange for the
of	formation on the following should be persons served in a person-centered Behavior. - Is this information collected? - Who collects it?		
	- Where can this information be fo	ound?	
•	Function - Is this information collected? - Who collects it?	□ Yes	□ No
	- Where can this information be fo	ound?	
	Health.		

- Who collects it?			
 Where can this information be found 	nd?		
Medication. – Is this information collected?	☐ Yes	□ No	
Who collects it?	u ies	u No	
Where can this information be four	nd?		
Nutrition.			
– Is this information collected?	Yes	☐ No	
- Who collects it?			
Where can this information be four	nd?		
Pain management.			
– Is this information collected?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
- Who collects it?			
 Where can this information be four 	nd?		
Psychosocial.			
- Is this information collected?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
- Who collects it?			

ecreation and leisure. Is this information collected?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Who collects it?		
Where can this information be found	?	
ne information gathered analyzed to add		
Performance in relationship to establishe - Behavior?	d targets in the	following areas: No
- Function?	☐ Yes	☐ No
- Health?	☐ Yes	☐ No
- Medication?	☐ Yes	☐ No
- Nutrition?	☐ Yes	☐ No
- Pain management?	☐ Yes	☐ No
- Psychosocial?	☐ Yes	☐ No
- Recreation and leisure?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Trends?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Actions for improvement?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Results of performance improvement		.
olans?	☐ Yes	□ No
Education of persons served?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Education of families/support systems?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Education of healthcare providers?	☐ Yes	☐ No
n analysis completed at least annually?	☐ Yes	☐ No
lain how the analysis is developed and us	sed.	

	of information gathered.	en impiementet	i iii response to	o the analysis
31.	Give examples of how the following have be plans: • A palliative approach to care.	een incorporated	d into person-o	centered
	■ End-of-life care.			
32.	Identify at least ten closed records of the pe Use the following checklist to review the co apply in all situations. Try to identify at leas these items. This list will also be used by su emergency information in open records.	ontents of the rec st some records	cords. Not all it that demonstra	tems may ate each of
	■ Advance directives or end-of-life issues.	☐ Present	☐ Absent	☐ N/A
	 Allergies and sensitivities. 	☐ Present	☐ Absent	□ N/A
	■ Behavioral symptoms.	☐ Present	☐ Absent	□ N/A
	■ Cognitive status.	☐ Present	☐ Absent	□ N/A
	■ Communication status.	☐ Present	☐ Absent	□ N/A
	Current diagnoses/conditions and history.	☐ Present	☐ Absent	□ N/A
	■ Emergency contact information.	☐ Present	☐ Absent	□ N/A
	■ Equipment and devices.	☐ Present	☐ Absent	□ N/A

•	Functional status.	☐ Present	t 🗖	Absent	N/A
•	Healthcare providers involved in care, including contact information.	☐ Present	t 🗖	Absent	N/A
•	Hospital preference.	☐ Present	t 🗖	Absent	N/A
•	Immunization status.	☐ Present	t 🗖	Absent	N/A
-	Insurance information.	☐ Present	t 🗖	Absent	N/A
•	Legally appointed decision maker(s), including contact information.	☐ Present	t 🗖	Absent	N/A
•	Medications.	☐ Present	t 🗖	Absent	N/A
	Mental and behavioral healthcare providers involved in care, including contact information.	☐ Present	t 🗖	Absent	N/A
•	Mental health status.	☐ Present	t 🗆	Absent	N/A
-	Photograph (for identification of the person served).	☐ Present	t 🗖	Absent	N/A
•	Prosthetics and orthotics information.	☐ Present	t 🗖	Absent	N/A
-	Risk factors.	☐ Present	t 🗖	Absent	N/A
•	Spiritual preferences.	☐ Present	t 🗖	Absent	N/A
•	Vision.	☐ Present	t 🗖	Absent	N/A

Documentation Examples

The following are examples of the types of documents and other information you should have available to demonstrate conformance to the standards in this section. Note that for some items, evidence of conformance is not required to be in writing. See Appendix A in the standards manual for more information on standards that specifically require written documentation.

- Documentation in a resident handbook of the organization's philosophy regarding person-centered care
- Documentation in an employee handbook of the organization's philosophy regarding person-centered care
- Admission criteria
- Criteria that may prompt a transition for additional care
- Discharge criteria
- Resident Bill of Rights
- Assessment tools
- Documented preferences in the person-centered plan for each person served
- Handbook for families/support systems identifying resources and information about the long term care program

- Procedures for personnel identifying how they understand and support the individual rhythm of the day for each person served
- Policies and procedures regarding medical/physician involvement in the program
- Written privileging processes
- Documentation about the roles and responsibilities of the medical director
- Training schedules and topics addressed
- Survey used to measure personnel satisfaction
- Emergency files for each person served

D. Home and Community Services

List t	ne services provided by your HCS program.
	examples of other services, supports, and programs that you have referred to ed with to meet the needs of the persons served.
	is your process for identifying gaps in service delivery at the level of the

3.

List some examples of how you have address at the level of the program.	ed identified g	aps in service delivery
What is your process for identifying gaps in sperson served?	service deliver	y at the level of the
List some examples of how you have address at the level of the person served.	ed identified g	aps in service delivery
Do you have written procedures for verifying	g the backgrou	nds of all personnel?
Do you have written procedures for vernying	☐ Yes	□ No
If <i>Yes</i> , do the procedures identify actions to o	occur:	
Prior to the delivery of services to the persons served or to the organization?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ At stated intervals throughout		
employment?	☐ Yes	□ No

	some examples of actions taken in response to information received throug ground checks.
in t	ribe how you ensure that your personnel demonstrate competencies e delivery of home and community services, including: ddressing the unique needs of persons served.
- -	communication with persons served and their families/support systems.
-	
- (communication with other providers serving the persons served.
-	

	Facilitating active involvement of the persons served and families/support system n the service delivery process.
_	
]	Facilitating behavioral supports.
-	
I	Facilitating cognitive interventions.
-	
]	Handling developmental/life transitions.
-	
I	Knowledge of community resources.
-	
1	Recognition and reporting of suspected abuse and neglect.
_	
_	

Setting and maintaining professional bour	ndaries		
Do you have policies and written procedures ninimum, the following service delivery issu		e implemented an	nd address, a
Availability of appropriate equipment, supplies, etc., at the service delivery site from initial service delivery through exit/transition?	☐ Ye	s 📮	No
Confidentiality and privacy of information concerning the persons served in the home and community environments?	☐ Ye	s 🖵	No
Clarification of the roles and responsibilit	ies of:		
Families/support systems?	☐ Ye	s 🗅	No
Service providers?	☐ Ye	s 🗖	No
- Others, as appropriate?	☐ Ye	s 🗖	No
Contingency plans if either the family/ support system or the service provider is unable to deliver care?	☐ Ye	s 🗖	No
Unsuccessful delivery of services?	☐ Ye	s 📮	No
Referral/transition to other services?	☐ Ye	s \Box	No
Assignment of personnel in accordance with the needs and choices of the persons served?	☐ Ye	s 📮	No
Within the scope of services, the availabilities respond to:	ity of ho	ome and commur	nity services
Persons served?	☐ Ye	s 🗖	No
- Families/support systems?	☐ Ye	s 🗖	No
Service providers?	☐ Ye	s 🗖	No
Other stakeholders?	☐ Ye	s 🗖	No

Who performs this risk assessment? When is it completed?	s □ No				
When is it completed?					
Oo the risk assessments address the following areas:					
■ Behavioral? □ Yes	s □ No				
■ Cognitive? □ Yes	s □ No				
■ Communication? □ Yes	s □ No				
■ Developmental? □ Yes	S □ No				
■ Emotional? □ Yes	S □ No				
■ Environmental? □ Yes	S □ No				
■ Physical? □ Yes	s □ No				
■ Capability of the family/support system? □ Yes	S □ No				
■ Other, as appropriate? □ Yes	S □ No				
Give some examples of how risk assessments have resulted in changes to the personentered plans of persons served and/or improvements at the level of the services.					

What is your process for determining the sch upon time that supports the person-centered		ce delivery at an agreed
How do you determine the preferences or life	estyle needs of	the person served?
Do the plans consider each of the following:		
Assessment of the current knowledge of:		
- The person served?	☐ Yes	☐ No
- The family/support system?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Assessment of the physical environment where services are delivered, including accessibility of the environment?	☐ Yes	□ No
Identification of modifications necessary to ensure safety in the event of an emergency?	□ Yes	□ No
Community resources, including:		
- Identification of resources for:		
- Evacuation?	☐ Yes	□ No
- Shelter?	☐ Yes	☐ No
- Recovery?	□ Yes	□ No

9.

 Accessibility of resources for: 				
- Evacuation?		Yes		No
- Shelter?		Yes		No
- Recovery?		Yes		No
■ Basic needs in the event of an emergency?		Yes		No
• Identification of circumstances in which service delivery can be postponed or omitted?		Yes		No
Provisions for communication by personnel while providing services regarding decisions to continue or discontinue services?		Yes		No
Contingency plans for:The person served?		Yes		No
– The family/support system?		Yes		No
- Personnel?		Yes		No
How can the survey team verify that all of the preparedness and emergency planning for pe			side	ered in disaster
How do you identify what assistive technolog are used by the persons served?	gy, e	lectronic aids, and	d ot	her equipment

If the person served uses assistive technology, electronic aids to daily living, environmental controls, equipment, environmental modifications, and/or personal emergency response systems, how do you, on an ongoing basis:

Determine that the technology and/or equipment:

Functions properly?

_	Achieves the intended purpose?
■ No	otify the appropriate designee, as needed?
Give s	some examples of staff identifying a problem with equipment and how it was red.

	do you ensure that involvement of the family/support system in the service ery process is in accordance with the choice of the person served?
consi	y/support system throughout the service delivery process, including ongoing deration of: ne family/support system's: Ability and willingness to support and participate in the plan.
-	Composition.
_	Composition. Interpersonal dynamics.

D	ifferent methods of:
-	Engagement.
-	Communication.
-	Coping.
-	Problem solving.
St	rengths and limitations.
_	
Kı	nowledge base.
_	
_	
_	

-	Expectations of the home and community services.
_	Educational needs.
_	Responsibilities, including legal responsibilities.
_	Geographic proximity to the person served.
	nique financial, social, or cultural factors that might influence the home and mmunity services.
_	
Н	ealth status of the primary caregiver.

11.		o you have policies and written procedures e family support system in decision making	_			aboration with
		Accessible information?		Yes	•	No
	•	Timelines for exchange of information?		Yes		No
	•	Understanding of the information provided?		Yes		No
		ow do you ensure that collaboration with the aking is in accordance with the choice of the			tem	in decision
	_					
	Но	ow can the survey team verify this?				
12.	rel	o you provide education to persons served, levant stakeholders, in accordance with ider pics:		'		
	•	Accessing emergency care if necessary?		Yes		No
	-	Communication with other service providers?		Yes		No
	•	Developing a system to record personal health information?		Yes		No
		Disease management?		Yes		No
	•	Information about community resources and how to access them?		Yes		No
	•	Preventive care?		Yes		No
	•	Procedures unique to the provision of home and community services?		Yes		No
	•	Safety issues related to the service delivery site?		Yes		No
	•	Specific healthcare procedures and techniques, as appropriate?		Yes		No

Persons served.
Families/support systems.
Other relevant stakeholders.
ow can the survey team verify that this education is provided to each of the identioups?
ow can you demonstrate or verify to the survey team the mechanism(s) you have ace to ensure that both the person served and the service provider can understand communicate with each other?
_

Housing?	
T	
Transpor	tation?
Technolo	gy?
,	
ve some ex	xamples of how you advocate for the development of options for:
ve some ex Housing.	
Housing.	
Housing.	

	■ Technology.		
15.	In accordance with the choice of the person financial assistance and planning that addre		provide or arrange for
	■ Benefits planning?	☐ Provide	☐ Arrange ☐ Both
	■ Sustainability of services?	☐ Provide	☐ Arrange ☐ Both
	■ Contingency planning?	☐ Provide	☐ Arrange ☐ Both
	■ Education related to financial literacy?	☐ Provide	☐ Arrange ☐ Both
	Short- and long-term planning for futureFunding and supports available?	e services, inclu Provide	ıding: □ Arrange □ Both
	Eligibility criteria?	☐ Provide	☐ Arrange ☐ Both
	Range of services available?	☐ Provide	☐ Arrange ☐ Both
	Amount of services available?	☐ Provide	☐ Arrange ☐ Both
	Impact on continuing benefits?	☐ Provide	☐ Arrange ☐ Both
	How can the survey team verify that the abordor persons served in accordance with their		provided and/or arranged
16.	Do you address the impact of the following each person served? • Allergies?	areas on the ser	rvice delivery process for
	Current medications, including:Medication sensitivities and adverse reactions?	□ Yes	□ No
	- Why each medication is prescribed?	☐ Yes	□ No
	- Side effects?	☐ Yes	□ No
	- Drug interactions?	☐ Yes	□ No

	 Implications of abrupt discontinuation of medications? 		□ No	
		☐ Yes	☐ No	
	- Compliance?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
	Schedule for taking medications?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
	■ The etiology and anticipated course of th illness, injury, impairment, disability, or specific age or developmental need?		□ No	
	■ The results of relevant diagnostic interventions?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
	■ The results of relevant therapeutic interventions?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
	■ Communication ability?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
	■ Fatigue?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
	■ Nutrition?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
	■ Pain?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
	■ Risk factors?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
	Signs and symptoms of emergent medica or psychological conditions?	al • Yes	□ No	
	■ Sleep?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
	How do you ensure that these areas are add	ressed as needed	for each person serv	ved?
17.	Do you provide ongoing education and train individual needs, that addresses:	ning to each pers	son served, dependii	ng on
	■ Disease management?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
	■ Health advocacy, including prompt communication about health issues?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
	■ Prevention related to:			
	 Recurrence of the illness, injury, impairment, disability, or a specific age or developmental need? 	☐ Yes	□ No	

 Potential risks and complications due to the illness, injury, impairment, disability, or a specific age or developmental need? 	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Primary healthcare?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Utilization of healthcare resources?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Wellness?	☐ Yes	□ No
How do you ensure that the education and t meets his or her specific needs?	raining provide	d to the person served
How can the survey team verify that the abounded?	we education ar	nd training are provided
Do you provide education on medication to support systems that addresses, as appropria	-	
■ Actions to take in an emergency?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Administration?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Dispensing?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Disposal?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Errors?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Expiration dates?	☐ Yes	☐ No
• Identification, including purpose of each medication prescribed?	☐ Yes	□ No
Implications for management of multiple medications?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Implications of abrupt discontinuation?	☐ Yes	□ No
• Indications and contraindications?	☐ Yes	☐ No

Obtaining medication?	Yes	☐ No
■ Sharing medication?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Side effects?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Storage?	Yes	□ No
How do you ensure that the educati and/or the family/support system?	on provided is appropria	te for the person served
How can the survey team verify tha	t the above education has	s been provided?
Do you provide respite services in le If <i>Yes</i> , what processes do you have i	☐ Yes	□ No
following to the respite provider, if a Adaptive equipment?		person served brings the
Assistive technology?		
■ Emergency contact information	?	

	Information on everyday routines?
•	Information/instructions regarding any special needs?
•	Instructions for specific healthcare procedures?
•	Medications?
•	Pertinent health/medical history?
	ow do you ensure that respite providers are able to competently use any equipment d/or assistive technology brought in by the person served?

Documentation Examples

The following are examples of the types of documents and other information you should have available to demonstrate conformance to the standards in this section. Note that for some items, evidence of conformance is not required to be in writing. See Appendix A in the standards manual for more information on standards that specifically require written documentation.

- Evidence of process to identify service options and gaps
- Written procedures on verification of backgrounds of personnel
- Evidence of personnel competencies
- Policies and written procedures that address all items listed in Standard 3.D.5.a.–h.
- Evidence of risk assessments for the persons served
- Evidence that technology or equipment used by persons served is functioning and used according to person-centered plan
- Evidence of person-centered plans including agreed-upon time for service delivery
- Emergency and disaster preparedness and contingency plans
- Policies and written procedures to facilitate collaboration in decision making
- Evidence of education provided to persons served, families/support systems, and other stakeholders
- Individual records of the persons served

E. Case Management

D	escribe how case management identifies:
•	Appropriate care options and settings.
•	Specialty programs/services.
•	Appropriate disciplines/professions
Н	ow does it coordinate each of these?
De	escribe how case management defines its relationships with:
	Appropriate care options and settings.
•	Specialty programs/services.

	Appropriate disciplines/professions
an	st the service providers external to your organization with whom you typically world the key communication contacts among these providers, and describe the roles d responsibilities of the key people.
_	
	ow does case management coordinate with:
	The persons served?
•	The providers of the persons served?
•	Payers?
-	Legal entities?

S.					
l .					
ssues.					
nilability.					
care delive	ry system.				
case mana atment.	gement adv	ocates for	the follow	wing:	
cused, app	opriate care	2.			
ppropriate	services.				
ppro	priate	opriate services.	opriate services.	opriate services.	opriate services.

	Efficient use of resources.
	Performance measurement and management.
	Development of resources in the community.
	Availability and utilization of services that minimize/prevent impairment, reduce activity limitations, lessen participation restrictions, and identify environmental barriers.
	The safety of the persons served
r	scribe how case management participates in decisions regarding the sons served about: Appropriate use of a full continuum of care.
-	Services.

	•	Equipment.
	•	Supplies.
	•	Community resources.
6.	Gi	ve specific examples of how case management facilitates communication that: Avoids duplication of information.
	•	Efficiently facilitates necessary services for the person served.
	Ho	ow does case management promote the health and well-being of the persons served
		ow does case management facilitate the identification of issues concerning the nefits of the persons served?
		hat kind of input have you sought from your stakeholders regarding what they nsider to be value-based care?
	_	

What have you identified as the three most important components of value-based care?
How does case management facilitate value-based care?
How does case management facilitate the provision of services to: Minimize/prevent impairment?
■ Reduce activity limitations?
■ Lessen participation restrictions?
■ Identify environmental barriers?
How does case management facilitate the safety of the persons served?
What types of independent reviews does case management conduct or facilitate?

Integrating information on resources into case management planning. Integrating information on resources into case management implementa Conducting assessments. Predicting outcomes. Establishing case management plans.	reviewing relevant reports to facilitate asses	SHICH,
Integrating information on resources into case management planning. Integrating information on resources into case management implementa Conducting assessments. Predicting outcomes. Establishing case management plans.		
Integrating information on resources into case management planning. Integrating information on resources into case management implementa Conducting assessments. Predicting outcomes. Establishing case management plans.		
Integrating information on resources into case management implementa Conducting assessments. Predicting outcomes. Establishing case management plans.	Identifying resources.	
Integrating information on resources into case management implementa Conducting assessments. Predicting outcomes. Establishing case management plans.	Integrating information on resources into ca	ase management planning.
Conducting assessments. Predicting outcomes. Establishing case management plans.		
Predicting outcomes. Establishing case management plans.	Integrating information on resources into ca	ase management implementatio
Establishing case management plans.	Conducting assessments.	
Establishing case management plans.	Predicting outcomes	
Participating in the establishment of discharge/transition plans	Establishing case management plans.	
Participating in the establishment of discharge/transition plans		
Tarticipating in the establishment of discharge/transition plans.	Participating in the establishment of dischar	ge/transition plans.

]	Providing case management services.
_	
1	Modifying case management plans.
_	
	Recommending or ensuring that the individuals on the team change based on the needs of the person served.
_	
1	Achieving the predicted outcomes.
_	
	Recommending or ensuring that the persons served are transferred to the most appropriate level of care, based on need.
I	Providing education and training.
I	Referring the persons served to other services/programs as needed.
_	
(Communicating with relevant stakeholders.
-	

Ι	Does the information that case management	pro	vides to t	he persons served add
	The characteristics of the persons served?		Yes	☐ No
	The number of persons served per category of people who share similar characteristics within a stated period of time?		Yes	□ No
	Experience of services received and other feedback from the persons served?		Yes	☐ No
r	Describe how and when relevant information provided to the persons served from the perfoutcomes management system.			•
	Explain how the initial and ongoing assessments relevant to the needs of the persons served		process b	y case management
_				
_				
F	How do the assessments: Predict outcomes independently or with a	tea	am includ	ing.
, di	Functional status at discharge/transition			· <i>o</i> ·

	_	Disposition at discharge/transition?
	_	Duration of services?
•	Co	onsider health status?
•	Ad	ldress resource needs and utilization?
•	Ad	ldress discharge/transition planning?
•	Ad	ldress integration of available resources?
•	Ide –	entify: Factors that will facilitate the achievement of predicted outcomes?
	-	Barriers to the achievement of predicted outcomes?

	How do you address funding sources?
	Identify how you determine the expectations of: ■ Funding sources.
	■ Employers.
10.	How are potential persons served and their families/support systems informed of the opportunity to visit referral programs/services prior to entry?
	Describe how each person to be served is familiarized with the program and its personnel during this visit.
	Describe how the expectations of persons served and the organization are outlined during the visit.
11.	How does case management communicate the behavioral and cognitive needs of the persons served to the programs/services with which they interact?

	How does case management verify that the recan meet these needs?	ferr	al programs/serv	ices	being offered
	Give an example of when an individual's cogn met by a referral program and what case man			eed	s have not been
12.	Do the individual case management plans for Minimizing/preventing impairment?		e persons served a		ress: No
	■ Reducing activity limitations?		Yes		No
	■ Lessening participation restrictions?		Yes		No
	■ Environmental modifications?		Yes		No
	Outcomes predicted of case management?		Yes		No
	■ The timeframe estimated for case management services?		Yes		No
	• Involvement of the persons served in planning?		Yes		No
	■ Communication with appropriate parties?		Yes		No
	■ Modification of the plan based on the resources of case management?		Yes		No
	■ A plan for exit/transition from case management, including mechanisms for interagency coordination?		Yes	-	No
13.	Does case management provide the following person served:	inc	lividualized infor	mat	ion to each
	■ The scope of case management services to be provided?		Yes		No
	■ The intensity of case management services to be provided?		Yes		No
	■ Insurance coverage and/or payment structure?		Yes		No
	 Alternative resources to address additional identified needs? 		Yes		No

	Describe the documentation provided to each person served that addresses the above areas.
	Where is the information found?
14.	How do you ensure that case managers are consistently assigned to the persons served?
15.	What are the competencies required of the case manager for each person served?
	How are the identified competencies demonstrated?
	How is the case manager identified to: ■ The person served?
	■ The family/support system?

Authority to coordinate the provision of care.
Knowledge of the service/program of the person served.
Availability to interact with the person served.
Availability to interact with the team of the persons served.
Availability to interact with the family/support system.
Availability to interact with other stakeholders.
Facilitation of an appropriate orientation process for each person served.
Communication with external sources.

	ovision to the team of available financial information to facilitate cision making about: Intake.
_	Assessment.
_	Service planning.
_	Service provision.
_	Discharge/transition planning.
_	Long-term follow-up.
Fa	cilitation of the involvement of the person served as an active member the team throughout the case management process.

	Completion of discharge/transition arrangements.
	Communication of discharge/transition recommendations to appropriate stakeholders.
	Facilitation of the implementation of discharge/transition recommendation
	a with a horry and an amount interests with facilitates and a management interests
t	scribe how case management interacts with, facilitates, and communicates h the team including: The person served.
t	h the team including:
t	th the team including: The person served.

G I	we examples of how the team composition may be impacted by the: Assessment of the person served.
-	Individual planning process.
-	Predicted outcomes of the person served.
•	Strategies utilized to achieve the outcomes predicted.
Ho	ow would you demonstrate that the person served is an active member of the team?
	ow would you demonstrate that members of the family/support system eactive on the team?
_	

Activity limitations of the person served.
Participation restrictions of the person served.
The environmental needs of the person served.
Characteristics of the intended discharge/transition environment.
The personal preferences of the person served.
Achievement of predicted outcomes.
w does case management facilitate the team communicating on an ongoing out progress of the person served toward predicted outcomes?

-							
	Summarize how you make information available to the persons served and their families/support systems about resources for support, advocacy, and civil rights.						
	Is progress expressed in measurable terms?		Yes		No		
	Are outcomes for the persons served expressed in functional terms?		Yes		No		
	Describe what happens if measurable progre	ss is	not being	made at tl	ne expected p		
	How do you determine that progress is beins	g ma	de at the ϵ	expected p	ace?		
	How would you demonstrate that progress toward the accomplishment of predicted outcomes is being made by the persons served?						

20.		hat information does case management make available regarding local lodging d transportation options?
	_	
21.		ow are the following individuals involved in discharge/transition planning? The persons served.
	•	Family members/support systems.
	•	Providers in the continuum of services.
	•	Other relevant stakeholders.
22.		ow are the following individuals notified when there is a change in the scharge/transition plan? The person served.
	•	The family/support system.

	■ Other relevant stakeholders.
23.	How does the discharge/transition process address recommendations for services to maintain or improve the outcomes achieved by the person served?
24.	How do you ensure that the discharge/transition summary for each person served is relevant to the services received?
25.	How is a crisis situation involving behavior of the person served handled?
	What training is provided to personnel regarding the handling of these situations?
26.	Describe how case management verifies that interventions to change behavior used by the services/programs promote a positive, consistent, and therapeutic approach.

Socially and culturally acceptable behaviors modeled for the persons served, the families/support systems, and members of the community with whom they regularly interact.
Consideration of environmental factors and environmental modifications in behavior management.
Medication management incorporated into behavioral management.
Training provided to personnel in the implementation of behavior management programs.
Training provided to families/support systems in the implementation of behavior management programs.

Describe how you gather follow-up information on each person served.						
Does the information collected include:						
Changes in severity of conditions?	☐ Yes	☐ No				
■ Changes in comorbidity?	☐ Yes	☐ No				
■ Mortality?	☐ Yes	☐ No				
Nonmedical interruptions in the delivery of services?	☐ Yes	□ No				
Does case management conduct a written analysis of its performance in each of these areas at least annually? How are performance targets determined?	☐ Yes	□ No				
 How do you address: ■ Performance in relationship to established targets for: - Changes in: - Severity of the conditions? 						

	- Comorbidity?
_	Mortality?
_	Nonmedical interruptions in the delivery of services?
Tre	ends?
Ac	tions for improvement?
Res	sults of performance improvement plans?
	cessary education of: Persons served?
_	Families/support systems?

	-	Personnel?					
	-	Others?					
29.	Make listed, currer	fy records that have the items listed bel sure that, if the item applies to case ma you have examples for the survey team nt records.	nag	ement and	you have	done what is	
		e identified records include:	_				
	■ Ide	entification data?		Yes		No	
	inf	sessment information, including formation on health status or a alth history?		Yes		No	
	■ Th	e individual plan, with goals stated?		Yes		No	
		ogress/reassessment documentation?		Yes		No	
	■ Do	ocumentation of critical incidents?		Yes		No	
	■ Dia	scharge/transition summaries?		Yes		No	
		ferral information and medical records, cluding release forms?		Yes		No	
30.		your organization conduct a written an ords of the persons served at least annu			esentative	sample	
				Yes		No	
	How o	do you determine what to review?					
	Б.						
		the analysis include: ocumentation completed in accordance					
		th the organization's policies?		Yes		No	
	■ Re	gulatory requirements, if applicable?		Yes		No	
	■ CA	ARF documentation requirements?		Yes		No	

How are performance targets determined for each area?					
How does the analysis include:					
 Performance in relationship to established targets for: Documentation completed in accordance with the organization's policies? 					
- Regulatory requirements, if applicable?					
- CARF documentation requirements?					
Trends?					
• Actions for improvement?					
Results of performance improvement plans?					
Necessary education and training of personnel?					

Documentation Examples

The following are examples of the types of documents and other information you should have available to demonstrate conformance to the standards in this section. Note that for some items, evidence of conformance is not required to be in writing. See Appendix A in the standards manual for more information on standards that specifically require written documentation.

- Evidence of case management's role in the continuum of care
- Individual case management plans of the persons served
- Individual records of the persons served
- Procedures for referral to other resources
- Records of service referrals
- Evidence of education provided to persons served and families/support systems
- Evidence of case management-specific information gathered on each person served
- Identification of individual(s) who coordinates the provision of care
- Evidence of communication regarding the team process that includes persons served and families/support systems
- Evidence of input from the persons served regarding their information needs
- Information compiled from the information and outcomes management system that is provided to the persons served about case management
- Initial and ongoing assessments
- Individualized written disclosure statements
- Evidence of the competencies of the individuals who coordinate provision of care
- Evidence of interaction and communication by case management with the team concerning carrying out its responsibilities
- Information on local and regional resources for support, advocacy, and civil rights
- Information about local lodging and transportation options
- Evidence of approaches to managing behaviors
- Evidence of process to verify approach of services/programs used for behavior management
- Discharge/transition recommendations
- Written discharge/transition summary for each person served
- Evidence of information gathered on persons served and a written analysis conducted at least annually
- Written analysis of a representative sample of records of persons served conducted at least annually

F. Independent Senior Living

	ent population?
Age r	ange of persons served?
Hous	ing options?
	ces available, including activities, dining, housekeeping, laundry, tenance, and transportation?
	service that is available, where is the following information identified ngs?
	_
Settin	_
Settin	ngs?

	Frequency of services?							
•	Fees?							
se	escribe how your organization shares the in rvices with persons served, families/suppond the general public.							
_								
	the scope of services reviewed least annually?	☐ Yes	□ No					
	escribe your process for reviewing the scop	pe of services.						
_								
Ex	xplain how the scope of services is updated	as needed.						
Ba	ased on the scope of the program, does the Entry criteria?	organization have d	ocumented:					
-	Exit criteria?	☐ Yes	□ No					
W	hat are the criteria?							
Aı	re the criteria closely related to the scope?	☐ Yes	□ No					

■ Families/support system	Families/support systems?						
Other relevant stakehol	Other relevant stakeholders?						
Where would the surveyor	rs find the signed	d, written agreen	nent?				
Does the written agreemen	nt include:						
■ Entry criteria?		☐ Yes	☐ No				
■ Entry procedures?		☐ Yes	☐ No				
■ Exit criteria?		☐ Yes	☐ No				
■ Exit procedures?		☐ Yes	□ No				
Scope of services to be	provided?	☐ Yes	□ No				
		☐ Yes	☐ No				
■ Fee schedule?							
D 1114 C	ent of fees?	Yes	☐ No				
Responsibility for paym	nent of fees?	☐ Yes	□ No □ No				
Responsibility for paymRefund policies?		☐ Yes	□ No				
■ Responsibility for paym		☐ Yes	□ No				

How is the written agreement made available to persons served for review?
How can surveyors verify that persons served are provided with a copy of the written agreement for review prior to entry to the program and after it is signed by all appropriate parties?
Where do personnel and others who may be involved with visitors to the program go to find the processes to follow for visitors?
Describe a typical interaction with a visitor who is seeking information about the independent senior living organization.
Identify questions that are typically asked to gain an understanding of their expectations about possibly living in the organization.
Identify documents and other information that are generally shared with visitors to answer questions.

	d the personnel.
De de	escribe what customer service means to your organization and how you monstrate it to the persons served.
Н	ow does leadership demonstrate customer service?
D€	escribe how personnel in the following areas demonstrate customer service: Administration.
-	Dining.
	Dining.
•	Dining. Maintenance

	Housekeeping.
-	Other areas.
Но	ow are activities available to persons served?
	w does the organization determine that available activities: Meet interests of persons served?
	Meet interests of persons served?
•	Meet interests of persons served?
•	Meet interests of persons served? Align with capabilities?
•	Meet interests of persons served? Align with capabilities?

		Improve or maintain independence whenever possible?
	•	Allow for both group interaction and autonomy?
	•	Include opportunities in the local community?
7.	De	escribe how the program provides access to: Computers.
	•	The internet.
	•	Information of interest.
	•	Health and wellness information.
	•	Other media.

W.	hat types of communication mechanisms exist to address need of: The persons served?
•	The program?
•	Other stakeholders?
W	hen changes, issues, or needs emerge, what communication mechanisms are us
W	hen contingency planning is needed, what communication mechanisms are use
W	hen contingency planning is needed, what communication mechanisms are use

Give examples of situations in which a one-on-one meeting could occur.
Give examples of group meetings that could occur.
How do you educate persons served about measures to promote safety within the independent living environment?
How does your staffing promote safety and security?
What surveillance systems are used to promote safety?
What measures are used to promote safety when individuals enter and exit

	What measures are to be taken in emergency situations?	
	What personal security options can residents use?	
11.	What information is provided to residents so that they understand their rights regarding the organization's approach to emergency response.	
12.	How do you provide information to persons served about: Advance directives?	
	Resuscitation, including providing information so that individuals can make decisions as well as the right to refuse resuscitation?	
	■ Legal requirements related to advance directives and resuscitation?	
	What information do you provide to persons served regarding resources they can use to document their decisions?	

	Adult protective services.
•	Care management services.
•	Community service organizations.
•	Crisis intervention programs.
_	In-home services, including home healthcare and homemaker services.
_	Meal delivery services.
	Specialized services unique to the population served.
	Transportation services.

		Wellness and health promotion	n.		
	•	Other services, as needed.			
	Но	ow is this done for persons serv	ved?		
	Ho	ow is this done for family/supp	ort systems?		
14.		hat mechanism is implemented	l to make avai	lable current	emergency information?
	W]	here can a written version of th	nis informatio	n be located?	
	W]	here is the information stored	in individual 1	residences?	
	Do	oes the mechanism include for	each person s	erved:	
		Advance directives?	Ţ	Yes	☐ No
	•	Allergies?	Ţ	☐ Yes	□ No

		Current diagnoses/conditions and their related history?		Yes		No
	•	Emergency contact information?		Yes		No
		Information regarding equipment and devices used by the person served?		Yes		No
	•	Hospital preference?		Yes		No
		Healthcare providers, including their contact information?		Yes		No
	•	Immunization status?		Yes		No
	•	Insurance information?		Yes		No
	•	Medications?		Yes		No
	•	Other relevant information?		Yes		No
15.		the persons served in your organization h companies to provide them services?	ave	contracts with po	eop	le
				Yes		No
		nat information do you provide to persons Exploring services?	ser	ved regarding:		
	•	Hiring services?				
		Managing services?				
	•	Information exchange with your program	per	sonnel?		

ntenance progra	ım?
nization?	
of the property?)
-	nds of all personnel?
☐ Yes	□ No
☐ Yes	□ No
☐ Yes	☐ No
hat background	ls or credentials
	g the background Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Оо	all personnel receive training at:		
•	Orientation?	☐ Yes	☐ No
•	Regular intervals?	☐ Yes	☐ No
	ormation: Aging issues.		
	Communication of unusual occur	rrences regarding perso	ons served.
	Documentation and record keepings appropriate to their specific job		program,

•	■ Psycho	ological issues of the persons serve	d.	
ı	■ Social/	cultural issues of the persons serv	red.	
ı	■ Specifi	c training directly related to the p	rogram.	
•	■ Wellne	ess.		
).]	s Wi-Fi a	vailable to persons served at the p		
			☐ Yes	☐ No
		chnology available that promotes nt or enhance quality of life?	☐ Yes	□ No
		at resources are available for the us	se of technolog	y?
-				
		now you work with local commun	ity resources o	n emergency preparedne
).]	Describe l	low you work with focal commun	7	0 71 1
) .]	Describe l	low you work with local commun		

	Describe how the unique needs of the persons served are addressed in your work with community resources for emergency preparedness at your location, including issues regarding power restoration, considerations in the case of evacuation of your property or locality, transportation issues that might arise if an evacuation occurs, shelter availability, recovery procedures to get the organization running safely and ensure the safety of individuals, and considerations for public health concerns.
	Describe how you work with leaders in your local community on emergency preparedness of public health concerns.
21.	Describe how your program conducts outreach to expand your future workforce.
	What opportunities for career development are provided to personnel?
	What mechanisms can personnel use for communication and problem-solving with colleagues?

List the mechanisms used.		
What resources are provided to supp	port the well-being of th	e workforce?
Describe your organization's infection	on prevention and contr	rol policy.
	•	
Does the infection prevention and co	- , -	
■ Vaccinations?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Screenings?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Education for:		
Persons served?	☐ Yes	☐ No
- Personnel?	Yes	☐ No
- Other stakeholders?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Describe how your program plans for a pandemic or the aftermath of a dis		-
Describe who is involved in these place. Internal stakeholders.	anning efforts, includin	g:

External stakeholders.		
ow does the program address: Contingency planning for potential work	force shortage	s?
Expedited onboarding of new personnel, - What topics would be covered as part	_	ed orientation?
- How and when the remaining topics v	would be addre	essed?
pes the program have a policy regarding	would be addre	essed?
- How and when the remaining topics we see the program have a policy regarding sential caregivers? essential caregivers are allowed: Does the program have written procedures regarding the scope of		

•	What type(s) of activities/tasks are included in the scope of an essential caregiver?
	plain how the program would procure the supplies necessary to support and sustain ongoing operations.
_	
	hat mechanisms does the program have in place to ensure timely and transparent mmunication with:
•	Persons served?
•	Families/support systems?
•	The workforce?
•	Other stakeholders?

Describe how the program would address the unique communication needs of various stakeholders.
Describe your program's process for ethical decision-making.
Give an example of when this process has been implemented.

Documentation Examples

The following are examples of the types of documents and other information you should have available to demonstrate conformance to the standards in this section. Note that for some items, evidence of conformance is not required to be in writing. See Appendix A in the standards manual for more information on standards that specifically require written documentation.

- Resident handbook
- Move-in packet
- Marketing brochures
- Lease
- Residency agreement
- Activities calendar
- Resident newsletter
- Safety procedures
- Tenant or Resident Bill of Rights
- Emergency information file for each person served
- Written procedures for personnel background checks
- Personnel and volunteer training schedules
- Policies related to essential caregivers and sustained emergencies
- Policies related to vaccination and screening

G. Personal Supports Services

Do your program's personnel receive tra	ining that includes:	
Promoting supports that are directed by the person served?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Advocating for the needs of persons served?	☐ Yes	☐ No
• Guidelines for participating in the service planning for persons served, when applicable?	□ Yes	□ No
Where appropriate, supportive therapeutic techniques?	☐ Yes	☐ No
As appropriate to the service providedFirst aid/CPR?	d, safety training th	at includes: ☐ No
- Biohazards?	☐ Yes	☐ No
- Physical hazards?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Body mechanics?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ If transportation is provided:		
 Proper seat restraints, including, when children are served, car seat installation? 	☐ Yes	□ No
 Wheelchair tie-downs, when applicable? 	☐ Yes	☐ No
Safe driving techniques?	☐ Yes	☐ No
How is this training provided?		

3.	When direct personal care supports are part a plan and written procedures that are in		r program have
	The supervision of personnel, include provision of timely feedback to enhance skills?	ng □ Yes	□ No
	Addressing unplanned absences to ensure continuity of supports?	☐ Yes	□ No
	How do you ensure that these plans a	nd written proced	ares are implemented?
	How do you ensure that, when applicabl and equipment is provided to: Personnel?	e, training in the u	se of adaptive devices
	■ The person served?		
	■ The family?		
	■ Caregivers?		
	Give some examples of how assistive tecl accommodations made, when needed, ir		d reasonable
	■ The development of services and sup	ports.	

o vou provide training or ed	lucational activities for perso	one cerved?
o you provide training of ec	☐ Yes	□ No
Yes, is there a written descrieach offering?	ption ☐ Yes	□ No
oes the written description o	of each offering include:	
Focus on the needs of the	trainees?	☐ No
Requirements for participa	ation, if any?	☐ No
Objectives for the activity?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Instructional methods and	materials?	☐ No
The sequence and hours o	finstruction? Yes	☐ No
Regular review and revision as needed?	n/updates 📮 Yes	□ No
Does your program offer info	rmation and referral service	s?
	☐ Yes	☐ No
f <i>Yes</i> , describe how the progr Knowledge of available ser		urvey team its:
■ Knowledge of support syst	ems that are relevant to the	persons served.

Availability	at times and locations convenient to the persons served.
7 tv anabirty	at times and locations convenient to the persons served.

Documentation Examples

The following are examples of the types of documents and other information you should have available to demonstrate conformance to the standards in this section. Note that for some items, evidence of conformance is not required to be in writing. See Appendix A in the standards manual for more information on standards that specifically require written documentation.

- Identification of supports and services provided
- Records of persons served, if applicable to the service provided
- Individual service plans, if applicable to the service provided
- Progress notes
- Procedures manual
- Documented staff training
- Curriculum for training/education courses provided
- Forms authorizing release of confidential information
- Plan and written procedures for supervision of direct service personnel

H. Continuing Care Retirement Community

nsidering entering the CCRC?
ow do the persons served and their families/support systems identify: What is offered on the CCRC campus?
What is offered external to the main campus?
The levels of care owned by the CCRC?
Levels of care that are not owned, but instead are contracted by the CCRC?
escribe the ways you market your CCRC to prospective persons served.
ow do you describe the structure of the CCRC?

	What is communicated regarding the ownership/management of the CCRC?
į	How do the marketing efforts reflect the levels of care that are offered?
-	
-	
	How does the CCRC define its relationship with components of its own continuum and with other providers of long-term services and supports?
_	
-	
,	What are the responsibilities of the components of the CCRC's continuum?
7	Who are the key communication contacts at each component of the continuum?
	How does the CCRC coordinate services through multiple levels of service to meet the needs of persons served?

To effectively meet needs and provide integrated services, what systems for interacti and feedback exist within the CCRC's continuum and with other service providers?
Describe how written agreements can specify preferred access to levels of care.
Describe how this process works for persons served.
What happens to persons served who do not have preferred access to levels of care identified in their written agreement with the CCRC?
Provide examples of how your organization communicates, coordinates, facilitates, and advocates for appropriate transitions at each level of service offered by the CC

Γ	Their preferences.
_	
Ι	The rhythm of their daily life.
	What the family/support system understands regarding the current status of person served.
_	
	Expectations of the person served and their family/support system.
S	Spouse or others living with the person served.
_	
_	Contingency plans.
_	

The environment of the next component of care.
The capability of the family/support system.
Financial resources.
Access to health services.
Transportation.
Identification of resources that are or will be involved with the person served.

in t	e person-centered pla the plan and how it wi			ncluding the c	urrent inform
Des	signating the go-to pe	rson or pers	on(s) for coo	rdination.	
escri	ibe how records follow	v the person	served.		
	an actual record cann tant information from			dentiality, des	cribe how

Documentation Examples

The following are examples of the types of documents and other information you should have available to demonstrate conformance to the standards in this section. Note that for some items, evidence of conformance is not required to be in writing. See Appendix A in the standards manual for more information on standards that specifically require written documentation.

- Resident handbook
- Move-in packet

- Marketing brochures
- Residence and care agreement
- Activities calendar
- Resident newsletter
- Safety procedures
- Tenant or Resident Bill of Rights
- Emergency information file for each person served
- Written procedures for personnel background checks
- Personnel and volunteer training schedules

SECTION 4

Specialty Program Designation Standards

A. Dementia Care Specialty Programs

_	Assesses the ability of the persons served with dementia to make decisions.
N	Minimizes barriers to decision making by the persons served with dementia
-	Communicates with the persons served with dementia regarding the immed
c	consequences associated with choices and behaviors that pose a potential ris o their health or safety.
_	

	with dementia in their records.
	scribe how your program's environment addresses the unique needs of persor th dementia, including:
1	Promoting the dignity and self-worth of the persons served.
I	Maintaining the safety of the persons served.
	Maximizing the functioning of persons served in the following areas: – Behavioral.
	- Cognitive.
	– Mobility.

		- Occupational.			
		– Physical.			
		- Sensory.			
		– Social.			
	•	Optimizing their independe	ence.		
3.		es your program's ongoing sout the person's:	screening/assess	ment process includ	le information
		Life history?	C	Yes	□ No
	•	Important memories?		☐ Yes	☐ No
	•	Favorite stories?		Yes	□ No
	•	Daily routines?	C	Yes	□ No
	•	Comfort/reminiscence obje	cts?	Yes	□ No
	•	People of importance?	C	Yes	□ No

How does your program provide or arrange The persons served?	for education fo	or:
Families/support systems?		
Does the education provided or arranged for accordance with identified needs:	or address each o	of the following,
Dementia, including:		
Signs and symptoms?	☐ Yes	□ No
Signs and symptoms?Progression?	□ Yes	□ No □ No
Signs and symptoms?Progression?Types of dementia?		
- Progression?	☐ Yes	□ No
Progression?Types of dementia?	☐ Yes	□ No
 Progression? Types of dementia? Coexisting conditions? Lived experience of dementia? 	☐ Yes ☐ Yes ☐ Yes	□ No □ No □ No
 Progression? Types of dementia? Coexisting conditions? Lived experience of dementia? Maintaining relationships? 	□ Yes□ Yes□ Yes□ Yes□ Yes	□ No □ No □ No □ No □ No
 Progression? Types of dementia? Coexisting conditions? Lived experience of dementia? Maintaining relationships? Skills training, including: Activities? 	□ Yes□ Yes□ Yes□ Yes□ Yes	□ No □ No □ No □ No □ No
 Progression? Types of dementia? Coexisting conditions? Lived experience of dementia? Maintaining relationships? Skills training, including: 	□ Yes□ Yes□ Yes□ Yes□ Yes□ Yes□ Yes	□ No □ No □ No □ No □ No □ No
 Progression? Types of dementia? Coexisting conditions? Lived experience of dementia? Maintaining relationships? Skills training, including: Activities? Therapeutic approach to behavior? 	□ Yes□ Yes□ Yes□ Yes□ Yes□ Yes□ Yes	□ No □ No □ No □ No □ No □ No
 Progression? Types of dementia? Coexisting conditions? Lived experience of dementia? Maintaining relationships? Skills training, including: Activities? Therapeutic approach to behavior? Communication skills, including conditions 	☐ Yes ☐ Hes	□ No

■ Coping with changes?	Yes	☐ No
■ Driving?	Yes	☐ No
■ Falls?	Yes	☐ No
■ Incontinence?	Yes	☐ No
■ Loss and grief?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Legal issues?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Mobility?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Palliative care?	☐ Yes	□ No
Planning for the future?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Risk of elopement?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Sexuality?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Skin integrity?	Yes	☐ No
■ Community resources?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Payer sources?	☐ Yes	□ No
How do you identify the specific edu of each person served?	cational needs of the fa	mily/support system
How do you ensure that the educatio addresses his or her needs?	n provided to each pers	son served appropriately

	ow do you ensure that program personnel implement a positive, therapeutic proach to behavior?
Ide	entify some examples that demonstrate how this is accomplished.
De pla	escribe how your program, as appropriate, incorporates into the person-centered
•	A palliative approach to care.
•	End-of-life care.

addresses:	esses:				
■ Communication?	☐ Yes	☐ No			
■ Dementia?	☐ Yes	☐ No			
Post-incident debriefing opportunities?	☐ Yes	☐ No			
■ Therapeutic approach to behavior?	☐ Yes	☐ No			
Explain how this is accomplished and where	the training is	documented.			
. Who is the program manager for your demen	ntia care specia	lty program?			
Does the program manager have responsibili	ty and authorit	y to direct:			
■ Resource utilization?	☐ Yes	☐ No			
■ Performance improvement activities?	☐ Yes	☐ No			
Program development and modification?	☐ Yes	☐ No			
Educational activities for program personnel?	☐ Yes	□ No			
■ Stakeholder relationship management?	☐ Yes	☐ No			
Advocacy activities?	☐ Yes	☐ No			
■ The development of ongoing relationships with the community?	☐ Yes	□ No			
■ Promotion of the program?	☐ Yes	☐ No			

	entify the physician who provides ongoing input to the dementia care specialty ogram.
a p	bes he or she serve the program as medical director, chair or member of professional advisory committee, a consultant with a formal arrangement, d/or medical liaison?
Ву	what professional governing body is he or she licensed?
	ow will you demonstrate or verify for the survey team that he or she: Is qualified by virtue of his or her training and experience in dementia?
	·
	·
	·
H∢	Is qualified by virtue of his or her training and experience in dementia?
	Is qualified by virtue of his or her training and experience in dementia?
	Is qualified by virtue of his or her training and experience in dementia?

	monstrates active learning and involvement in the professional communi
_	
scri	be his or her role in:
De	velopment of ongoing relationships with the medical community.
	ablishment of policies and written procedures that address health issues, luding monitoring.
Per	formance improvement activities.
	be how your program facilitates collaboration in decision making throug portunities for the sharing of information through:
_	Communications that are scheduled at the convenience of the family/ support system.
	Information exchanges
_	Information exchanges.

	melines for the exchange of information.
)e	etermining whether the information is understood by: The person served.
_	The family/support system.
_	Personnel.
Do	ocumenting significant discussions and decisions made by the persons serv

Counseling.	Advocacy education.		
Community resources. Counseling. Emotional support.			
Community resources. Counseling. Emotional support.			
Community resources. Counseling. Emotional support.			
Community resources. Counseling. Emotional support.			
Community resources. Counseling. Emotional support.	A * . (*) 1 1		
Counseling. Emotional support.	Assistive technology.		
Counseling. Emotional support.			
Emotional support.	Community resources.		
Emotional support.			
Emotional support.	0 1:		
	Jounseling.		
Reasonable accommodations.	Emotional support.		
Reasonable accommodations.			
Keasonable accommodations.	Dagaamahla a 1 ::	·•	
	keasonable accommodal	ions.	

Su -	pport, including: Family/support system
_	Peer-to-peer.
	fy some examples that demonstrate how, within the scope of your program of daily life is directed by each person served in the following areas:
yth: Ac	
yth: Ac ind	m of daily life is directed by each person served in the following areas: commodating the choices of the person served regarding the cycle of each

_	Hygiene.
_	Oral care.
_	Sleeping.
_	Waking.
_	Resting.
Ch	noice of clothing.

Ch	oice of grooming style.
Eac inc	ch person's choice to participate in personally meaningful customary routine cluding, but not limited to: Cleaning.
_	Community activities.
_	Contact with pets.
_	Cooking.
-	Exercise/mobility activities.

-	Gardening.
_	Hobbies.
_	Intimacy.
_	Recreation.
_	Relaxation.
_	Social interaction.

	 Spiritual/religious activities 	es.	
12 D	aaa wayuu nuaguam nuayida fa aa	l convices for the persons con	70 d2
13. D	oes your program provide food	T services for the persons serv	□ No
	Yes, how does the program fos procedures:	ter independence through im	nplementation
•	To manage social dynamics?		
•	That allow persons served to	select what, when, and where	e they want to eat?
•	To address necessary adaptat	ions?	
•	That balance the choices of the needs?	ne persons served and their h	ealth and nutrition
	oes your organization provide	documented competency-ba	sed training for
pe	ersonnel at: Orientation?	☐ Yes	☐ No
-	Regular intervals?	☐ Yes	□ No

Describe how this is accomplished.		
Where is the training documented?		
Does the training include, as appropriate t Dementia, including:	to the roles of the J	personnel being trained:
Signs and symptoms?	☐ Yes	☐ No
- Progression?	☐ Yes	□ No
– Types of dementia?	☐ Yes	□ No
Coexisting conditions?	☐ Yes	□ No
- Lived experience of dementia?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Delirium?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Depression?	☐ Yes	☐ No
Suicide risk assessment and prevention strategies?	☐ Yes	□ No
• Identifying the personal preferences of the persons served?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Loss and grief?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Communication?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Therapeutic approach to behavior?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Observation skills?	☐ Yes	☐ No
■ Sexuality?	☐ Yes	□ No
■ Skin integrity?	☐ Yes	□ No
Meaningful engagement of persons served on an ongoing basis?	☐ Yes	□ No
Therapeutic approach to activity development and implementation?	☐ Yes	□ No
Gathering information about the personLife history?	on served in the fo	llowing areas:

	– Important memories?	Yes	☐ No	
	Favorite stories?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
	Daily routines?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
	Comfort/reminiscence objects?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
	People of importance?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
	Advocacy?	☐ Yes	□ No	
	■ Teamwork?	☐ Yes	□ No	
	■ Pain?	☐ Yes	□ No	
	■ Palliative approach to care?	☐ Yes	□ No	
	■ End-of-life care?	☐ Yes	□ No	
	■ Hospice?	☐ Yes	☐ No	
	How do you determine what training is a	ppropriate for spec	cific program personne	1?
15.	How do you ensure that the tools used to and other feedback are appropriate to elic			ed
	What are some examples of how your der its scope of practice and expertise, acts as			

	ow does leadership support the program's participation in research opportunities advance the field of dementia care?
_	
_	
re	ow do you provide information about available clinical trials and other search opportunities to: Persons served?
•	Families/support systems?
•	Personnel?
pe	entify some examples of how leadership demonstrates a partnership approach to erson-centered dementia care through the exchange of resources and education with Persons served.

l	Personnel.
	Families/support systems.
	Governing board, when applicable.
	Other stakeholders as appropriate.
c	escribe how your program maintains knowledge of and ensures coordination cal, regional, provincial, national, or international resources to facilitate: Specialized dementia services.

_	

Documentation Examples

The following are examples of the types of documents and other information you should have available to demonstrate conformance to the standards in this section. Note that for some items, evidence of conformance is not required to be in writing. See Appendix A in the standards manual for more information on standards that specifically require written documentation.

- Staff training calendar with dementia-specific topics
- Screening/assessment tools
- Family workshop calendar with dementia-specific topics
- Personnel procedures on understanding and responding to behavioral communication by persons served
- Procedures regarding the use of chemical/physical restraints
- Volunteer training calendar and topic list
- Job description for the program manager of the dementia care specialty program
- Documentation of the role of the medical director or physician advisor
- Care planning meeting schedule and process for inviting families
- Procedures for personnel regarding how to understand and support the individual rhythm of the day for each person served
- Survey tools and results regarding satisfaction and other feedback from persons served

B. Stroke Specialty Program

erral to another community provider, through education to the person served. Preventing conditions related to stroke and its complications.
Recognizing conditions related to stroke and its complications.
Assessing conditions related to stroke and its complications.
Treating conditions related to stroke and its complications.
Promoting lifestyle changes to reduce the risk factors for recurrent stroke.
Functional independence.
Psychological and social coping skills.

		Psychological and social adaptation skills.
	•	Community integration and participation in life roles.
	•	Services for families/support systems.
2.	Но	w does the program facilitate collaborative decision making?
	Но	w is information made accessible to facilitate collaborative decision making?
	Wł	nat are the timelines for provision and exchange of information?
		w does the program determine that the person served and the family/support tem understand the information presented?
3.		scribe the program's efforts to maximize the intensity of participation of the renabilitation process.

W]	hat changes have been made in program operations in support of those efforts?
im	escribe how the rationale for specific treatments is provided prior to plementation to: Persons served.
•	Families/support systems.
	ve examples of treatment options personnel have provided based on feedback om the persons served or families/support systems.
	ve examples of how the program's scheduling reflects the: Preferences of the persons served.
•	Behavioral, cognitive, communication, cultural, developmental, medical, physical, resource, and spiritual needs of the persons served.

hoice to participate in meaningf	ul activities.		
•	arranged to meet the	needs of the pe	rsons serv
nxiety.	☐ Provide	☐ Arrange	☐ Both
phasia and other ommunication disorders.	☐ Provide	☐ Arrange	☐ Both
ardiovascular status.	☐ Provide	☐ Arrange	☐ Both
ognitive function.	☐ Provide	☐ Arrange	☐ Both
omorbidities.	☐ Provide	☐ Arrange	☐ Both
ontinence.	☐ Provide	☐ Arrange	☐ Both
epression.	☐ Provide	☐ Arrange	☐ Both
ysphagia.	☐ Provide	☐ Arrange	☐ Both
earing.	☐ Provide	☐ Arrange	☐ Both
ydration.	☐ Provide	☐ Arrange	☐ Both
lood disturbances.	☐ Provide	☐ Arrange	☐ Both
lotor function.	☐ Provide	☐ Arrange	☐ Both
utrition.	☐ Provide	☐ Arrange	☐ Both
erceptual deficits.	☐ Provide	☐ Arrange	☐ Both
exuality and intimacy.	☐ Provide	☐ Arrange	☐ Both
kin integrity.	☐ Provide	☐ Arrange	☐ Both
isual deficits.	☐ Provide	☐ Arrange	☐ Both
	-	_	
ealth promotion.	☐ Provide	☐ Arrange	☐ Both
	e following areas: nxiety. phasia and other ommunication disorders. ardiovascular status. ognitive function. omorbidities. ontinence. epression. ysphagia. fearing. fydration. food disturbances. fotor function. futrition. erceptual deficits. exuality and intimacy. kin integrity. fisual deficits. fify how the following health ser	e following areas: nxiety.	phasia and other ommunication disorders. ardiovascular status. arrange arrang

7.

•	Health screenings.		Provide		Arrange		Both
•	Healthcare delivery.		Provide		Arrange		Both
	any of the above services are arranged thro oviders and types of arrangements.	ough	other prov	vide	rs, identify	the	
_							
Но	ow do you decide when these services are 1	need	ed?				
Но	ow are these services integrated with the in	nterd	isciplinary	teaı	n?		
	escribe how the program provides or arran opports, and/or interventions in each of the Adaptation to disability.				r resources	s, ser	rvices,
•	Aging with disability.						
•	Advocacy.						

Fitness.				
Leisure.				
Socializa	ation.			
Volunte	erism.			
Wellnes	s.			
Driving.				
Falls.				
Insight o	of the person	served.		

Life roles.
Nutrition.
Parenting skills.
Peer support.
School re-entry.
Spousal/significant other relations.
Supervision needs.
Transportation needs.

	he program provide or arran entions in each of these areas		s, services	, supports, and/	or
	e beginning of services?	.	Yes	☐ No	
■ Ap	propriate intervals?	.	Yes	☐ No	
■ Dis	scharge/transition?	.	Yes	☐ No	
use of	re the preferences of the pers complementary health appro sources?			•	_
How d	loes the program assess the p	erson's use of c	compleme	ntary health app	proach
How d	loes the program assess the p	erson's use of c	compleme	ntary health app	proach
	loes the program assess the p				
Descri Give e		n the efficacy a	nd safety o	of interventions.	
Descri	be the education provided or	n the efficacy a	nd safety o	of interventions.	

	Describe how the stroke specialty program addresses prevention of secondary complications.						
-							
-							
	Describe how wellness is promoted through activities that are based on input from the persons served.						
_							
_							
	How is input from families/support systems sought and considered in the activities offered?						
-							
_							
1	What are some examples of: Structured activities available?						
•	■ Unstructured activities available?						
I	How do the activities promote healthy behavior?						
-							
ŀ	How do you ensure that the activities: Meet the interests of the persons served?						

Align with their cognitive abilities?
Align with their communication abilities?
Reflect their choices?
Promote their personal growth and enhance self-image?
Improve or maintain their functional levels?
Allow for social interaction?
Allow for autonomy?
Include opportunities for community integration?

	Where would the surveyors find information about activities for the person served in the individual plan for each person?
11.	How do personnel learn about a variety of assistive technology that might be used by the persons served?
	Describe how the program provides the persons served opportunities to try assistive technology to meet their needs, including how the assistive technology is obtained.
	Give examples of the assistive technology available to the persons served to try out.
12.	What is the program's process to educate persons served regarding the consequences of potentially risky choices and behaviors?
	Give an example of when this has been necessary for a particular person served and the result of the education.

ow is education for the persons served and families/support systems: Coordinated?
Reinforced throughout the rehabilitation process and among members of the team
ve examples of how education is tailored to be age appropriate.
ow does the education provided by the program foster self-management?
ow do you ensure that the education program is designed to meet the individual eds of each person served?
ow do you ensure that the education program is designed to meet the needs each family/support system?
escribe how the program educates the persons served and their families/support stems on the following topics, and give examples of specific information covered. Accessing emergency care.

Adaptation to strol	ce.		
Aging with a disab	ility.		
Assistive devices.			
Caregiver support.			
Cognition.			
Communication.			

Health risks.			
Home modifications.			
Home safety.			
Hydration.			
Nutrition.			
Prevention.			

S	Self-advocacy.
_	
S	Sexuality and intimacy.
_	Signs and symptoms of and response to recurring stroke.
_	
S	Smoking cessation.
_	
S	Specific healthcare procedures and techniques.
_	
S	Swallowing problems.
_	
-	

•	Orthotics, including applying and adjusting the fit, hygiene, utilization, and training.
	ow do you assess whether the education provided has been beneficial to the ersons served and their families/support systems?
_	
	escribe the information the program provides pertaining to the following areas: Financial resources.
•	Healthcare benefits, including insurance.
•	Laws and regulations pertaining to: - Accessibility.
	- Education.
	- Health.

		-	Rights.
		_	Social supports.
	•	Seı	rvice options in the community.
5.			do you identify community resources that are or will be involved with the n served?
	Но	w i	s the individual plan for transition from the program developed?
	Но	w c	do you identify factors that would facilitate transition to the community?
	Но	w	do you identify potential barriers to transition to the community?
	Wh	nat	are the mechanisms for interagency coordination?

	to facilitate transition of the persons served.					
	Are follow-up plans established prior to the day of discharge/transition for each person served whether or not the person is staying in the geographic area?					
	☐ Yes ☐ No					
	Describe how follow-up care is arranged for persons served who will remain in the geographic service area.					
	How are the options for follow-up care identified and arranged for persons who leav the geographic service area?					
	Where would the survey team find designation of the individual(s) responsible for the coordination of the established follow-up plan?					
•	Describe the program's efforts to advocate in the community for the persons served					
	List some examples that demonstrate how the stroke specialty program acts as a resource for providers throughout the phases of stroke care. Provider(s)/phase of stroke care:					

	 Evidence-based practice:
	 Development of service models and programs for persons served:
	- Outreach and support:
	 Training of personnel in stroke rehabilitation:
	■ Provider(s)/phase of stroke care:
	- Evidence-based practice:
	 Development of service models and programs for persons served:
	- Outreach and support:
	 Training of personnel in stroke rehabilitation:
19.	How does the leadership support the program's participation in research opportunities?
	What is the program's current involvement in research opportunities?

Describe how you collect follow-up information on the persons served.						
If you use more than one mechanism, how o	lo yo	u decide w	hich mech	nanism to use		
If you do not collect follow-up information determine the representative sample.	on al	l persons s	erved, exp	lain how you		
Does the information you collect include in:	form	ation on:				
Does the information you collect include in: ■ Aspiration pneumonia?		ation on: Yes		No		
Aspiration pneumonia?				No No		
■ Aspiration pneumonia? ■ Falls?		Yes				
Aspiration pneumonia?Falls?Falls with injuries?		Yes Yes	<u> </u>	No		
Aspiration pneumonia?Falls?Falls with injuries?		Yes Yes Yes	_ 	No No		
Aspiration pneumonia?Falls?Falls with injuries?Other injuries?		Yes Yes Yes		No No No		
 Aspiration pneumonia? Falls? Falls with injuries? Other injuries? Re-hospitalizations? 		Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes		No No No No		

How does the written analysis addresses: ■ Performance in relationship to established targets for follow-up information regarding: - Aspiration pneumonia? - Falls? - Falls with injuries? - Other injuries? - Re-hospitalizations? - Unplanned medical visits/encounters? ■ Trends? ■ Actions for improvement?

	Results of performance improvement plans:
	What education and training are needed by:Persons served?
	- Families/support systems?
	- Healthcare providers?
Applicable Stan	dards All programs seeking accreditation for Assisted Living and Person-Centered Long-Term Care Community must also meet Standards 21.–24.
21.	How does the program determine whether it is appropriate for members of the family/support system to remain with the person served 24 hours a day?
	Describe how such a request is accommodated.
	Under what circumstances would the program determine that such a request is not appropriate?

22.		w do you determine that a person served has the resources needed to obtain medications prescribed at the time of discharge/transition?		
		ow do you determine that a person served has the resources needed to adhere to commended administration of the medications prescribed at discharge/transition?		
		ve an example of a situation in which a person served did not have the resources eded to obtain or adhere to recommended administration and how it was handled.		
23.	at (sed on the individual needs of each person served, how does the program address discharge/transition a plan to manage: Deconditioning?		
	•	Diabetes?		
	•	Hyperlipidemia?		
	•	Hypertension?		
	•	Physical inactivity?		

cor	hat did your program decide on as indicators t mpliance with evidence-based guidelines inclu Diabetes?		rmance related to
•	Hyperlipidemia?		
	Hypertension?		
•	Stroke prophylaxis?		
Wł	hich evidence-based guidelines do you use as a	ı reference?	
Но	ow are performance targets determined?		
of i	bes the program conduct a written analysis its performance in these areas at least nually?	Yes	□ No

How does the written analysis address:
 Performance in relationship to established targets for the percentage of persons served who, at the time of discharge/transition, are in compliance with evidence-based guidelines to manager.

	evidence-based guidelines to manage: Diabetes?
_	
- I	Hyperlipidemia?
- F	Hypertension?
- S	troke prophylaxis?
_	
Tren	ids?
Acti	ons for improvement?
Resu	alts of performance improvement plans?

W	hat education and training are needed by:
_	Persons served?
	Families/support systems?
	Tammes/support systems.
-	Healthcare providers?

Documentation Examples

The following are examples of the types of documents and other information you should have available to demonstrate conformance to the standards in this section. Note that for some items, evidence of conformance is not required to be in writing. See Appendix A in the standards manual for more information on standards that specifically require written documentation.

- Evidence of the program's definition of interventions
- Evidence of collaboration in decision making
- Individual records of the persons served
- Evidence of provision or arrangements for resources, services, supports, and/or interventions
- Evidence of prevention of secondary complications of stroke
- Documentation in individual plans of persons served of wellness activities based on input from persons served and families/support systems
- Evidence of personnel knowledge and utilization of assistive technology
- Evidence of educational efforts for the persons served and their families/support systems
- Information provided about financial resources, healthcare benefits, laws and regulations, and service options available in the community
- Individualized plans for the persons served that facilitate discharge/transition to the community
- Follow-up plans for the persons served, including designation of individual responsible for coordinating the plan
- Evidence of the program acting as a resource for providers throughout the phases of stroke care
- Evidence of follow-up information gathered on the persons served, including information on aspiration pneumonia, falls, falls with injuries, other injuries,

re-hospitalizations, and unplanned medical visits/encounters, and written analysis conducted at least annually

- Information provided about clinical trials
- For inpatient or residential programs:
 - Evidence of the opportunity for families/support systems to remain with the persons served 24 hours a day
 - Written discharge/transition plans that address deconditioning, diabetes, hyperlipidemia, hypertension, physical inactivity, and stroke prophylaxis
 - Evidence of information gathered at discharge/transition about diabetes, hyperlipidemia, hypertension, and stroke prophylaxis, and written analysis conducted at least annually

How well did the CARF 2023 Continuing Care Retirement Community Survey Preparation Workbook meet your needs?

Your comments will help us evaluate and improve the quality of this publication. Please email any comments to us at documents@carf.org.









